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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
Finance Office

701 Kelly Road, Suite 2005, Cumberland, Maryland 21502

(301) 777-3916  FAX (301} 777-2072 financetuallconet.org
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS Vance C. Ishler, County Administrator
James ). Stakem, Presidens Jerry L. Frantz, CPA, Director of Finance
Hobert M. Hutcheson
Dale R. Lewis
January 25, 2007

To the Board of County Commissioners and the
Citizens of Allegany County, Maryland

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of Allegany County, Maryland for the
fiscal year ending June 30, 2006, including the report of our independent Certified Public
Accountants 1s presented herewith. This report has been prepared by the Allegany County
Finance Department in accordance with Article 19 of the Annotated Code of the State of
Maryland and with Part I, Chapter 26, Article 26-3 of the Allegany County code. This report is
presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public
accountants.

This report consists of management's representations concerning the finances of Allegany
County. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and
reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for
making these representations, management of Allegany County has established a comprehensive
internal control framework that i1s designed both to protect the government's assets from loss,
theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the County's
financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not
outweigh their benefits, the County's comprehensive framework of internal controls has been
designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will
be free from matenal misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge
and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects.

The County's financial statements have been audited by Tumbull, Hoover & Kahl, PA.; a firm of
licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of Allegany County for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2006, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management; and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor concluded,
based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that
the County's financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component of
the financial section of this report.



The independent audit of the financial statements of the County was part of a broader, federally
mandated "Single Audit’ designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies. The
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only
on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government's internal
controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and
legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These reports are available in
Allegany County’s separately issued Single Audit Report.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financtal statements in the form of
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The County's MD&A can be
found immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Profile of Allegany County

Allegany County, [ocated on the Potomac River in western Maryland, was established in 1789. It
is bordered by Pennsylvania to the north and West Virginia to the south, and comprises an area
of 428 square miles. Cumberland, the County seat, covering eight square miles, is at an elevation
of 641 feet. Cumberland is sttuated approximately 100 miles southeast of Pittsburgh and

130 miles northwest of Baltimore and Washington, D.C. There are seven incorporated
municipalities in the County: Barton, Cumberland, Frostburg, Lonaconing, Luke, Midland and
Westemport.

The County is predominately rural in character. The 1990 census showed a population of
74,946; according to the 2000 Census, the population is 74,930 for the County. The County seat
and principal city is Cumberland, with a 2000 population of 21,518.

Both the executive and legislative functions of the County are vested in the elected, three
member Board of County Commisstoners. Commissioners are elected on a county-wide basis
and serve four-year terms. The Board elects one Commissioner to serve as its President. The
Board is required to meet monthly.

In 1974, the County adopted the Code Home Rule form of government provided in Article XI-F
of the Maryland Constitution and Article 25B of the Annotated Code of Maryland. Under this
form of government, the Board has the authority to enact, amend, and repeal public local laws
relating to the incorporation, organization, and government of the county, including, [aws
authorizing the issuance and sale of bonds to finance capital projects for the County. Each
member of the board has one vote and, except for emergency bills, a simple majority of the
Board 1s sufficient to enact any bill into law.

In 1996, the Commissioners adopted legislation making the County Administrator of Allegany
County responsible to the Board and charged with the administration of all County affairs. The
Admimstrator will carry out the policies of the Board, direct and supervise the administration of
all departments and agencies, and perform all duties enumerated in the Allegany County Code
Chapter 2, Article 1.



County financial matters are administered through the Department of Finance of the County by
the Director of Finance. The Director of Finance s hired by the Board on the basis of his training
and experience in financial administration. The Director of Finance is charged with the
administration of the financial affairs of the County, which generally include the receiving of
County taxes, fees and other revenues and funds of every kind due to the County; the custody
and safekeeping of all funds or securities belonging to or by law deposited with, distributed to or
handled by the County; the disbursement of County funds; the keeping and supervision of all
accounts; and such other functions as may be prescribed by the Board.

BUDGET

The formulation of the County's Budget is a joint responsibility between the Director of Finance,
who also serves as Budget Officer, and the County Administrator. In addition to formulating the
Budget, the Budget Officer 1s responsible for the submission to the Board of periodic reports on
their efficiency and economy, and such other duttes and functions as may be assigned by the
Board.

The County Budget is comprised of the Operating Budget, which has current year appropriations
for all funds, and the Capital Budget.

Operating Budget

The Operating Budget, which must be balanced, is prepared by the County Administrator and the
Director of Finance on a modified accrual basis and submitted for approval of the Board of
County Commissioners. It ts based upon estimated revenues and expenditures for operations for
the ensuing fiscal year that is submitted to the Director of Finance and the County Administrator
by the head of each office, Court, department, wnstitution, board, commission, corporation or
other agency of the County government. The current Operating Budget must contain the
following information: (1)} a statement of all revenues estimated to be received by the County
dunng the ensuing fiscal year, classified to show the receipts by funds and sources of income; (2)
a statement of the debt service requirements for the ensuing fiscal year; (3) a statement of the
receipts and expenditures for the last two completed fiscal years, the estimated receipts and
expenditures of the current ending fiscal year and the expenditures recommended by the Board
of County Commuissioners for the ensuing fiscal year for each function, activity, and sub activity;
and (5) any other material which the Board of County Commissioners may deem advisable.

Varnance reports of actual revenues and expenditures versus budgeted revenues and expenditures
are prepared by the Director of Finance on a monthly basis. Additionally, individual offices,
departments, boards, commissions, and other agencies of the County review on a monthly basis
all events affecting their budgetary estimates and can request the Board for supplemental
appropriations to increase their budgetary allowances. The Board in turn has the power to grant
such increases.
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Capital Budget

The Capital Budget is prepared by the Capital Projects Engineer after approval by the Review
Committee and then submitted for approval to the Board of County Commussioners. The Review
Committee consists of the County Administrator, the Director of Community Services, the
Director of Public Works, the Director of Finance, the Director of Economic Development and
the County Engineer. [t is based on the need for having certain capital projects undertaken and
the availability of financial resources. Each project is identified with estimated costs and
estumated sources of funding. All funding requests are then applied to a debt affordability model
to ascertain if the proposed debt is within the County's self-imposed debt guidelines.

Adoption of Budget

Before the end of April in each year, the preliminary County Budget is publicly reviewed by the
County Commissioners at an announced time and date. Opportunities are then available at the
next several public meetings for citizens to express their views. Afler the public hearings, the
Board of County Commissioners may revise the preliminary budget. Line item details of all
individual departmental and agency requests and proposed appropriations are available. The
Board is further authorized to revise the schedule of anticipated receipts and estimated rates for
general and special taxes. The Budget must be approved and signed by a majority of the
Commussioners by June 30th.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented 1n the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it 1s
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which Allegany
County operates.

Local economy: Allegany County currently enjoys a favorable economic environment and local
indicators point to continued stability. The unemployment rate has decreased from 6.3% at June
30, 2005 to 5.4% at June 30, 2006. The region has diverse manufacturing and industrial base of
paper manufacturing, rail transportation and the manufacturing of window coverings. A varied
service provider base gives the area relative stability of the unemployment rate. Major service
providers includes health services, government, education, and call centers.

The state and federal government have a major economic presence with the operation of
correctional facilities. The state also operates a 4 year higher education institution that serves the
region offering a variety of undergraduate and graduate programs.

Allegany County has a total labor force of 36,411. The total labor force remains relatively
unchanged which mirrors the population census of the county. Recent population projections
have the county maintaining its current population which reverses decades of population loss.

Long-term financial planning: The County adopts a five year Capital Improvement Program
each year as required by state law. A major emphasis on economic development 1s being
embarked upon to retain and grow the county’s population and disposable income. The county
has invested heavily in an advanced manufacturing park which saw its first tenant in January
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2005 with American Woodmark Corporation beginning the manufacturing and distribution of
kitchen cabinets. The County has rented a former manufacturing plant owned by the county to
the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). FEMA has signed a two year lease to
occupy the facility until September 2007. The county will use proceeds from this lease to
redevelop the facility in order to secure a long-term agreement with FEMA or other interested
parties. The county has also been involved in the development of a wireless internet system that
1s one of the first in the country for a rural area. High speed intemet access is critical in the
future development of the county by allowing the county to attract higher paying jobs of today’s
technology driven society.

In October 2003, a ground breaking ceremony was held for the first new high school constructed
1n 50 years within the county. This project 1s critical to replace aging structures and to attract the
types of jobs the county is trying to emphasize. The County borrowed $2.1 million in November
2004 and borrowed an additional $3 million dollars in July, 2006 to accomplish county
objectives. The majority of this new debt will be to invest $1.6 in projects for Allegany College
which a 2 year community college to enhance and maintain training programs vital to the
workforce of the region. Work continues on the Allegheny Highlands Trail with is expected to
attract many hiking and biking enthusiasts. When completed, the trail is expected to have a
major financial impact on the county and enhance the quality of life for residents. The trail will
be constructed entirely with federal, state, and donor contributions.

The Western Maryland Health System is proceeding with a project cost exceeding $268 million
for the construction of a new hospital and the relocation of its administrative offices and the
relocation of the Allegany County Health Department. When implemented, this plan will place
in close proximity a hospital, the health department, and the admunistrative staft of the health
system. The County borrowed $2 mullion to relocate the Allegany County Health Department.

In order to further grow the local economy, the county will undertake the repair and upgrade of
several bridges throughout the county. Close to § 8.7 million will be invested under the
supervision of county staff. These projects will be financed mainly with federal and state grants.
Some of the county share of these projects will be financed with coal taxes collected by the
county and will be used specifically on bridges used by the coal industry within the county.
With oil prices nearing historic highs, strong demand for coal in the county 1s expected.

With changing federal and state environmental regulations, the county has begun to spend over
$2 million in inflow and infiltration design costs and construction in various sanitary districts the
county operates. This will require modifications and upgrades to various treatment facilities of
the county. Construction on the Celanese facility is nearly complete with the total project
costing in excess of $17.0 million. These projects will be financed mainly with loans from the
state and federal government and will be repaid by the users of the system and not the general
fund of the government.
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The County recognizes that its geographic location to West Virginia and Pennsylvania as well as
Garrett County, Maryland gives many housing opportunities to people who work in Allegany
County to reside in another county or state. Part of the economic development efforts of the
County includes efforts to promote construction of new housing. The County has a spec housing
incentive for home builders and a Real Estate Tax Set Aside Program (RETSA) for new housing.
Because of these programs and the attractive real estate prices within the County, several new
housing developments have been announced and are being reviewed by county planning officials
and boards. These developments could result in higher real estate and income taxes for the
County.

Cash Management

Expenditures for all funds, except those required by law or agreement, are made from one bank
account to maximize investment income and for efficient operation of the accounting system.

The County's investment policy is to minimize risk while achieving a competitive yield on its
cash balances. Deposits were either insured by federal depository insurance or collateralized. All
collateral on deposits was held by the County's agent in the County's name. All investments of
the County were classified in the fowest risk category as defined by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board.

Cash temporanly idle during the year was invested in certificates of deposit and repurchase
agreements. The maturities of the investments range from 1 day to 365 days, with an average
maturity of [10 days and an average yield on investments of 3.85 percent.

Risk Management

Atlegany County retains an tnsurance advisor who monitors health and life insurance coverage.
Periodical inspections of County buildings and property by the insurance carriers ensure the
proper levels of liability and building and contents coverage. The County's exposure to risk is
limited to immaterial deductible amounts. In addition, beginning in FY 2005 two risk and safety
managers were hired to recommend and enforce safety policies and to monttor workers
compensation cases.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA)
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to Allegany County
for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. This was
the fourteenth consecutive year that the government has received this prestigious award. In order
to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.
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A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's
requirements and we are submitting 1t to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

I wish to acknowledge the support and interest of the Board of County Commissioners and the
County Admumstrator in the recording and reporting of financial matters. Tt is of the utmost
importance that the accounting functions have this backing. I also want to express my
appreciation to Wm. Jay George, CPA, Assistant Director of Finance and the entire staff of the
Finance Office for their cooperation, dedication and professionalism in the preparation of this
report. In conclusion, [ want to acknowledge the efforts of the many County employees that
support the accounting function.

Respectfully submitted,

" - =, - P -
\ /,r /N

Jerry L. Frantz, CPA
Director of Finance
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Board of Allegany County Commissioners
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Cumberland, Maryland

INDEPENDENT AUDITQR'S REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities,
the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each
maror fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Allegany County, Maryland
(the County) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the
County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of Altegany County, Maryland’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
did not audit the financial statements of the Allegany County Board of Education and the
LaVale Sanitary Commission, which represent 67 percent, 64 percent and 77 percent.
respectively, of the assets, net assets, and revenues of the component units. Those
financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it refates to the amounts included for the
Aliegany County Board of Education and the LaVale Sanitary Commission, 1s based on
the report of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain rcascnable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial staternents. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other
auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

fn our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Allegany County, Maryland as of June 30, 2006 and the
respective changes in financial positton and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the




year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated
January 25, 2007 on our consideration of Allegany County, Maryland’s internal control
over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants, That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with
this report in considering the results of our audit.

The management’s discussion and analysis on pages B-1 through B-10, the schedule of
pension contributions on page D-3, and the budgetary comparison information on pages
D-4 through D-14 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principatly of inquires of management regarding the methods of measurement and
presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the
information and express no opinion on it.

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise Allegany County, Maryland’s basic financial statements., The
introductory section, combining and individual non-major fund financial statements and
schedules, and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual non-
major fund financial statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are
fairly stated in all matenial respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a
whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

TN cmdalE St I b, DA

Cumberland, Maryland
January 25, 2007



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of Allegany County, we offer readers of Allegany County’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Allegany County for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2006. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional
information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be found at page ix of this report.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of Allegany County exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$137 nullion (net assets). Of this amount, $133.2 million is invested in capital assets net of related
debt and $2.45 million is restricted for specific purposes (restricted net assets). The County’s fotal
unrestricted net assets are $1.35 million. This total unrestricted net asset amount includes a balance of
£3 million from governmental activities, offset by a deficit balance in unrestricted net assets from
business-type activities of $(1.7) million.

¢ The government’s total net assets increased by $13.9 million or 11.3%. The governmental net assets
increased $12.6 million (or 21.3%). Business-type activities increased by $1.4 millien (or 2.0%) due
to an increase in capital contributions in the water and sewer funds

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, Allegany County’s governmental funds reported combined
ending fund balances of $23.4 mullion, an increase of $2.0 million in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately 14.5% of this total amount, $3.4 million, is available for spending at the government's
discretion (unreserved fund balance) and another $16 million is unreserved and designated for specific
projects, programs and uses.

» At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance for the general fund was $1.23 million,
or 2% of total general fund expenditures.

o Allegany County's governmental activity outstanding debt decreased by $4.57 million (or 13.1%)
during the current fiscal year reflecting debt principal payments of $4.7 rmillion and new debt of .1
million. The County’s business-type debt increased by 3666 thousand {or 4.2%) due to borrowing for
improvements to several small water systems. Debt of $515 thousand was retired.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an inftroduction to Allegany County’s basic financial
statements. Allegany County’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) govemment-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3} notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of Allegany County’s finances, in a manner similar to private-sector
business.

The statement of net assets presents information of all of Allegany County’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve
as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of Allegany County is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal penods (e.g..
uncollected taxes and eamed but unused vacation leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Allegany County that are

principally supported by taxes and intergovernimental revenues (govermmental acfivities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges
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(business-type activities). The government activities of Allegany County include general government,
public safety, public works, social services, economic development, and payments to component units {the
public school system, community college and iibrary). The business-type activities of Allegany County
include the Water Fund, Sewer Fund, Allconet II, and Nursing Home operations.

The government-wide financial statements include not only Allegany County itself (known as the primary
government), but also a legally separate public school system, community college, library system and a
sewer district. Financial information for these component units is reported separately from the financial
information presented for the primary government itself

The government-wide financial staternents can be found on pages C5-C7 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintaia control aver
resources that have been segregated for specific activities of objectives. Allegany County, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related
legal requirements. All of the funds of Allegany County can be divided into three categories:
governmen*al funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as govermmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in evaluating governments’ near-term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the povernment-wide financial
staternents, 1t 1s useful to compare the mnformation presented for govermmental funds with similar
mformation presented for governmental activities 1n the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financial decisions.
Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental
Sunds and governmental activities.

Allegany County maintains sixteen individual governmenial funds. Information is presented separately in
the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the general fund, the highway fund, and the capital projects fund, all of
which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other twelve governmental funds are combined into
a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements etsewhere in this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages C9-C18 of this report.

Proprietary funds. Allegany County has one type of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report
the same functions presented as business-fype aclivities in the government-wide financial statements.
Allegany County uscs enterprise funds to account for its water fund, sewer fund, nursing home fund and
loan fund

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only
in more detaill. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for all of the
enterprise funds, of which the water, sewer and nursing home funds are considered to be major funds of
Allegany County

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages C15-C17 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected n the government-wide financial statement because the
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resources of those funds are not available to support Allegany County’s own programs. The accounting
used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial staternents can be found on pages C18 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financral statements can be found on pages C19-C56 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerming Allegany County’s progress in funding its
obligation to provide pension benefits to certain groups of its employees

Also reported as required supplementary information are budgetary comparison schedules for the General
Fund, the Highway Fund and the Capital Improvements Projects Fund which are reported as major funds.
Required supplementary information can be found on pages D3-D4 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and internal
service funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information. Combining
and individual fund statements and schedules can be found on pages E4-E47 of this report.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
In the case of Allegany County, assets exceeded liabilities by $137.0 mullion at the close of the most recent
fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of Allegany County’s net assets (99.5 percent) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets
that is still outstanding. Allegany County uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens
consequently; these assets are no¢ available for future spending. Although Allegany County’s investments
in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liqudate
these liabilities.
ALLEGANY COUNTY'S NET ASSETS

Govermmental Activides Business-1vpe Activides Toml
FY 2006 FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2005
Assels:
LCurreni and other asseis 3 32,657,729 5 15258414 3 3,938,756 3 38,242,566 S 36596483 5 41,500,930
Capital assets 73,724,474 67.633,394 83,115,273 75,433,144 156,863,747 143.072.038
Toral assets 106.382.203 102,897,308 87,078,029 83.675.710 193.463,232 186,573.018
Liabilives:
Current and oiher liabilitics 9,256,735 13,538,487 2,198,731 3,320,758 13,455,466 16,359,245
Long-term liabilides outstanding 25,638,928 30.304,445 19.375.032 19,155,229 45,013,960 45,459 674
Tor! liabilities 14,895,663 43,842,932 21,573,763 22,475,987 56,469.426 66,318,919
Net assers:
Investment m capilal assets
nel of related debt 66,160,686 60,161,453 67,030,468 59,474,528 133,191,154 115,635,981
Restricted 1277836 o017 167.898 172,797 2445734 3,193914
Unrestricted 3.048.018 {4.128.194) (1.694.100) 1.552.398 1,353.918 (2,575,796}
Total net assets 3 71.486.540 $ 59.054.376 $  65.504,266 § 61199723 £ 136.990.306 & 120.254.099

An additional portion of Allegany Counry’s net assets (1.8%) represents resources that are subject fo
external restrictions on how they may be used. The County has an unrestricted net assets balance of §1.35
million. The unrestricted net assets balance for the business-type activities was a deficit of $1.7 million
and the governmental activities balance was $3.0 million.
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During the current fiscal year, the government’s net assets increased by $13.94 million.
increased by approximately $4.9 million dollars to 3111 million while expenses increased by $1.9 million
from the prior year to $97 million.

ALLEGANY COUNTY'S CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Revenues

Governmental activities.

Goveriirmenial Avtivities Business-type Activities Total
Revenues: FY 2006 FY 2003 FY 2006 FY 2005 FY 2006 FY 2005
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 6.842.56] 5,734,652 5 15952374 5 14,923.199 22,796,935 § 20657851
Operating grants and contnibunons 0,162,976 6.549.718 - - 6,162,976 4.549.718
Capital grants and contributions 4.861.929 10,626,137 3.560.637 3.320.783 8.422,566 13.945.92¢
General revenues:
Property taves 19.004.141 27.060.585 732367 684,520 29,826,508 27.745,114
Incone axes 23,407,308 21472667 - - 23,407,305 21,472,667
Other local mxes 8,709.370 7.331.664 - - 8.769.370 7.331.004
Franchiee fees 308.405 304,785 - - 308,405 304,785
Cirants and contributions not
restmicted to specific programs 6.300.247 6,116,059 - - 6,300,447 6116059
Lsirestncted fees - 136,359 - - - 136,539
U nrestricted mnvestment earmings 1.436.172 1,046,600 121,098 159.528 1,617,270 1,206,128
Gam on sale'retivernent of
apita) assels 2.876.333 - - - 2,876,383 5
Muncellapeoss 393.30% 505,188 73,326 45.840 471,631 581028
Total revenues 90,454,994 86,884,614 20,504 802 19.133.879 110,959,796 106,118,493
Expenses:
General govermment 6,966,383 6.678.586 - - 6.966,383 6.678.586
Payirent 1o dam processing 294,847 279.661 - - 204,847 279601
ic safety 14L571.046 1320579 - - 4.571.046 13,320,579
Pullic works 11,176,350 5,091,961 - 11,176,350 9.691.963
Health 1.610,957 (422,154 - - 1610957 1,422,154
Soral services 1.987.579 3.220.006 - 1,987,579 3,220,006
709.684 766,573 - - 709,683 796,573
Payment to public schiool system 27262735 27.638.498 - - 27.262.735 27.638.498
Payment o conmmmity eallege 6070100 5.575.000 - - 5,375,000
Recreation, culture & Iihrares 720,024 637,904 - - 637,904
Payment 1o public library sys:zem 435,000 940 - - 794,000
Consersation of natural resources 230.030 202,776 - 264,776
Cormruiity development & housing 1,666,691 2.031.225 - 1,666.691 2031225
Econonme development 2,487,755 3,487,397 - - 2,487,755 1,487,397
Miscellaneous 79925 293.971 - 79,925 293,971
Interest on long-term debi 1,377,559 1,582,097 - - 1,377,559 1,582,097
Warer - - 1.751,458 1,448,043 1.751.458 1,448,043
Sewer - - 7.137.019 6.398.687 7.137.019 6,198,687
Nuzsmig Homwe - 9.657,283 $.550,145 9.657.283 9.530.143
Other proprietary funds - - 487,108 - 487,108 -
Toral expenses 77,986,575 77,7480 16,132,868 17,396.873 97.019.443 95,111,265
Increase in net gssets before ransfers 12,468,419 2.170,224 1.471.934 1.737.004 13,940,353 10,907,228
Transiers 96.895 $51.293 (96.895) (551,293) - -
icrease {decrease) in net assets 12,565,314 9. 11517 1,375,039 83T 13540353 10.907.228
Net assels. begmnimy, as restated 58.921.226 50,905,961 64120227 58440912 123.050,453 109.346.873
Prior penied adjustment - (1.573,100) - 1.573.100 - -
el assets. endinp 5 71,486,540 59,054,378 $ 65504266 § 61.199.723 136,990,806  $ 120.254,10)

Governmental activities increased Allegany County’s net assets by $12.5
million, thereby accounting for 90.1 percent of the total growth of $13.9 million in the net assets of
Allegany County. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

e  Property taxes i the governmental funds increased by $2 million primarily the result of increases

in property values. Property tax revenue in the business-type activities increased 7 percent. The
increase was the result of increases in property values in combination with the reduction or
elimination of taxes due to the retirement of enterprise fund debt issues.

Income tax revenue increased $1.9 million due to an improving economy: the tax rate did not
change and employment was stable.

Other local taxes increased by $1.4 million due to increases in recordation and property transfer
taxes caused by the real ¢state boom experienced by the County.

During FY 2006 the County recognized a gain on the sale of capital assets of $2.9 million largely
due to the sale of the County Health Department Building. Proceeds from the sale are being
applied to the purchasing and remodeling of new facilities for the Health Department.
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Capital grants and contributions decreased from $10.2 million in fiscal year 2005 to $4.9 million
in 2006, a drop of 35.8 million. The decrease was due to the substantial completion of several
large economic development projects in the previous fiscal year. They include the Barton
Industrial Park and the Highlands Trail

Service charges increased by $1.1 million largely due to increases in economic development rental
wmcome ($316 thousand) and public safety service charges ($375 thousand).

Expenses and Program Revenues -
Governmental Activities
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Governmental expenses increased by only $272 thousand from the previous year. The small increase was
the result of large increases in some functions being offset with significant decreases in other functions.
Public safety expenses increasing $1.25 million (9.4%) and public works expenses increased $1.5 million
{15.3%). The increase in public safety expenses was due to increases actoss the board in almost all public
safety activities; the increase in public works was the result of an increase of $250 thousand for the Upper
Potomac River Commission, $400 thousand for the highway department and $535 thousand for transit
operations. The preceding Increases were offset by decreases in expenses for social services of $1.2
million and a decrease in economic development expenses of $1 million. The decrease in social service
expenses was entirely due to the Office of Children, Youth and Families becomung an independent agency
and no longer is a component of the County reporting entity. The decrease in economic development
expenses was largely due to decreased activity in County’s Revelving Bullding Fund for fiscal year 2006.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased Allegany County’s net assets by slightly less
than $1.4 mullion (after transfers), accounting for 9.9 percent of the total growth in the government's net
assets. Key elements of this increase are as follows.

e Charges for services for business-type activities increased by $1 million (0.9%) due to increases in
water service charges of $234 thousand, sanitary service charges of $591 thousand and Nursing home
service charges of $600 thousand. The increases were the result of higher fees, increases in customers
and usage and higher occupancy rates.

» Capital contributions continued to be a major revenue source for the samtary and water districts in the
current fiscal year, producing $3.6 mullion in revenue. The federal and state grants were received for
upgrades to the Celanese Wastewater Treatment plant, an estimated $14.7 million project to improve
the quality of the water released from the plant. The treatment plant services two state comrectional
facitities, a County correctional facility, approximately 1,600 residential customers and part of an
independent sewer district.  Also under construction are water and sewer facilities for the Barton
Industrial Park.

e Expenses of the business-type activities increased by $1.6 mullion (or 9.5%), a large part of the
increase, 5487 thousand, was related to the operations of the new Allconet II Fund. The other
business-type activities had increases in expenses which were directly related to increased revenues
(services provided); the water funds - $280,000 and the sanitary fund - $754,000. The Nursing Home
expenses Increased mederately - $92,000.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business
Type Activities
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, Allegany County uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of Allegany County’s governmental funds is 1o provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information 1s useful in assessing
Allegany County’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, Allegany County’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $23.4 million, an increase of $2.0 million in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately 82.9 percent of this total amount (319.4 million) constitutes unreserved fund balance, of
which the majority is available for spending at the government’s discretion. Some amounts reported as
unreserved/designated fund balance, are not available due to the single purpose of the fund being reswricted
and the requirement the fund balance be reported as unreserved. The remainder of fund balance is reserved
to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed for non-current
assets, $4.0 million.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of Allegany County. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unreserved/undesignated fund balance of the general fund was $1.23 million, out of a total fund balance of
$13.9 million. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unreserved/undesignated  fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unreserved/undesignated fund balance represents 2.0 percent of total general fund expenditures, while
total fund balance represents 22.9 percent of that same amount.

Key factors in the $2 million growth of the governmental fund balances are:

The fund balance of Allegany County’s general fund increased by $1.24 million which was the result of:
e Property taxes increased $1.3 million (or 4.7%) due entirely to increases in the assessable base.
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¢ Income tax revenue increased $.6 million (or 3%) due to an improved economy.

e  Other local taxes (recordation and transfer taxes) increased $.8 nullion {or 27%) due to a robust
housing market.

s  Federal grants increased 3$513,000 primarily because of increases in health and human service grants,

o  QGeneral Fund expenditures increased significantly ($3.8 million or 6.7%) largely due to increases in
public safety expenditures of $1.1 million, social service expenditures of $600,000 and payments to
cormponent units of $1.5 million. The increase in public safety was in all activities and medical
transportation increased the social service expenditures.

¢ Also, transfers to other funds fell to $8.7 million in the current year, a reduction of $1 mullion dollars
from the previous year as a result of lower debt service payments and reduced local matches for capital
projects.

The fund balance of the highway fund remained relatively unchanged and the fund balance of the other
major governmental fund, the Capital Projects Fund, increased by slightly more than $411,000. The
increase was the result of capita) grants not subject to accrual in the prier year being received ia fiscal year
2006.

The only other governmental fund to experience a significant change in fund balance was the Pay-As-You-
Go (PAYGQO) Capital Project Fund; its fund balance increased by almost $886,000 due to transfers to the
fund for future anticipated capital costs for highway paving ($500,000), road repairs ($250,000) and
LaVale storm drains ($200,000).

Proprietary funds. Allegany County’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the govemment-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Net assets at year end and the change in net
assets during the curtent year are highlighted below:

Waler Sanitary Nursing Other
Districts Districts Home Enterprise Funds Taotals
Net assels:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt $ 15553221 % 46,945.363 §  2.020.880 § 2511004 § 067030408
Restricted for debt service 167.898 - 167,898
Unrestricted (280,047) (R43,875) {1.809.680) 1,239,508 (1,694,100}
Total net assets § 15273174 $  46,269586 $ 211,194 3 3750512 § 65,504,266
Change in net assets during
the year, increase {decrease) 3 31,571 $ 2,500,212 & (585,548) § (571,197} § 1,375,039

Other factors concerning the finances of these four funds have aiready been addressed in the discussion of
Allegapy County’s business-type achvities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

During the year, the original budget increased $2.2 million to a revised total of $70.4 million. which was
the final amended budget. Significant changes between the original budget and the final amended budget
are summmarized as follows:

e 810,000 increase in public safety budgeted expenditures primarily for domestic preparedness grants.

* 3570000 increase in budgeted transfers to other funds largely due to the transfers to the PAYGO
capital projects fund for anticipated future capital needs.

»  3$300,000 in increases for social service expenses the largest bemng for medical transportation.

Of this $2.2 nullion increase, $970,000 was funded by an increase in budgeted federal grants. An
addifional $660,000 was funded by unexpended fund balance and $380,000 from the sale of capital assets.
The rest, $190,000, was funded by increases in various revenues. Revenues exceeded budgetary estimates
by almost $2.9 million and actual expenditures were less than budgetary estimates by $1.9 million. Afier



allowing for other financing sources and uses, the fund balance of the general fund increased by slightly
more than $1.2 mllion.

The General Fund’s net property tax revenue exceeded budget by $957,000 million (or 3.3%) due to
increases in property tax assessments. Other local taxes exceeded budget estimates by 36.6% ($1.06
million) due to an unusually robust real estate market making property in Allegany County an attractive
investment for non-resident investors which resulted in recordation and transfer taxes being much higher
than expected. Public safety charges were 50% (or $523,000) above budgeted estimates due to the housing
of additional Federal prisoners in the County’s correctional facility. General Fund expenditures were $1.9
million below the budgeted amount of $63 mullion due to across the board favorable vanances (total of $1.2
million favorable variance) in most of the departments of the general government function. In addition, the
County’s detention center had a favorable budget variance of $286,000.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. Allegany County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type
activities as of June 30, 2006 was $156.9 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in
capitat assets includes land, buildings, infrastructure, furniture and fixtures, equipment, vehicles, heavy
equipment and other miscellaneous assets. The total increase in Allegany County’s mvestment in capital
assets for the current fiscal year was 9.6 percent (a 9 percent increase for governmental activities and an
10.2 percent increase for business-type activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

» Construction continued and was nearly completed on the Celanese waste water reatment plant and
head-works in Cresaptown; additional costs incurred during the fiscal year were 32.2 mullion, this
project was capitalized at the end of the fiscal year with a total project cost of $14.7 million.

e Design and construction continued on Bowling Green, Cresaptown and Georges Creek sewer
rehabilitation projects with a total cost incurred of $1.9 million during the year.

e  The Barton Industrial Park construction costs were $3.3 million during the year. Barton Park
sewer was capitalized at the close of the fiscal year with a total project cost of $4.3 miltion;
construction in progress for the remainder of the Barton industrial park was 32.2 miltion.

+ Significant construction continued and was nearly completed on the Allegheny Highlands Trail
with additional charges of $1.5 million during the fiscal year, bringing the total project capitalized
costs to §7.1 million,

»  The existing Allegany County Health Department was sold to the Western Maryland Health
System for $3.8 million, resulting in the relocation to and renovation of new facilities on
Willowbrook Road at a total projected cost of $8.4 million of which $3.8 million was incurred in
the current fiscal year.

ALLEGANY COUNTY'S CAPITAL ASSETS
(net of deprecianon)

Governmental Activities Business-lype Activities Total
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Land 3 17.621.76) § 15773610 $ 34,288 S 34,288 $ 17,656,049 $ 15,807,898
Worle in Progress 7,144,836 4,707,638 5,202,428 2,994,814 12,347.264 7,702,452
Buildings 28,924.49) 31,491,993 1,801,420 1,615,576 30,725911 33,107.569
Infrastructurre 14,878,828 11,087.5035 70,501,505 67,504,026 85,380.233 78,591,931
Furniture & fixtores 101,270 174,822 389,606 035,033 690.876 809,835
Equipment 1.674.215 1.573.999 2,889,778 432,986 4,563.993 2,006,985
Vehicles 2,049.014 1,506,794 147,602 224,794 2,247.216 1,731,588
Heavy equipment 833,798 823,044 113.672 01.505 047470 914,549
Other fixed assets 494,661 499.089 1,808,974 1,900.122 2.304.635 2399211
Total 3 73.724.474 5 67,638.894 5 §3.139.273 5 75433144 5 156,863,747 $ 143,072,038
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Additional information on Allegany County’s capital assets can be found in the notes to the financial
statements, note 7 on pages C-41 through C-42 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, Allegany County had total debt cutstanding of
$46.4 million. Governmental activities debt consists of $22.9 in general obligation bonds and $7.3 mullion
of debt incurred with creditors for which the full faith and credit of the County has also been pledged. The
$16.1 million of debt for the business-type activities (revenue bonds) is either paid from revenues restricted

for that purpose or by user fees.
ALI FGANY COUNTY'S QGUTSTANDING DY 117
Generai Obligation and Revenue Bonds

Governmental Activilies Business-lype Activilies Tota)
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
General obligation  $ 22.944,000 5 26.596.000 3 501.083 $ 525.000 N 23,445,088 5 27,121,000
Notes 699,910 784,473 - - 699.910 784.473
Capital leases 206.123 112,435 - - 206123 112,435
State foans 6433258 7.357.164 16,137,902 10,177,907 16.571.160 17,535,071
Federal loans - - 5.236.197 5,137.284 5.236.197 5,137,284
County loans - - 233.618 118.424 233.618 118.424
Total 3 30.283291 $ 34850072 3 16,108,805 5 15.958.615 § 46,392,096 5 50,808,687

Allegany County issued $815,000 of debt and retired $5.2 million during the current fiscal year for a net
decrease of 34.4 mullion (or 8.7%). Debt issued during the vear was $666,000 for various water and sewer
projects and §149,000 in leases for vehicles for governmental activities,

Allegany County has an “A-" rating from Standard & Peor’s and a “Baal™ rating from Moody’s for general
obligation debt.

Additicnal information on Allegany County’s long-term debt can be found in note 10 on pages C-47
through C-50 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

»  The unemployment rate for June 2006 for Aliegany County was 5.4 percent, which was a decrease
from a 6.8 percent rate for June 2005.

e Property assessments increased 1.7% from the previous fiscal year.
All of these factors were considered in preparing Allegany County’s budget for the 2007 fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance in the general fund increased to $10.4 million.
Allegany County has appropriated $1.6 million of this amount for spending in the 2007 fiscal year budget.
It 35 intended that this use of available fund balance will avoid the need to raise taxes or charges during the
2007 fiscal year

‘The sewer and water district minimum service charges were increased 3% - 8% for the 2007 budget year.
These rate increases were necessary to pay for the rising costs of operations and State and Federal
mandated improvements it the water and sewer systems.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Allegany County’s finances for all those
with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this

report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Allegany County Finance
Director, 701 Kelly Road, Suite 205, Cumberland, Maryland 21502 or e-mail at finance@allconet.org.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2006

Primary Government

Component Units

Board Allegany Ailegany LaVale
Governmental Business-type of Coliege of County Sanitary
ASSETS: Activilies Aclivilies Teral Education Maryland Library Commission
Curent Assets:
Cash $ 8,636,013 $ 537,639 hS 9,173,652 $ 8017,58) $ 1,918,989 $ 54925 $ 1,384,264
Investments 6,575,121 446,077 7,021,198 5,495,250 4.718,464 926.439 -
Property taxes receivable 2,985.363 - 2,988,363 - - - -
Receivables:
Accounts - 3,004,524 3,004,524 10,189,544 577,202 925 632,360
Other 13,265,706 174,255 13,439,961 51,408 1,636,755 - 183,882
[nternal balances 951,626 (953,626) - - - - -
[nventory 49,190 180,036 229,226 235,874 300,610 - 231,690
Prepaid expenses 72,013 61310 133,323 - 5,640 61,194 18,425
Deferred charges 29,482 - 29,482 - -
Miscellaneous 75,107 75,107 - - - -
Restricted Assets:
Cash 13.108 320,643 333,731 - 6,336,654 - 23,462
Investments - - - - (518,919)
Taxes - 85,259 15,259 - - - -
Receivables - 82,639 82.639 - - - -
Total current asseis 32,657,729 3,938,756 36.556.485 23,989.657 14.975.395 1.042.483 2,674,183
Non-current  Assets:
Land 17,621,761 34,28R 17,656,049 2,557,989 700,973 176,385
Work In Progress 7,144 836 5,202,428 12,347,264 13,636,275 554,013 - 1,907,898
Capital assets subject
to depreciation/amortization 98,846,609 116,672,621 215,519,230 118,743,702 47,576,321 8.466,789 16,924,721
Accumulated depreciation (49,888,732) (38,770,064) (88.658.796) {69,585,146) (17,336,237} (5,042.633) (7.876,522)
Total non-current assets 73.724.474 83.139.273 156,863,747 65,352,820 31,495,070 3.424.156 11.132.482
Total Assets 106,382,203 87,075,029 193.460,232 89,342,477 46,470,465 4.467,639 13,806,665
LIABILITEES:
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 1,372,776 856,16) 2,433,937 7,962,908 1,033,956 1,004 1,330,197
Accrued wages payable 281,179 G0.825 372.004 670,498 584,795 14,795 -
Accrued fringe benefits payable 120,985 4{.648 161,633 227.969 - -
Accrued interest 315,616 93,026 408,642 - - 1,888
Current portion of long-term
debt:
Bonds and loans 4,088,128 747 407 4,835,535 110,488 78,566 - 37,934
Capital leases 79,194 - 79,194 30,678 - -
Compensated absences 738,467 78,403 816,870
Due to Agency Fund 158,293 158,293 - - -
Unearned revenue 1,404,674 - 1,404,674 1,247,050 369,456 - -
Miscellaneous Labilinies 492,423 292,261 784,084 7.744.496 673,693 - 23,462
Total current liabilities 9,256.735 2,198.731 11,455,466 17,735,440 3,019,153 15,799 1,393,481
Non-current liabilities:
Cash advance due general fund (3,585,582) 3,585,582 - - -
Bonds and loans 25,989,040 15,127,781 41,116,821 3,314,249 - 1,158,260
Capital leases 126,929 - 126,929 - 197,646
Compensated absences 3,108,541 661,669 3,770,210 2,589.838 43,270 51,750 -
Total non-current lighilities 25,638,928 19,375,032 45,013,960 2.589.838 3.575,165 53,750 1,158,266
Total Liabilities 34,895,663 21,573,763 36.469 426 20,325,278 6.594.318 £9.549 2,551,747
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets net of
related debt 66,160,686 67,030,468 133,191.154 65,352,820 27,868,310 3,424,156 9.900,606
Restricted for:
Public safety 608,592 608,592 - -
Highways 1,014,875 - 1,014,975 - -
Community development & housing 607,954 607,954 - - -
Capital projects 46,315 46,315 1,430,194
Other purposes 167,898 167,898 235,874 7,385,883 369,673 -
Unrestricted 3,048,018 {1.694.100) 1,353.918 1,998,311 4,621,954 604.26) 1,354,312
Total Net Assets S 71,486,540 $ 65.504,266 S 136,990.806 $ 69.017.19% 5 19,876,147 $ 4.398.050 $11,254,918

The nates 1o the financial statements are an integral pant of this statement.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY., MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Expenses Expenses Program Revenues
Before Indirect After Operating Capital
Indirect Expense Expense Indirect Expense Charges for Grants and (irants and
Functions/Programs Allocation Allocation Allacation Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government::
Governmental activities:
(eneral government: $ 7615835 S (649452) 3 6,9606.383 $ 525,38] 3 316,247 ) -
Payment to data processing 294,847 - 294 847 - - -
Public safety 14,571,046 - 14,571,046 2,585,073 2,047,306 1,368,668
Public works 11,119,658 56,692 11,176,350 850,935 925,693 665.815
Health 1,610,957 - 1,610,657 - 132.876 72.895
Social services 1,927,478 60.101 1,987.579 36.182 1,400,116 -
Education: 709,684 - 709,684 - - -
Payment to public school system 27.262.735 - 27.262.735 - -
Payment to community cotlege 6,010,000 - 6,010,000 - - -
Recreation. culture & libraries: 720.024 - 720,024 361.530 08,538 -
Payment 10 public library sysiem 835,000 - 815,000 - - -
Conscrvation of naturz] resources 230,040 - 230,040 31379 24,944 -
Community development and -
hausing 1,666,691 - 1,666,091 41,120 1.027,782 -
Econamic development 2.487.755 - 2,487,755 2.472.961 179,474 2,754,551
Miscellancous 79,925 - 79,025 - - -
Interest on long term debi 1,377.559 - 1.377,559 - - -
Total gnvernmental activities 78,519,234 (532.659) 77,986,575 6.844.561 6,162,976 4,861,929
Business-type activities:
Water 1,713,840 37,618 1,751,458 1.379.464 - 339,318
Sewer 6.927.506 209.513 7,137.019 5.488,342 - 3221319
Nursing Home 9.371,755 285.528 9.657.283 9.630.90 - -
Other funds 487.108 - 437,108 53.667 - -
Total business-type activities 18,500,209 532,659 19,032,868 15.952.174 - 3,560,637
Total primary govermment $ 97015443 $ - S 97,019,443 S 22,796,935 3 6,162.976 S RB.422.566
Component units:
Board of Education S 108,263,525 S 2075194 $ 17.858.850 $§ 12362071
Allegany College of Md. 28,594,139 11.332,638 10,287.727 3,568,422
County Library 1,758,917 64,226 51,694 -
LaVale Sanitary Cormumission 3,488,859 3,042,890 - 309,301
Total component units § 142,105,440 $ 17,114,948 § 28,198,271 $ 16,639,794

General revenues:
Property taxes
Income taxes
Other local taxes
Appropriation from Allegany County
Franchise lax
Grants & contributions not resincted
10 specific programs
Unrestricted investment earmnings
Gain on salceretirement of capital asseis
Miscellancous
Transfers, operating
Total general revenues. transfers and special items
Change in net assets
Net assets - beginning as restated
Nei assets - ending

The nates to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Component Units

Governmental Business-Type Board of Allegany County LaVale Sanitary
Activities Activities Total Education College of MD Library Commission
§  (6,124,755) $ - (6,124,755) k) § - $
(294,847} (2948473 - -

(8,569.999) - (8,569,999 - - -

(8,733,907 - (8,733,907 - - - -

(1,405,186) - (1,405.186) - - - -
{551.281) - {551.281) - - -
(709,684) (709,684) - -

(27,262,735 (27,262,735) -
(6,010,000} - (6,010,000} - - -
(319,956} - (319,956} - - -
(835,600) - (835,000) -
(173,717} (173,717 - - -
{587,789) (587,789 - - - -
2,919,231 - 2,919,231 - -
(79,925) - {79.925) - - -
(1,377,559} {1,377,55%) - -
{60,117,109) {60,117,109) - -
(32,676} (32,676) - -

- 1,572,642 1,572,642 - - -
(626,382) {626,382) - - -
- {433,441) (433,441) - - - -
- 480,143 480,143 - -
{60.117,109) 480,143 (59.636,966) - - -
- (75,367,410) - - -
- - - - (3,005,352) - -
- - (1,642,997) -
- - - - - (136,668)
- {75,367,410) (3,005,352 {1,642,997) (136,668}
29,004,141 732,367 29,826,508 - - 402,308
23,407,305 - 23,407,305 - - 443,300
8,769,370 - 8.769,370 - - - -
- - 27,262,733 6,010,000 835,000 -
308,405 - 308,405 - - - -
6,300,447 - 6,300,447 59,326,500 - 626.684 -
1,436,172 181,098 1,617,270 478,227 540,647 3235 72,932
2,876,383 - 2,876,383 - 383,059 - 8,700
393,305 78,326 471,631 307.454 912,054 126,681 2,027
96,305 (96,895) - - - - -

72,682,423 894 896 73,577,219 87,374,916 7,845,760 1,620,716 929,267

12,565,314 1,375,039 13,940,353 12,007,506 4,840,408 (22,281) 792,599

58,921,226 64,129,227 123,050,453 57,009,693 35,035,739 4,420.371 10,462,319

5 71,486,540 3 65,504,260 136,990,806 3 69,017,199 $ 39,876,147 4,398,690 S 11,254,918

The notes to the financial statements arc an integral part of this statement,
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 39, 2006

Capital
Improvements Other
General Highway Projects Governmental
ASSETS: Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
Cash $ 8530020 § - § -5 96,084 % 8,636,013
Cash -restricted - - - 13,108 13,108
Invesiments 3,050,000 - 103,281 3,421,840 6,575,121
Property tax receivable 3,138,363 - - - 3,138,363
Receivables
Notes and loans - - - 366,960 366,960
Other receivables 3,625,769 715,382 839,136 1,084,237 6,264,524
Due from other funds - 1,051,707 - 4,687,743 5,739,430
Advances to other funds 3,585,582 - - - 3,585,582
[nventory - - - 49,190 49,190
Prepaids 433 71,580 72.013
Miscellaneous assets 75,105 - - - 75,105
Total Assels ) 22,014,281 $ 1,767,089 § 042,417 S 9,791,642 § 34,515,429
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3 502,768 § 138,824 § 645,923 S 290,261 % 1,577,776
Accrued payroll 218,876 46,575 450 14,778 281,179
Accrued payrell fringe 86,559 27,415 93 6,918 120,985
Due to other funds 3,700,790 - 594,088 649,238 4,944,116
Amounts held in escrow 210,674 129,000 - 108,379 448,053
Uneamed revenue 2,883,487 - 68,073 321,893 3,273,453
Miscellaneous liabilities 463,826 - - 28,596 492,422
Total Liabilities 8,066,980 341,814 1.309,127 1,420,063 11,137,984
Fund Balances;
Reserved:
For non-current assets 3,585,582 - - 366,960 3,952,542
For prepaid items 413 - - 13,170 13,603
For inventories - - - - -
For capital projects - 44,219 44,219
Unreserved/Designated:
For next fiscal year:
Genera) fund 1,600,000 - - - 1,600,000
Special revenue funds 778,730 - 2.154 780,884
Capital project funds - - 760,000 760,000
For contingencies 6,500,000 - - - 6,500,000
For specific programs, reported in:
General fund 1,027,046 - - - 1,027.046
Special revenue funds - - 1,839,087 1,839,087
Debi service fund - - 1,517,200 1,517,200
Capital Project funds - - 1,945,619 1,845,619
Undesignated:
General fund 1,234,240 - - 1,234,240
Special revenue funds - 646,545 - 1,734,608 2,381,153
Capital Project funds - - {306,710) 148,562 (218,148)
Total Fund Balances 13,947,301 1,425,275 {366.710) 8,371,579 23,377,445
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances § 22,014,281 5 1,767,080 § 942,417 h:3 9,761,642

Amounts reported for governmenial activities in the statement of net assets
are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 73.724.474
Other long -lerm asseis are not available 1© pay current -period expenditures
and are deferred in the funds. 6,513,705
Long-term debt, including compensated absences, 1s not due and payable in
the current period and therefore is not reported in the funds. (34,130,300)
Other long -term habilities are not due and payable in the curreni period
and therefore are not reported in the funds. 2,001,216
Net assets of governmenial activities s 71,486,540

The notes to the financial staterments are an infegral part of this statement.




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Capital
Improvements Other
Gencral Highway Projects Govemmental
REVENUES: Fund Fund Fung Funds Total
Taxes:
Property taxes 29,786,204 - 3% -8 - 5 29,786,204
Income taxes 22,103,548 - - - 22,103,548
Other local taxes 3.953.065 4813872 - 756,683 9,523,620
Licenses and permits 586.286 - - 586.286
Intergoverninental:
Federal 1.932.665 - 1,663,248 3,188,096 6,784.000
State 7.659.800 19218 1,490,665 1,610,043 10,779,726
Other 432,960 - 72.223 36.550 561.733
Service charges 2.799.042 - - 337874 3.136.916
Fines and forteitures 23.396 - - 56,222 79.618
Interest 622388 5,945 123,349 752,182
Miscellaneous 400,237 - 195,415 2.452,299 3,047,951
Tota! Revenues (3,300,091 4832090 3.427.49 8.581.110 814179}
EXPENDITURES:
Current:
General government 6,273,586 - - 130.289 6,403,875
Public safety 12,234 867 - - 827,336 13,162,203
Public works 2,311,801 6.503.022 - 2,199.473 11,014,386
Health and Hospitals 414,742 - - 132,892 547,635
Social Services 2,426,358 - - 54.779 2,481.137
Educativn 6,788 - - - 6.788
Recreation. cuiture and librarics 557173 - - 557.173
Conservation of natural
resources 222.849 - - - 222,849
Community Development
and Housing 247,537 - - 1,419,052 1,666,589
Economic development 1.450.367 - - 2.862.701 4312128
Miscetlancous 12,910 - - 4,761 17,671
Appropriatior to
ather grvemments 1.044,128 - - - 1.044.128
Payments to component uniis 33,734,847 - 33.734.847
Debt Service:
Principal - - 4,716,262 4,716,262
Interes! - - - 1442163 1,442,163
Capitai Outlay:
General government - - - 73,609 73,600
Public safety - - 1,362,320 132,909 1.495.229
Public works - - 71,282 - 71,282
Health and Hospitals 3,824,825 3,824,825
Education - - - 702,896 702.8396
Economic development - - 1.725.302 - 1,725.302
Miscellanecus 33,550 33,550
Payments to compaonent units - - 601,323 66412 667,735
Tota! Expenditures 61.038.044 6,503,022 7,585.052 14,799,144 39,925.262
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 9.262.047 (1,669,932} (4.157,556) (6.218.028} (2,783.,469)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in 201,594 1.661.715 768,648 7.926,540 10,558,497
Transfers out (8,649,496) - - (1.812,106) (10.461,602)
[ssuance of debt - - - 149,483 149,483
Sale of capital assets 430,880 - 3.800.000 322050 4,552.930
T'otal Other Financing
Sources and uses (B.017,022) 1,861,715 4,568,648 6,585,907 4,799,308
Net change irn fund balances 1,245,023 (3.217) 411,092 367,939 2.015.839
Fund balance, beginning
as restated. see note 16 12,702,276 1,433,492 (777.802) 8.003,640 21,361.606
Fund baiance, ending 13,947,30) 1,425.275  § (366,710) % 8,371,579 § 23377.445

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (page C-6)
are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (page C-12) $ 2,015,839

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which capital outlays exceed depreciation in the current period.

Capital outlay $ 10,589,653
Depreciation (3,104,584) 7,485,069

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to decrease net assets. (1,399,489)

Rewvenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. 139,760

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term

debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds,

Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental
funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar
items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and
amortized in the statement of activities. This arnount is the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related itemns.

Debt proceeds $ -

Lease proceeds (149,483}

Effect of bond issuance costs 42

Payment of principal 4,716,262 4,566,821

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as

expenditures in the governmental funds. (262,686)
Change in net assets of governmental activities {pages C6-C7) $ 12,565,314

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
June 30, 2006

Allegany Allegany Allegany
County County County Other
Water Sanitary Nursing Enterprise
ASSETS Disiricis Districts Home Funds Total
Current Assels:
Cash:
Cash $ - 536,439 $ 1,200 3 - b 537,639
Casgh - restncted - 320,643 - 320,643
Investmenis 173,140 226,271 46,666 446,077
Receivables:
Accounts (net) 395,688 1,167,522 1.043.240 368,074 3,004,524
Taxes - resnicted - 85,259 - - 85,259
Accounts (net) - resiricted - 82,639 - - 82,639
Other 4,085 167,363 36 1.851 174,255
[Due from other funds 3,590 3,486,492 - 674,969 4,165,051
Prepaid expenses - - 61,310 - 61,310
inventory - 150,304 29,732 - 180,036
Miscellaneous assets - - - - -
Total current asseis 577,403 6,222,932 1,182,204 1,074,894 9,057,433
Non-current Assels:
Advances 10 other funds - - - 233,610 233,616
Land 6,570 27,718 - 34,288
Construction in Progress 280,250 4,922,178 - - 5,202,428
Capital assets subject
1o depreciation 24,303,056 83,497.974 5,942,087 2,929,504 116,672,621
Accumulated depreciation (4,661,681) {30,209,764) (3,420,119) {418,500) (38,770,064}
Total noncurrent assets 19,928,195 58,178,106 2,521,968 2,744,620 83,372,889
Total Assels 20,505,598 64,401,038 3,704,172 3,819,514 92,430,322
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 42,685 666,691 146,513 272 856,161
Accrued payrol) - 16,930 73,126 769 90,825
Accrued payroll fringe - 7,688 32,900 60 40,648
Accrued interest 14,544 74,102 4,380 93,026
Current portion of long-term debt
Revenue debt:
Bonds and loans 57,584 664,661 25,162 747,407
Advances from other funds 3,285 57,931 - 61,216
Compensated absences - 45,910 32,493 - 78,403
Due to other funds - 5,050,776 - 47,901 5,118,677
Miscellanecus liabilities 221 292,039 - - 292.260
Total current liabilities 118,319 6,876,728 314,574 69,002 7,378,623
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Cash advance due to General Fund 800,000 500,000 2,285,582 3,585,582
Long term debt:
Revenue debt:
Bonds and loans 4,161,207 10,490,648 475,926 - 15,127,781
Advance from other funds 152,898 19,503 - - 172,401
Compensated absences - 244,773 416,896 661,669
Total noncurrent liabilities 5,114,105 11,254,924 3,178,404 - 19,547,433
Tota)] Liabilities 5,232,424 18,131,652 3,492,978 69,002 26,926,056
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assels,
net of related debt 15,553,221 46,945,363 2,020,880 2,511,004 67,030,468
Restricted for debt service - 167,898 - - 167,898
Unrestricted (280,047} (843,875) (1,809,686) 1,239,508 (1,694,100)
Total Net Assets $ 15273174 $ 46,269,386 S 211,194 5 3,750,512 3 63,504,266

The netes 1o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY. MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIFTARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Allegany Allegany Allepany
County County County Other
Walter Sanitary Nursing Enterprise
OPERATING REVENUES: Districts [hstricis Home Funds Total
Service charges $ 0 1,379.404 $ 5381789 - S 53,667 $ 6814920
Patient fees - - 9,030,901 - 9,030,901
Miscellaneous 498 - 33.608 17.833 51939
Total Operating Revenues 1.379.962 5,381,789 9.064,509 71,500 15,897.760
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries 143,604 746.040 4135896 22308 5.047.848
Emplovee benefits 66,854 154,021 2,384,709 1,733 2,807.317
Office expenses - 45,254 129392 5,431 120,077
Litilities 751,030 1425395 228.142 7.757 2,412,324
Repairs & maintenance 37.126 321.687 148,192 3.45] 530,456
Confractual services - 29.821 24,651 23757 80.239
Treatment costs - 1,653,585 - - 1,653,585
Professional services 1.300 21,281 999,845 2171 1,024,597
Materals and supplies 11,069 211,424 893,670 1.116,163
[nsurance 316 127.501 157,241 - 285058
[ndirect cost 37.618 209,512 285,528 532.058
Misceilangous - 23300 21,956 - 45,256
Depreciation 501,334 1.777.473 219,096 418,500 2,916.403
Total operating expenses 1.570.251 6.946.304 9.628.318 487,108 18,631,981
Operating Income (Loss) (190,289 (1.564.515) {563.809) (415,608) {2.734,221)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
Real and personal property taxes 732.256 - 732,256
Interest & penalties on taxes 20.276 - 20,276
Discounts on taxes - (3.495) ~ (3.495)
Enterprise/industrial exemptions - 23 - - 23
Collection fees (16.693) - - {16.693)
Front foolage assessments - 103.233 - - 103,233
Interest income 31,479 142,393 1220 - 181.008
Interest income. debt service - 3.320 - 3,320
Interest expense (181,207) (190.715) {28.965) (400.887)
Loss on sale of capital assets - - -
Other income {expense) 19,348 703y - - 26.387
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) {130,380} 797.637 (21.739) - 645.518
Income (Loss) before contributions
and transfers {320,669 (766.878) (585.548) (415.608) (2,088,703}
Capial contributions:
Federal grants 339318 492.459 831,777
State grants 2,728.860 - 2.728.86U
Transfers:
Transfer in. operating 12,922 45772 - - 58,694
Transfer out. operating, - - - {155,589} {155,589
Change in net assels 31.571 2,500,213 (585,548) (571.197) 1.375.039
Total net assets - beginming
ag restated, see Note 16 15,241,603 43,769,173 796,742 4,321,709 64,126,227
Total net assets - ending $ 15273174 $ 46269386 211,194 $ 3,750,512 $ 65,504,260

The notes to the financial stalements are an integral part of this statement.




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Allegany Allegany Allegany
County County County Other
Waler Sanitary Nursing Enterprise
Cash flows from operating activities: Dhstricts Districts Home Funds Total
Cash received from customers S 1,313,656 § 5,252,783 $  9,187,84) b3 41,971 S 15,796,253
Cash payments for goods and services {884,534) (4.153.163) {2,967,791) (44,294) (8.049,782)
Cash payments 10 employees for services (210,439} (1,125,671} (6,725,991) (23,212) (8,085.333)
Other operating revenues 718 38,856 33,607 - 73,181
Net cash provided by operating
activities 219,281 12,807 (472,334) {25,535} (265,681)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Advances from other funds 3,741,426 23,784,205 10,857,887 507,947 38,891,465
Advances to other funds (4,064,230) {21,558,144) (10,274,180} (326,823) (36,223,377}
Transfers from other funds 12,922 45,772 - 58,694
Transfers to other funds - - {155,589} (155,389)
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities (309.882) 2,271,833 583,707 25,535 2,571,193
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Praceeds from new debt 324,872 642,054 - 966,926
Acguisition and construction
of capital assets (379,184) (7,713,507) {335,168) - (8,427.859)
Principal paid en capital debt (56,268) (736,555) (23.911) - {816,734)
[nterest paid on capital debt {181.281) {195.552) (26,860) (403,693)
Proceeds from sale of assets - - - - -
Grant revenues 339,318 4,615,773 - 4,955,091
Debt fees 19,348 876,998 - 896,346
Net cash used for capital and related
financing activities 66,805 {2,510,789) {385,939) - {2,829,923)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of invesiments (173,140} (226,271) (1,288,444) - {1,6087,855)
Sale of investments 170,202 222,422 1,554,882 - 1,947,506
[nterest on invesiments 26,634 138,774 8,128 173,536
Net cash used in investing activities 23,090 134,925 274,566 433,187
Net increase (decrease) in cash - {91,224) - - {91,224)
Cash at beginning of the year - 948,305 1,200 949,505
Cash at end of year 3 - $ 857,081 $ 1,200 % - S 858,281
Reconciligtion of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) 5 (190,289) $  (1,564,515) $ (563,809) $ {415,608) §(2,734.221)
Adjustments 1o reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 501,334 1,777,473 219,096 418,500 2,916,403
Provision for uncollectible accounts {16) 13,003 457,789 - 470,776
Change in assels & liabilites:
{Increase) decrease in receivables {65,792) {103,150) (300,850) (29,528) {499,320)
(Increase) decrease in inventory - (15,558) 497 - (15,661)
{Increase} decrease in prepaids (1,093) (1,093
[ncrease (decrease) in acc'ts payable {25,856) (68,834) (78,578) 1,101 (172,167)
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll - (25,612} (205,386) - {23(,998)
Total adjustments 409,670 1,577,322 91,475 390,073 2,468,540
Met cash provided by
operating activities % 219,381 % 12,807 S (472,334) § (25,535) (265,681)
Schedule of noncash investing and financing achvities:
Contributions of assets from
other governments 2,929,504

The notes 1o the financial stalements are an integral part of this statement.




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
STATEMENT QF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Agency
ASSETS: Fund
Taxes levied for State:
Taxes receivable - State $ 334610
Bay restoration fee 150,625
Other receivables (25)
Taxes levied for Special Areas:
Lonaconing, Town of g 10,678
Midland, Town of 3,921
Westernport, Town of 35,290
Cumberland differential 6,220
Bel Air Special Tax Area 945
Bowling Green Fire Co. 2,902
Bedford Read Fire Co. 2,314
Bowling Green Special Tax Area 979
Cresaptown Ambulance 7722
Cresaptown Civic Imp. Assoc. 1,960
Cresaptown Fire Co. 8,042
Corriganville Light & [mp. 1,569
Ellerslie Special Tax Area 1,274
LaVale Volunteer Fire Dept. 6,909
LaVzle Rescue Squad 3458
LaVale Sanitary District 28,907
McCoole Special Tax Area 1,082
Moscow Light 458
Mit. Savage Special Tax Arca 987
Potomac Park Special Tax Area 1,165
Rawlings Fire Co. 1,753
Sub-total special areas 129,165
Due from other funds 158,293
Total Assets § 772,668
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable 5 308,893
AP Special Areas 129,165
Taxes payable - State 334,610
A/P Bay restoration fee 150,625
Total Liabilities $ 772,668

The notes o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2006

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A

Introduction

Allegany County, Maryland (the County) was established in 1789. The County in 1974 adopted
the Code Home Rule form of government provided in Article XI-F of the Maryland Constitution
and Article 25B of the Annotated Code of Maryland. Under this form of government, the Board
has the authority to enact, amend and repeal public local laws relating to the incorporation,
organization and government of the county, including laws authorizing the issuance and sale of
bonds to finance capital projects for the County. Each member of the Board has one vote and,
except for emergency bills, a simple majority of the Board 1s sufficient to enact any bill into law.

In 1996, the Commussioners adopted legislation making the County Administrator the Chief
Administrative Officer of Allegany County responsible to the Board and charged with the
administration of all County affairs. The Administrator will carry out the policies of the Board,
direct and supervise the administration of all departments and agencies and perform all duties
enumerated in the Allegany County Code Chapter 2, Article 1.

The executive offices of the County are located at the County Office Complex, 701 Kelly Road,
Cumberland, Maryland 21502. The County Commuissioners’ office telephone number is 301-
777-5911. The County’s website can be viewed at www.allconet.org.

The financial statements of Allegany County have been prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles {(GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 1s the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The significant County principles,
policies and procedures are summarized in the following Notes to the Financial Statements.

Reporting Entity

The reporting entity includes Allegany County’s departments and agencies (the prnimary
government) and its component units, entities for which the government is considered to be
financially accountable. Each discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate
column in the government-wide financial statements to emphasize that is legally separate from
Allegany County.

As a result of its evaluation, the County has concluded that the following are component units of
Allegany County and should be included in the reporting entity:

Blended Component Units — no external governmental units are blended in the combined
financial statements.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2006

Note I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

B.

E— R

Reporting Entity — continued

Discretely Presented Component Units — the component unit columns of the government wide
financial statements include the financial data of the County’s component units. They are
reported in a separate column to emphasize that they are legally separate from the County.

1.

The Board of Education — operates the public school system. The Board of Education
may not issue debt without the County’s approval and the County provides a significant
portion of the Board’s funding. The members of the board are elected by the voters of
Allegany County.

The Allegany County Library — operates the County’s Library system. The Library
System may not issue debt without the County’s approval. The County provides a major
portion of the Library’s funding and appoints the members of the board.

The LaVale Sanitary Commission — provides water and waste treatment facilities for
LaVale and surrounding areas. Allegany County has pledged its full faith and credit for
the debt of the LaVale Sanitary Commission. The governing board is appointed by the
County Commissioners. The County provides no operating subsidies to the LaVale
Sanitary Commission.

Allegany College of Maryland — offers two years of higher education to area residents.
The College 1s fiscally dependent on Allegany County which provides a significant
portion of the funding for its operations and the College can not issue debt without the
approval of the Allegany County Board of Commissioners. The College has elected to
report 1ts financial information in accordance with GASB 34 special-purpose government
type using the business-type activity model.

Complete financial statements of the individual component units can be obtained from their
respective administrative offices:

Admninistrative Offices:

Allegany County Board of Education LaVale Sanitary Commuission
108 Washington Street 1 Roselawn Avenue
Cumberland, Maryland 21502 LaVale, Maryland 21502
Allegany County Library System Allegany College

31 Washington Street 12401 Willowbrook Road
Cumberland, Maryland 21502 Cumberland, Maryland 21502
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2006

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

C.

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (1.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
changes in net assets) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely
to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is
reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary
government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes or
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for govemmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectable within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay the habilities of
the current period. For this purpose, the County considers property tax revenues to be available
if they are collected within 60 days of the year-end and a 90-day availability period is used for all
other general fund revenues. Other major revenue sources subject to accrual are income taxes,
federal and state grants, service charges and interest. All other governmental funds use a 6-
month availability period for revenue recognition. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
the payment is due.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2006

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

D.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - continued

The following is a description of the governmental fund types of the County:

l.

General fund — the general operating fund of the County. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those necessary to be accounted for in another fund

Special revenue funds — are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that
are legally restricted to expenditure for a specified purpose.

Capital projects funds — are used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by business-
type/proprietary funds).

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund 1s the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.

The Highway Fund accounts for the activities used to enhance and maintain the County’s
highway system. Though not required to be reported as a major fund, due to its relative size
and significance the County has elected to do so.

The Capital Improvements Project Fund accounts for most of the activity used to acquire or
construct capital assets for the County or on the behalf of other organizations.

The govemment reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water Distnicts Fund accounts for the activities of eleven individual water districts in
various unincorporated areas of the County.

The Sewer and Water Fund reports the activities of sixteen individual sewer and water
districts in various unincorporated areas of the County.

The Nursing Home Fund accounts for the operations of the County Nursing Home with
resources being provided by user’s charges paid either by the patient or Medicaid/Medicare
on behalf of the patient.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund type:

The Agency Fund accounts for taxes billed and collected for the State of Maryland, four
municipalities and seventeen special taxing districts.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2006

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

D.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation - continued

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and propretary fund financial statements to
the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the oprion of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this
same limitation. Allegany County has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government’s water
and sewer functions, the nursing home and various other functions of the government.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the
various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as
general revenues rather then as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprictary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the water and sewer funds are service charges, and the nursing
home’s principal operating revenue 1s service fees paid by the patient or the State of
Maryland/Federal Government on behalf of the patient. The water and sewer funds also
recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting
new customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales
and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, 1t is the County’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2006

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

E.

Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity

1.

Deposits and investments

The County’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

Article 95, Section 22 of the Annotated Code of Maryland authorizes the County to tnvest
surplus funds in bonds or in other obligations of which the full faith and credit of the United
States of America are pledged, obligations of federal government agencies issued in
accordance with an Act of Congress, repurchase agreements that are secured by any bond or
other obligation for the payment of which the full faith and credit of the United States are
pledged, any bank or banks in the State of Maryland, any savings and loan association, any
building and loan association, in interest-bearing time deposit; and/or savings accounts, or in
the Local Government Investment Pool.

Investments for the County, as well as for its component units, are reported at fair value.
Receivables and payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds”
(1.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-
current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are
reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide
financial statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund
balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not
avatlable for appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources.

All trade receivables of the enterprise funds are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.
The allowance accounts for trade accounts receivable for the water and sewer funds are
comprised of 50% of the balance six to nine months of age and 100% of account balances in
excess of nine months. The allowance accounts of the nursing home and loan fund are based
on the analysis of individual accounts the expected ability to collect those accounts, The
allowance for property taxes receivable 1s one-half of one percent of the annual levy and is
based on historical trends.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2006

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

E.

Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity — continued

2. Receivables and payables - continued

As of July 1, 1996, State law mandates owner-occupied residential property owners may
elect to pay real property taxes under a semiannual or annual payment schedule. The first
installment for a semiannual payment or the annual payment is due by September 30, and the
second Installment of a semiannual schedule is due December 31, of the tax year without
interest. Any unpaid installments after January 1 are charged interest of 1.5% monthly.
Property owners electing to pay real property taxes semiannually may not have delinquent
taxes on the property.

The assessment of all real and personal property for purposes of property taxation by the
County is the sole responsibility of the State Department of Assessments and Taxation. Real
property is valued at market value and is assessed at 100% of that value. The real estate
assessment of 100% is the resuit of The Maryland Truth in Taxation Act, Chapter 80 of the
Laws of Maryland of 2000 effective October 1, 2000. Pror to the law change, the
assessment was 40% of the market value. Real property tax rates were adjusted to make the
law revenue neutral. Tangible personal property is assessed at cost, less 10% depreciation
for each year held, to a minimum of 25% of cost. The County granted tax differential rates to
municipalities located within the County in accordance with Article 32A of the Annotated
Code of Maryland which reduced the tax rates for owners of municipal property. The
various tax rates for Allegany County for fiscal year 2006 are as follows:

Real Personal Property
Unincorporated 1.0007 2.5018
Barton 9727 24318
Cumberland 9309 2.3273
Frostburg 9366 2.3415
Lonaconing 9548 2.3870
Luke . 9516 2.3790
Midland 9727 24318
Westernport 9548 2.3870

. Inventories and prepaid items

All inventories are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements,
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2006

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

E.

Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity - continued

4, Restricted assets

Certain revenues of the County’s sewer funds are set aside for their repayment of loans used
to fund construction of sewer systems. They are classified as restricted assets on the balance
sheet because they are limited by State law and debt covenants to the repayment of debt or
construction.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or
business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets
are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $2,000
(550,000 for infrastructure assets) and an estimated useful life of two years or more. Such
assets are recorded at historical costs or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is
included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units,
are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Buildings 30-40
Sewer/Water Systems 30-50
Other infrastructure 30-40
Fumiture & Fixtures 7-10
Vehicles 5-7

Equipment 5-10
Heavy equipment 7-10
Other capital assets 7-50
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2006

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

E.

Assets, liabilities, and net assets or equity - continued

6. Compensated absences

It 1s the government’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation
and sick pay benefits. All vacation pay and sick pay is accrued when incurred in the
government-wide and proprictary fund financial statements. A lability for these amounts is
reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of
employee resignations and retirements.

A liability 1s accrued for certain future vacation, sick, and other leave benefits, provided the
following conditions are met:

a. The employer’s obligation relating to employees’ rights to receive compensation for
future absences is attributable to employees’ services already rendered.

b.  The obligation relates to rights that vest.

c. Payment of the compensation is probable and not contingent on a specific event
outstde the conirol of the County or the employee.

d. The amount can be reasonably estimated.

County employees earn vacation time depending upon their length of service and are eligible
to use this time in the year in which it is eamed. Vacation time may be carried from one year
to the next, but may not exceed 200% of the annual accrual at any point in time. Vacation
time earned when the 200% ceiling has been reached is accrued as sick time and remains as
such. All vacation time outstanding and earned upon leaving County service is paid to the
employee at the current salary level.

County employees earn fifteen sick leave days per year with no accumulation ceiling. [t is
the policy of the County to pay for up to 120 days, if earned, of sick leave accumulated, upon
the retirement of most employees. Any reduction in the liability for compensated absences is
charged to the fund and function where the employee’s time was charged which historically
has been the general fund, highway fund or the transit fund for the governmental funds and
the Sanitary Districts and the Nursing Home for the enterprise funds.

At June 30, 2006, compensated absence liabilities for Allegany County are summarized as
follows:

Current Long-term Total
Portion Portion Liability
Total Governmental Fund Types $ 738,447 $ 3,108,541 $ 3,847,008
Sanitary Districts 45910 244,773 290,683
Nursing Home 32,493 416,896 449,389
$ 816,870 $ 3,770,210 $ 4,587,080
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2006

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - continued

7. Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and propretary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type
statement of net assets. For debt acquired after July 1, 2003, bond premiums and discounts,
as well as 1ssuance costs, will be deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable will be reported net of the applicable bond
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs will be reported as deferred charges and
amortized over the term of the related debt.

8. Fund Classifications
Government-wide Statements
Equity is classified as net assets and displayed in three components:

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — Consists of capital assets including
restricted capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the
outstanding balances of any bonds, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to
the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

b. Restricted net assets — consists of net assets with constraints placed on the use either
by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations
of other governments; or (2) law through enabling legislation.

c. Unrestricted net assets — all other net assets that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “Investment in capital assets, net of related debt™.

Fund Statemnents
Govermment fund equity is classified as fund balance. Fund balance 1s further classified as

reserved and unreserved, with unreserved further split between designated and undesignated.
Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.
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Note 2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

A,

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
Government-wide statement of net assets.

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total
governmental funds and net assets — governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net assets. One element of that reconcilation explains that “long-term debt,
including compensated absences, 1s not due and payable in the current period and therefore is not
reported in the funds.” The details of this $34,130,300 are as follows:

Bonds payable $ 22,944,000
Notes payable 699,910
State loans 6,433,258
Capital leases 206,123
Compensated absences 3,847,009
Net adjustments to reduce fund balance - total

governmental funds to arrive at net assets — governmental

activities. $ 34,130,300

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities.

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
includes a reconciliation between net changes in fund balances—total governmental funds and
changes in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of
activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that “Governmental funds report capital
outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is
allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.” The details of
this $7,485,069 difference are as follows:

Capital outlay $10,589,653
Depreciation expense (3,104,584)
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances—iotal governmental

funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities $7.485,069
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Note 2. Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements - continued

Another element of that reconciliation states the “The net effect of various miscellaneous
transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is to increase net
assets.” The details of this $(1,399,489) difference are as follows:

In the statement of activities, only the gain on the sale of capital assets is
reported. However, in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sale
increase financial resources. Thus, the change in net assets differs from the
change in fund balance by the cost of the capital assets sold. (1,399.489)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances—total governmental
Jfunds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities. $(1,399,489)

Another element of that reconciliation states that “the issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds,
leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.
Nerther transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the
effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas
these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.”

The details of this $4,566,821 difference are as follows:

Debt issued or incurred:

Lease obligation (149,483)
Bond 1ssue costs, net of amortization 42
Principal repayments:

General obligation debt 4,660,468

[ease payments 55,794

Net adjustment to decrcase net changes in fund balances—total
governmental funds to amive at changes in net assets of governmental
activities $4,566,821

Another element of that reconciliation states that “Some expenses reported in the statement of
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds.” The details of this $(262,686) difference are as follows:

Compensated absences $(327.290)
Accrued interest adjustment, net 64,604

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances—total governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities $(262,680)
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Note 3. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

A. Budgetary Information

Annual budgets are adopted for all General, Special Revenue, Debt Service and Capital Project
Funds. All governmental fund budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). Encumbrances and appropriations generally lapse at year-end
and are treated as expenditures in the year the liability is incurred. Budgets are adopted for the
Enterprise Funds, though not required, on a revenue and expenditure basis to permit monitoring
of the financial activity. Budgets to actual comparisons are presented in this report for all the
primary government’s major governmental fund types. Budget-to-actual comparisons for the
non-major governmental funds, though not required, are presented as supplementary information
Budget-to-actual comparisons are not required for component units and the enterprise funds and
are not presented.

The County uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the
financial statements:

1. Prior to January 15, the County Administrator submits recommended budget guidelines
to the Board of Commissioners for their approval.

2. After receiving approval of the budget guidelines, the County Administrator and the
Director of Finance meet with the various departments and agencies to explain and
distnibute the guidelines,

3. The County Administrator and the Director of Finance compile all budget requests; after
making departmental and agency review of the requests, a recommended budget is
presented to the Board of County Commissioners for review and approval.

4. A public hearing is held to obtain public input and opinion of a preliminary budget.

5. Under Local Code Home Rule, the property tax rate must be set by June 30, and by that
time, the budget is publicly adopted by the County Commissioners.

6. During the year supplemental appropriations shall be made by public approval of the
Board of Commissioners. Supplemental appropriations in the General Fund for fiscal
year 2006 were increased by $1.6 million; the majority of the increase was due to
increases in funding for public safety and was funded by grants. Other matenal
supplemental appropriations were an Increase of $686,000 for the Community
Development Block Grant Fund due to the approval of grants for lead hazard contro] and
a sewer project. The increased budgeted appropriation of $387,834 in the debt service
fund was made to reflect the payoff of a Maryland Industrial Land Act loan made during
the year.

7. During the year, budget amendments within a department are approved by the Director of
Finance. Budget amendments between departments and/or funds require Commisstoner
public approval.

8. Legally, total expenditures for all individual governmental funds may not exceed the total
budget for a particular fund except for emergencies, state-mandated programs, or by
approval of a majority of the Board of Commissioners.
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Note 3. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability - continued

A. Budgetary Information - continued

9. Appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year for all funds, except the Capital
Project Funds, and certain federal grants that do not have a year-end date of June 30.

10.  Budget monitoring is the responsibility of the Finance Department and the
appropriate department head.

The County has elected not to employ the use of encumbrance accounting for financial reporting
purposes. The County utilizes an encumbrance-based accounting system for internal reporting.
However, these encumbrances lapse at year-end. Accordingly, the County does not prepare
budgetary basis statements of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance.

B. Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations

For the year ended June 30, 2006, expenditures exceeded appropriations for the following funds
(the legal level of budgetary control):

Fund Excess
Community Development Block Grant Fund $3.419
Drug Task Force Fund 2,898

e The expenditures over budget in the Community Development Block Grant Fund were
funded by unbudgeted block grants approved after the start of the fiscal year.

¢ The Drug Task Force excess expenditures over budget were funded by the unexpended
fund balance which existed at the beginning of the year.

C. Deficit Fund Equity

The Community Development Block Grant Fund had a deficit balance at June 30, 2006 of
$23,476. The deficit was the result the County not receiving the revenue (grant reimbursement)
within the accrual period for the modified accrual basis of accounting for cost incurred prior to
year-end. The Capital Improvements Project Fund had a deficit balance of $366,710. The
deficit was the result of revenues not being subject to accrual for expenditures made for the flood
wall in the Upper Potomac Industrial Park and Highland Trail project which are funded by
Federal and State grants.
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Note 4. Deposits and Investments

Allegany County Primary Government:
As of June 30, 2006, the County had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturity in Months
Fair Less
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-6 6-12

Certificates of Deposit § 7.621,198 $ 7,822,033 $ 4,108,473 $ -

Interest Rate Risk. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses ansing from interest rates,
the County’s investment policy prohibits investments that mature more than 2 years from the date of
purchase. However, the County may collateralize its repurchase agreements using longer dated
investments. Reserve funds may be invested in secunties exceeding 2 years if the maturity of such
investments is made to coincide as nearly as practicable with the expected use of the funds.

Credit Risk - The County investment policy and State law requires collateralization of 102% of market
value of investments. ARTICLE 95, Section 22of the Annotated Code of Maryland authorizes the
County to invest surplus funds in bonds or in other obligations of which the full faith and credit of the
United States of America are pledged, obligations of federal government agencies issued in accordance
with an Act of Congress, repurchase agreements that are secured by any bond or other obligation for the
payment of which the full faith and credit of the United States are pledged, any bank or banks in the
State of Maryland, any savings and loan association, any building and loan association, in interest-
bearing time deposit; and/or savings accounts, or in the Local Government Investment Pool. Allegany
County is In compliance with its mvestment policy and State law having all deposits and investments
collateralized at 102% of market value with bonds or other obligations secured by the full faith and
credit of the United States.

Concentration of Credit Risk - The County investment policy limits investments of the portfolio to 5%
of Bankers Acceptances, 5% to money market mutual funds, and 5% to commercial paper. The County
investment policy complies with Maryland state law limits.

Custodial Credit Risk. Deposits and investments are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not
covered by depository insurance and the deposits are:
a. Uncollateralized
b. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or
c. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or
agent but not in the depositor-government’s name

The County carries its investments at fair value. Investments consist entirely of nonparticipating
contracts (nonnegotiable certificates of deposit) with maturities of less than one year.
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Note 4. Deposits and Investments - continued

Allegany County Discretely Presented Component Uhnits;

Allegany County Board of Education

Cash deposits — At year-end, the carrying amount of the Board’s deposits was $9,008,121
and the bank balances were $9,646,173. Of the bank balances, $432,442 was covered by
depository insurance; $9,213.731 was covered by collateral held at various banks in the
Board’s name.

Investments - As of June 30, 2006, the Board of Education had the following investments
and maturnties:

Investment Maturity (in months)
Less than More than
investment Type Total 1 1-6 6-12 12
U.8. Government obligations $ 5495250 3 - $ 2495250 $ 1,000,000 § 2,000,000
Cenificates of Deposit 625,342 - 169,486 124,786 331,070
3 6,120,592 b - 5 2,664,736 S 1,124,786 § 2,331,010

Allegany County Library System

Cash — Risks and Policies
As of June 30, 2006, the carrying amount of the Library’s deposits was $54,350.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that in the event of a bank failure the
Library’s deposits may not be returned of the Library will not recover collateral securities
in the possession of an outside party. The Library’s policy requires deposits with
financtal institutions to be fully secured by collateral. The Library’s cash balances at
financial institutions at June 30, 2006 are fully collateralized with securities held by the
Library’s agent in the Library’s name.

Investments — Risks and Policies

As of June 30, 2006, the Library had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturity
Less than 90 Days Qver Credit

Investment Type Total 90 Days to One Year One Year Rating
U.S. Treasury Bonds kY 16,704 S - 3 16,704 g - N/A
Qiher Federal Government

QObtigations 221,920 - - 221.920 NIA
[nvestment in MD Local

Government Fund Pool 687,815 687,815 - - N/A

$ 926,439 § 687815 $ 16,704 § 221,920
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Note 4. Deposits and Investments - continued

Allegany County Discretely Presented Component Units:

Allegany County Library System {Continued)

Credit Risk 1s the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations. The Library investment policy specifies with the exception of U.S.
Treasury securities and authorized pools, no more than 5% of Bankers acceptance, 5% of
money market mutual funds and 5% to commercial paper.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Investments held for longer periods are subject to increased risk
of adverse interest rate changes. The Library policy provides that to the extent
practicable, investments are matched with anticipated cash flows. Unless matched to a
specific cash flow, the Library will not directly invest in securities maturing more than
one year from the date of purchase. Reserve funds may be invested in securities
exceeding one year if the maturity of such investments are made to coincide as nearly as
practicable with the expected use of the funds.

Concentration of Credit Risk is the risk of loss attrbuted to the magnitude of the
Library’s investment in a single issuer. With the exception of U.S. Government
securities and authorized pools, the Library may not invest in no more than 5% of
Bankers Acceptance, 5% of money market mutual funds, and 5% of commercial paper.
The Library’s investment policy complies with Maryland State Law limits.

Custodial Credit Risk is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the
Library will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities n
the possession of an outside party. Library policy provides that investment collateral 1s to
be held by a third party custodian with whom the Library has a current custodial
agreement in the Library’s name. All of the Library’s investments are collateralized with
securities held by the Library’s agent in the Library’s name. The Library is in
compliance with its investments policy and State law having all deposits and investments
collateralized at 102% of market value with bonds and other obligations secured by the
full faith and credit of the United States.

LaVale Sanitary Commission

Cash deposits — At year-end, the carrying amount of the LaVale Sanitary Commission’s
cash deposits was $1,417,640. The entire bank balance was either covered by federal
depository insurance or by pledged government securities. The commission held no
mvestments at year end.
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Note 4. Deposits and Investments - continued

Allegany County Discretely Presented Component Units - continued:

Allegany College

Cash deposits — At year-end, the carrying amount of the primary entity’s cash deposits
was $799,562. The bank balance was fully collateralized with securities held by the
college’s agent in the College’s name.

Less Than 90 Days
Investment Type Total 90 Days To One Year
Certificates of deposit § 3,202,155 $ - S 3,202,155
Repurchase agreements of
U.S. Government obligations 1,082,893 1,082,893 -
Maryland Local Government
Investment Pool 1,100,753 1,100,753

$ 5,385,801 $ 2,183,646 S 3,202,155

Note 5. Property Taxes Receivable

Property taxes are levied each July 1 and due on or before September 30 of that year. Unpaid property
taxes attach as an enforceable lien on the property as of October 1. Property tax assessments are
performed by the State of Maryland on which the County bills and collects its property taxes.

Property tax receivable at June 30, 2006 was $2,988,363 (net an allowance of $150,000) of which
$1,770,572 were current year’s taxes receivable and the balance of $1,277,791 was prior years’ unpaid
taxes.

Note 6. Other Recetvables

Recelvables, other than property taxes receivable and loans to the County’s enterprise funds, as reported
in the Statement of Net Assets as of the year end for the County’s individual major funds, non-major
funds in the aggregate and the individual enterprise funds consist of the following:

Capatal Non-major
Govemmental General Highway OCYF Projects Govemmental
Activilies: Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
Receivahles:
Interest § 32412 8 - M) - b 2,329 $ 33,359 $ 68,100
Income taxes 1,791,488 - - - 1,791,458
Other taxes 88.391 714,269 22.324 324,984
Current:
Accrued revenues 1,713,478 1.113 - 836,807 1,028.554 3.579.952
Loans, notes - - - - 152,173 152,173
f.eases. capital - - - - 156.064 156,064
Long-term:
Accrued revenues 1,303,757 - - 1,597,154 2,900,911
Loans, notes - - . - 2.502.035 2,502,035
Leases, capiial - - - - 1,289,999 1,289,999
Total receivables $ 4,929,526 $ 715,382 b - $2.436,290 S 5,184,508 $13,265.706
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Business-type Water Sewer Nursing Non-Major
Activities: Districts Districts Home Enterprise Funds Total
Receivables:
inlerest § 4985 § 4,602 3 56| $ - $ 9,643
Accounts, other - 162,761 - 1,851 164,612
Accounts, trade 441,950 1,313,418 1,893,240 - 3,048,608
Less allowance (46,202) (145,896) (850,000) - (1,042,158)
Net accounts, trade 395,688 1,167,522 1,043,240 - 2,606,450
Accounts, restricted - 176,694 - - 176,694
Less allowance - (8,796) - - (8,796)
Net accounts, restricted - 167,898 - - 167,898
Loans - - - 648,074 648,074
Less allowance - - - (250,000) (250,000}
Net loans - - - 198,074 398,074
Total receivables § 400,673 $ 1,502,783 $ 1,043296| $ 369,925 $ 3,346,677

Leases — Operating and Capital.

The County, as part of its economic development efforts, has constructed numerous shell
buildings which are sold (capital leases) or rented (operating leases) to varnious employers. The
amount of capital lease payments and future minimum non-cancelable operating lease payments
due each of the next five years and beyond is as follows:

Capital Leases Operating Leases
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Minimum Payments
2007 § 166,676 § 91,757 $ 258,433 § 378,554
2008 178,010 80,423 258,433 325,464
2009 190,117 68,316 258,433 134,136
2610 203,049 55,384 258,433 80,5114
2011 146,853 42,837 189,650 86,511
2012- 561,356 90,091 651,447 518,356
Totals 3 1,446,061 $ 428,808 $ 1,874,869 $ 1,523,532

The net book value of buildings with operating leases at June 30, 2006 is $2,047,062.
Unearned Revenues:

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that
are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Governmental
funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received, but
not vet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unearned
revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Delinquent property taxes receivable, General Fund $ 2,816,816
Grants/revenues received prior to meeting eligibility requirements:
Homeland security grant, General Fund 66,671
Flood mitigation grant, Capital Projects Fund 68,073
Cormmunity Development Block Grant Fund 62,760
Community Development & Housing Fund 107,633
Revolving Building Fund 151,500
53273453
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Note 6. Other Receivables - continued

Loans receivable:

The following table summarizes the loan receivable balances in the County Loan Fund at

June 30, 2006:

Source Balance
Entity of funds June 30, 2006
Loans:
Fire Compantes General Fund S 11,643
Western Maryland Scenic Railroad Gen Fund/FIB of 1988 250,000
City of Frostburg PI1B of 1991 28,735
YMCA General Fund 106,000
Paving project General Fund 56,962
Agriculture Expo Building (1) General Fund 13,595
Agrniculture Expo Building {2) General Fund 80,229
Agriculture Expo Building {3) General Fund 17,544
TWR Loan General Fund ]
Upper Potomac Industrial Park fleod wall loang General Fund 34,352
Allowance for doubtful accounts (250,000)
Total § 343,060

The County has established a Loan Fund to account for the long-term receivables due from other
entities and the proprietary funds. Except for the payments received from fire companies, which

is a revolving pool, the cash receipts are transferred to the General Fund, as they become
available.
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Note 7. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2006 was as follows:

Primary Government: Beginning Transfers Ending
Governmental activities: Balance Increases Decreases In (Qun) Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $15,773,610 3 391,206 $ (73,302 $ 1,530,247 $17,621,761
Work in Progress 4,707,638 8,129.564 - (5,692.366) 7,144,836
Tota! capital assets not being depreciated: 20,481,248 8,520,770 (73,302 {4,162,119) 24,766,597
Capilal assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 43,251,296 127,372 (2,122,638) 41,256,030
Infrastructure 35,871,506 161,138 - 4,162,119 40,154,763
Furniture & Fixtures 952,127 (371,160} - 580,967
Equipment 4,390,180 455,291 - - 4,845,471
Vehicies 5,991,516 1,080,765 (448,879) 7,623,402
Heavy Equipment 3,380,880 221,117 (153,614) - 3,448,383
Other Fixed Assets 874,393 23.200 - 897,593
Total capital assets, being depreciated: 95,711.898 2,068.883 (3,096,291 4,162,119 98.846.60%
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (11,759,303 (1,405,595) 833,359 (12,331,539)
Infrastructure (24,783.601) (532,334) - - (25,315,935)
Furniture & Fixtures (777.305) (58,087) 355,695 {479,697)
Equipment (2,816,181) (355,075) - (3,171,256)
Vehicles (5,484,722) (536,440} 447,374 - (5,573,788)
Heavy Equipment (2,557,836) {190,425) 133,676 - (2,614,585)
Other Fixed Assels (375,304) (26,628) - (401,932)
Total accumulated depreciation (48,554,252 ~(3.104.584 1,770,104 - {49.,888,732)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net: 47,157.646 _(1,035701) {1,326,187) 4,162.319 48.957 877
Governmental activities capital assets, net $67,638,894 § 7,485.069 $ (1,399,489) 3 - $73,724,474 J
Primary Government: Ending Transfers Ending
Business-type activities: Baiance Inereases Decreases In {Qut) Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 34,288 $ - § - b - § 34,288
Work in Progress 2,994,814 7.447 966 (5,240,352 5,202,428
Total capital assezs not being depreciated: 3,029,102 7,447.966 - (5,240,352) 5,236,716
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 3,316,290 2,951 276,200 3,595,441
Infrastructure 68,237,455 8£5.664 4,964,152 103,287,27]
Fumiture & Fixtures 1,486,430 32,795 ~ 1,519,225
Equipment 1,733,584 2,977,381 (7} - 4,710,958
Vehicles 706,112 36,565 742,677
Heavy Equipment 295,771 39.218 - - 334,980
Other Fixed Assets 2,482,060 - 2,482 060
Total capital assets, being depreciated: 108,257,702 3,174,574 (7) 5,240,352 116.672.621
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (1,700,714) (93,307) (1,794,021
Infrastructure (30,733,429} (2,052,337) - - (32,785,760)
Fumiture & Fixtures (851,397} (78,222} - (929,61%)
Equipment (1,300,598} (520,581) (1 - (1,821,180)
Vehicles (481,318) (63,757) {545,075)
Heavy Equipment (204,266) (17,051 - - (22117
Other Fixed Assels (581,938) (91,148) - (673,086)
Teoial accumnulated depreciation (35,853,660 {2.916,403) (1) - (38,770.064)
Total capital assets, being deprecialed, net: 72,404,042 258,171 8 5,240,352 77,902,557
Business-type aclivities capital assets, net $75,433,144 § 7,706,137 $ @)J $ - $83.139,273
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Note 7. Capital Assets - continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government, as reported
in the statement of activities, for the year ended June 30, 2006 as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government § 507,547
Public safety 795,877
Public works 1,099,935
Health 60,702
Socizal services 37,585
Recreation, culture and libraries 162,683
Natural resources 2,355
Community development and housing 25,713
Economic development 412,187

Tota] depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 3,104,584

Business type activites:

Water districts $ 501,334
Sewer districts 1,777 473
Nursing Home 219,096
Allconet [1 418,500

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 2,916,403

Construction Commitments

The County has active construction projects as of June 30, 2006. The projects include industrial
park infrastructure, a wastewater treatment plant upgrade, and a new water district. At year end
the County’s commitments with contractors are as follows:

Remaining
Project Spent-to-date Commitment
Niners Lane Sewer Project $ 261,222 5 24910
Micro-Integration Building 71,4960 24,504
Barton Industrial Park SewageTreatment Plant 1,731,640 101,650
NRCS Fleod Project 126,241 7.859
Patomac River Water Study 22,950 29,705
Allegany Highlands Trail 590,105 2,572,684
Cresaptown/Bowling Green [&I Design 1,600,499 910,362
Georges Creek [&] Design 290,076 27,056
Celanese Headworks 1,673,745 90,309
Morantown Water 641,461 26,980
Celanese Waste Water Treatment Plant 13,021,481 23,049
Totals $ 20,030,916 § 3,839,068

Funding for all projects is a combination of federal and/or state grants and a local share funded
by long-term debt. Funding for the projects was in place prior to the commencement of
construction.
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JUNE 30, 2006

Discretely Presented Component Units:

Capital asset activity for the Board of Education of Allegany County for the year ended June 30,

2006, was as follows:

Board of Education Beginning Ending
Governmental activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 2,377,989 S 180,000 $ - $ 2,557,989

Work in process 3 1.460.820 12.513.524 5 (344.078) 13.036.275
Total capital assets not being depreciated: 3.844.818 12,693,524 (344,078 16.194.264 |
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Land Improvements - 33125 43,880 77,011

Buildings & [Improvemenis 108,596,572 1,553,978 {43,886) 110,106,664

Furniture, Equipment & Vehicles 7.158.47% 900,815 {37.82]) 8,021.473
Total capital assets, being depreciated: 115,755,051 2,487,918 (37.821) 118,205,148 |
Less accumulated depreciaticn for:

Land {mprovements - (3.102) (1,594) (4.696)

Buildings & Jmprovements (60,384,819) (3,269,266) 1,594 (63,652,491)

Fumiture, Equipment & Vehicles (5,105.302) (468.340) 30.761 (5.542 881)
Total accumulated depreciation (65,490,121) (3.740,708) 30.761 {65,200,068)]
Tatal capital assets, being depreciated, net: 50,264,930 {1.252.750) (7.0860) 49,005,080
Govermmental activities capital assets, net £54,109,748 $11.,440,734 §  (351.138) 65.199.344
Board of Education Beginning Ending
Business-type activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Furniture, Equipment & Vehicles § 3,966,657 § 43,703 3 {3.471,806) § 538,554

Less accumulated depreciation (918,072 (38.285) 571.279 {385,078}
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 3,048,585 5y 5418 $ (2.900,527) 5 153,476

Capital asset activity for the Library of Allegany County for the year ended June 30, 2006 was as

follows:

Library Beginning Ending
Governmental activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings & Improvements $ 3,277,220 $ - $ - § 1,277,220
Fumniture & Equipment 920,451 26,212 (9.443) 946,220
Vehicles/Bookmobile 127,198 15,515 (105,821 36,392
Library Books 4,204.211 184.139 (181,893} 4,206,457
Total capilal assets, being depreciated: 8,538,080 225,866 (297,157) 8,466,789
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Bwldings & IJmprovements (784,601) (65,544) - {850,205)
Furniture & Equipment (402,339) (92,507 9,443 (485,403)
Vehicles/Bookmobile (113,876) (5,351) 100,243 (18,984)
Library Books (3,702,952 {140,382) 155.263 (3.688.041)
Total accumulated depreciation (5.003.828 {303,784 264,579 (5,042,633)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net: § 3.534.252 $  {77.918) 8 (32.178) $ 3,424,156
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Note 7. Capital Assets - continued

Discretely Presented Component Units - continued:

Capital asset activity for Allegany College of Maryland and its component units for the vear
ended June 30, 2006, were as follows:

Allegany College of Maryland Beginning Ending
Business-type activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets. not being depreciated:

Land $ 515263 $ 196,850 3 {11,140} $§ 700,973

Work in Progress 1,484,976 7,181,629 (8,112,592) 554,013
Total canital assets nol being depreciated: 2.000.239 7.378.479 (8.123.732) 1,254,986
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings 31.479.502 9,051,932 40,531 834

Equipment 5.407,554 565,397 (117,500) 5,855.451

Auxiliary Equipment 191,222 - - 191,222

Library Books 949.043 64,074 {15,303) 997.814
Tatal capital asscls. being depreciated: 38,027,721 9.681.402 (132,80 47,576,321
Less accumulated depreciation : {15911.519 (1,351,721) 127,003 (l?,336.237)]
Total capiial assets, bemng depreciated, net: 22,116,202 8,128,682 (5.800) 30.240.084
Business-type activities capital assels, net §24,116,441 $15,508,161 $ (8,129,532} $31,495,070

Capital asset activity for the LaVale Sanitary Commission for the year ended June 30, 2006, was
as follows:

LaVale Sanitary Commission Beginning Ending
Business-iype activities: Balance increases Decreases Balance
Capital assets. not being deprectated:

Land $ 176385 $ - 3 - $ 176385

Work n Progress 321,080 1,788,338 (201.320) 1,907,898
‘Total capital asscts not being depreciated: 497.465 1.788,338 (201.,520) 2,084,283
Capital assets, being depreciared:

Buildings 516945 - - 516945

Infrastructure 14,530,936 307,725 - 14,838,601

Machinery, Vehicles & Equipment 1,020,991 35,946 (24.312) 1,032,625

Oftice Forniture and Eqipment 74,430 34,819 - 109,249
Tatal capital assets, being depreciated: 16,143,302 178490 (24.312) 16,497 480
I ess accumulated depreciation for: (7.438.749) (437,773 (7,876.522)
Total capita] assets. being depreciated. net: 8.704.553 (59.283) (24.312) 8,620,958
Business-type activities capital assets, net § 9.202018 $ 1.729.055 $  (225832) $10,705.241
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Note 8. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2006, is as follows:

A. Due to/from other funds
Due From Due To
Other Funds Other Funds
Governmental funds:
General Fund i) -1 % 3,700,790
Highway Fund 1,051,707 -
Capital Improvement Projects Fund - 594,088
Non-major Governmental Funds 4,687,743 649,238
Sub-total 5,739,450 4,944,116
Enterprise Funds:
Water Districts 3,590 -
Sanitary Districts 31,486,492 5,050,776
Non-major Enterprise Funds 674,969 67,901
Sub-total 4,165,051 5,118,677
Fudiciary Funds:
Rounding
Agency Fund 158,293 -
Rounding - |
TOTALS $ 10,062,794 | $ 10,062,794
The interfund balances as of June 30, 2006 are the result of a centralized cash receipt and
disbursement function. This results in funds having a deficiency or excess of cash
depending on the timing of the receipt of revenues or other sources and/or the payment of
expenditures (or expenses) or other uses of cash.
B. Advances and Loans To/From Other Funds
Advances o Advances {rom
Other Funds (her Funds
Advances:
General Fund S 3,585,582
Nursing Home Fund $ 2,285,581
Sanitary Districts 500,000
Water Districts 800,000
Loans:
Loan Fund 233610
Allegany County Sanitary Districts:
Current portien of long-term debt 57,931
Long-term debt 19,503
Allegany County Water Districts:
Current portion of long-term debt 3,283
Long-term debt 152,898
S 3,819,168 3 3,819,198

The amounts owed to the General fund from the Nursing Home and Sanitary District Funds and
the amounts owed to the County Loan Fund from the Sanitary District and Water District Funds
are reported as advances to indicate that such amounts are long-term assets and are not to be
considered as “available spendable resources.”
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Note 8. Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers - continued

C. Transfers

Transfers to other funds for the year ending June 30, 2006 are as follows:

Transferred From: Total By
Transferred To: Amount Fund
From the General Fund 1o
Highway Fungd $ 1,661,715
Capital Projects Fund 1.400.356
Naon-major funds govemmental funds 5.528,71)
Enterprise funds: )
Water Fund 12.922
Sewer Fund 45772 | $ 8.649.49¢6
From the Non-major Funds lo:
General Fund 46,005
Highway Fund -
Capiial Projects Fund 424,899
Other Non-major governmental fund 1,341,202 1,812,106
Frem the County Loan Fund 1o
General Fund 155,589 155,589
TOTALS $ 10617191 1§ 10,617,191

Transfers from the General Fund to the Highway Fund were to fund the portion of highway
expenditures not funded by revenues restricted for highway maintenance. General Fund
transfers to the Capital Project fund and the non-major govemmental funds were to fund the
local share of grant funded programs, pay debt service and fund the local share of capital
projects. Transfers to the enterprise funds were to assist in operating costs, The transfers from
the Loan Fund to the General Fund and Capital Projects fund were to reimburse monies
advanced in the past for the operation of the Loan Fund which were no longer required.

Payments to component units for the year ending June 30, 2006 are as follows:

Payment From: Total By
Payment To: Amount Fund Type
From the Generat Fund (appropriations) to:
Board of Education $ 26,630,000
Board of Education, Daia Processing 294 847
Allegany College of Maryland 5.975.000
Library 835,000 $ 33.734,847

From the County Capitzl Projecis Funds 10:
Beard of Education:

Eckhart School Roof 40,189
Allconet 11 238,15]
Mountain Ridge High Schoal 322,783
John Humbird Scheel 31.412
Allegany College of Maryland
Gateway Center 35,000 667,735

$ 34,402,582 $ 34,402,582
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Note 9. Short-term Debt

Allegany County did not issue short-term debt during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006 and had no
balance payable at year end.

Note 10. Long-Term Debt, Capital Leases and Compensated Absences

Long-term liability activity of the County for the year ended June 30, 2006, was as follows:

Lonp-term Debt

Governmental Activities

Beginning Amount Amount Ending Due Within
Balance Issued Retired Balance One Year
General Obligation $  26.596,000 h) - 3 (36520000 5 22944000 $ 3.492,000
Notes 784,473 - (84,563) 699910 89,027
Capital Leases 112,435 149,481 (55.793) 206,123 79,194
State Loans 7,357,164 - (923.906) 6,433,258 507,101
Total $ 34,850,072 b 149,481 $ (4.716.262) $§ 30,283,291 $ 4,167,322
Business-tvpe activities
Beginning Amount Amount Ending Due Within
Water districts: Balance [ssued Retired Balance One Year
Rural deveiopment loans $ 4,103,242 $ 169,166 S (53,017) 5§ 4.218,791 $ 57,584
County loans 3,130 154.872 (L.819) 156,183 3,285
Total water gistriicts $ 4,106,372 $ 324,038 b3 (55436) $_ 4374974 $ 60,869
Sewer districts:
Maryland water quality loans S 1,264,161 b - § (204892) & 1.0592069 $ 215,122
Maryland environmental loans 8,913,746 321,768 (156,881) 9,078,633 432,071
Rural development loans 1,034,042 - {16,636) 1,017,406 17,468
County leans 115,254 19.823 {57,682) 77.435 57,931
Tatal sewer districls S 11,327,243 3 341,591 $  (436.091) $ 11,232,743 % 722,592
Nursing Home
Generzi obligation debt $ 525,000 b - $ (23912 % 501,088 $ 25,162
Total business-type activities:
General obligation debt 5 525,000 ) - $ (23912 § 501,088 3 25,162
Maryland water quality loans 1,264,161 - (204,892 1,059,269 215,122
Maryland environmenial loans 8,913,746 321.768 (156,881) 9,078,633 432,071
Rural development loans 5,137,284 169,166 (70,253) 3,236,197 75,052
County loans 118,424 174,695 (39.501) 233618 61,216

Towal business-type activities S 15958615 S 665,629 $ (515439 S 16,108,805 $ 808.623

Other Long-term Liabilities

Governmental Activities

Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Additions Reductions Balance Ong Year

Compensated Absences $ 3519718 S 448.665 $  (121,375) S 3.847.008 $ 738,467

Business-type activities

Water & sewer districts

Carmnpensated absences 3 278,590 ) 34,133 $ (22040) S 290,683 $ 45910

Nursing Home
Compensated Absences 452,153 10,612 (13.376) 446,389 32,493
Total 3 730,743 $ 44,745 $ (354165 § 740072 $ 78,403
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Note 10. Long-Term Debt, Capital Leases and Compensated Absences - continued

Annual debt service requirements to matunity for Allegany County’s govermmental activities long-term
debt outstanding as of June 30, 2006 are as follows:

Year
Frding General Obligsnon Bonds Notes Capital Leases Stale Loans Totais
Jure 30. Principal Interest Principal Inierest  Principal [nterest Principal Interest Prineipai InteTest
2007 4920000 S 952,644 5 39027 5 3651 3 oM § 11,87 § 07101 § 327516 8§ 4067312 % 1328318
200y 2.880,000 812,659 93727 3LEN 30,950 TR 445 560 299846 3450227 1,151,857
2059 (LK 681,401 a2 453 26,987 17.047 3.7 421826 275.7%% 3,541,326 9D RTY
2000 1.659.000 542708 YIR73 22,209 18.059 4.689 445,357 232257 3.216.289 821,863
2011 2,798.000 406,146 %, 848 17.234 19132 3,616 470310 227,95 3,386,290 65420
201 2-2016 T.036,000 752.647 33,675 62.563 41.741 374 2.303,955 732970 9415371 1.551,934
2017-2020 1.069.000G 43.45G 44711 51,528 - 1,426,537 231735 2.540.248 332713
720720 = & 59.363 36.876 - E 412.612 14.501 471975 51397
2027-2131 S o 78,816 17.423 - - THEI6 1421
2032-2034 = - 15,417 633 - - 15417 633
204000 S 4096655 5 600910 3 303895 § 206,123 S 36428 5 6433258 0§ 2363319 § 30283291 § 6900297

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for Allegany County’s business-type activities long-term
debt outstanding as of June 30, 2006 are as follows:

The annual debi service requirements (o maturity for the Water Districts long-term debt outstanding at June 30, 2006 are:

Year Ending Farmers Home Adinin. Loans County Advances Totals
Jume 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2007 S 57584 5 182364 § 3285 % 7079 5§ 60869 § 189443
2008 60.107 179,841 2.064 6922 62,171 186,763
2009 62.741 177,207 2,159.00 6.827.00 64,900 184,034
2010 65,495 174,453 2.258.00 6.728.00 07.753 181,181
2011 68.373 171.575 2.302.00 0,624.00 70,735 178.199
20122016 389,821 802.919 13.541.00 31,391.00 403,362 841.310
2017-2021 4’4172 715568 16,951.00 27.981.00 501.123 743,549
2022-2026 602.221 597,519 21.219.00 23.7113.00 623,440 621,232
20272031 755.909 449.607 26,562.00 18,370.00 782471 467,977
2032-2036  789.882 278.758 13.250.00 11.682.00 823.132 290,440
20372041 671752 109.630 32.532.00 3.113.00 704.284 112.743
2042-2046 210,734 24.162 - - 210.734 24.162
Totals  § 4218791 § 3.870.603 § 156,183 § 150,430 § 4374974 § 4,021,013

The annual debt service requircments to matunity for the Sanitary Districts long-term debt cutstanding at June 30, 2006 are:

Year Fnding Water Quality Loans Md._Environmental Loans  Farmers Home Admen. Loans County Advances Torals
Jurie 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Imerest Principal Interest Pringipal Interest
207 % 215122 % 60024 § 432071 S TR203 § 17468 & 49258 $ 57.93) % 4502 8 T2250 F  19).987
2008 225,868 49,236 435839 74,435 18,337 48,389 4 882 680,378 172.942
2009 200.689 37.802 439.641 70,633 19.250 47.476 350 867 659.930 156.838
2000 137,131 27,720 443 476 66,799 20,209 46.517 360 851 601,182 141,887
2011 9616 19,743 447,344 62,931 21,216 45,510 383 834 568.562 129018
2012-2016 180.840 22331 2.295.931 255,440 123,047 210,583 2,194 1889 2,602,012 492,243
2017-2021 - - 2397822 153.549 157.016 176,614 2747 3.337 2.557.585 333,500
2022-2020 - - 2.186.509 50.953 200476 133,134 3.438 2,645 2390423 186,752
2027-2031 g - - - 245256 78.394 4,304 VIS 249,560 80,173
2032-2036 - - - - 195,131 19.979 5.388 695 200,519 20,674
2037-2041 - - - - - - - - - -
2042-2046 - - - - - - - - - -
Totals S TI39.260 S 216016 8 GO/863 &~ 812993 § 017306 S 255814 § TTAS 3T 0281 § TI232743 5 T906.018
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Note 10. Long-Term Debt, Capital Leases and Compensated Absences - continued

The annua) debt service requirernents to ranunity for the Nursing Home long-term deit owtstanding at June 30, 2006 are:
Year Ending General Obligation Debt
June 3. Principal Interest
2007 S 25,162 § 25,549
2008 26478 24,199
200 27.863 22778
2010 29,320 21,282
2011 30,854 19,709
2012-2016 180,228 71904
2017-2021 131,183 19,555
Totals $ 501,088 § 204976

A summary of individual long-term debt balances for governmental activities for the current and prior
year 1s as follows:

Allegany County Primary Government
Schedule of Long - Term General Obligation Debt:
General Obligation Bonds: Date of Date of Interest June 30,

Public Improvement Bonds: [ssue Maturity Rate (%) 2006 2005
Bonds of 1994 01/01/94 01/01/09 4.05-4.70 3 1,335,000 § 1,740,000
Bonds of 1995 11/01/95 11014190 4.25-5.10 2,555,000 2,995,000
Bonds of 1997 03/01/97 03/01/10 3.65-5.40 2,050,000 2,505,000
Bonds of 1998 08/135/98 08/01/13 4.375-4.65 9,314,000 10,260,000
Bonds of 2001 09/01401 11701716 3,504.40 5,720,000 7,010,000
Bonds of 2004 10/26/04 10/01/19 3.50 1,974.000 2.086,000

Notes:

Farmers Home Admin 1992 2032 5.75 257,346 261612
Tri - County Council Loan  06/22/93 06/22/08 5.00 20,997 29,205
PPG Loan 01/05/96 2011 5.20 421,567 493,656
Capital Leases:
Sheriff's vehicles 10/27/04 10/27/06 4.05 78.863 112,435
Transtt Bus (4/11/06 04/11/13 5.94 127,258 -
State Loans:
M4 Industrial Land Act:
Precise Metals Bldg 03/19/80 03/19/09 6.32 84.561 183,483
Superfos Expansion 1991 2028 6.90 546,156 581,329
Blue Cross Bldg 1992 2012 6.80 963,926 1,012,228
Schwah Bldg | 1992 2012 6.44 0 423,488
Hunter Douglas 1993 2019 5.93 376,320 396.683
Micro - Integration 1994 2014 5.93 524,051 579.031
Superfos 111 1995 2014 5.93 796,778 870,089
Hunter Douglas 11 1998 2018 4.64 65,384 70,120
MICRF Loans:
Potemac Farms 06/22/93 06/22/08 5.00 89,737 131,654
PPG Parchase 01/05/96 2020 5.00 2,032,596 2,063,262
PPG Improvements 2001 2022 4.69 226,561 226,662
MAHF Loan 08710790 08/10/30 1.0 0 54,793
MD Historical Trust Loan 2000 2020 1.00 150,000 150,000
Md Environmental Loan 2003 2023 0.89 577,158 614,312
Total Long - Term General Obligation Debt 30,283,291 34,850,072
Compensated Absences 3,847,008 3.519.718
Total long-term liabilities 5 34,130,299 $§ 38,169,790
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Note 10. Long-Term Debt, Capital Leases and Compensated Absences - continued

A summary of individual long-term debt balances for business-type activities is as follows:

Schedule of Business-type Debt

Date of Date of Interest June 30
Wyter Districts Debi. Issue Maturity Rate (%) 2006 2005
Fekhart FHA Loan 1991 Series A G2/21/91 2013 6.0 3 97.788 99,464
Pekhart FHA Loan 1991 Series B 0221/91 20112 6.0 238.735 242,830
Borden/Zhilman FHA Loan 1998 10:22/97 2037 45 307,899 312.267
Carlos'Shaft BEHA Loan 2000 12:28/99 12/28/2039 325 463.575 471,146
Oldtown Rd 'l A Loan 200D R-1 1212899 12:28.2039 3.25 218,718 222,289
Oldiown Rd FIYA [Loan 200D R-2 12/28/99 12:28:2039 325 223,274 226.920
Gralimtown ¥HA Loan 2001 R-2 2001 2042 4.5 573,075 579.527
Consol FHA loan 2004 2044 4.5 102.244 103.262
MeCoole FHA Laan 1999 2039 4.5 1.011.669 1,025,197
Barton Industral Park 2005 2045 4.5 352.981] 356,340
Klondike FHA 2005 2043 4.5 459,067 4063.991]
Morantown FHA Loan 2008 2,046 4.23 169,166 0
Sub-total 4,218.791 4,103,242
Hotfman Allegany Co. Advance 06/30:93 G6/30:22 . 1311 ERELL
Carlos/Shaft Allegany Advance 2006 20490 4.5 49,454 0
Missick Rd Alleg Co Advance 2006 2040 4.5 77.919 0
Rt. 51 Allegany Co Advance 10006 2040 4.5 27.499 1
Sub - total 156,183 3.130
Tolal debt 4374974 4.106.372
Less: Current maturities of long - term debt (60.869) (55,136)
Total Water Districts lopg - term debt $ 4.314.108 4,051.016
Sanitary Districts Debr:
Maryland Water Quality Loans
Bowliny Green 1980 2010 5.5 $ 3.373 4,110
Bowling Green 1984 2014 83 31.295 33581
Cresapiown 1980 2010 5.5 3.233 3.939
Cresaplown 1984 2014 83 19.491 20015
Cresaplown 1986 2015 8.8 10,303 10,5233
Bedfard Road 1977 2007 5.5 20207 19518
Bedford Road 1983 W13 8.2 166.554 183,73/
MeCuoole 1978 1008 5.5 32.607 57.663
Oldtown 1981 201 6.1 17,294 20,30
Flintstone 198¢ 2010 6.1 520182 60n.902
Georges Creek 1981 2011 6.1 113,362 128,660
Georges Creek 1982 2012 6.1 200 457 232.0%
Celangse reatment Plant 1991 2010 3.705 [&1.HE7 198.964
Mexico Farms 1962 2009 3.705 217,984 287.98%
Sub - total 1,059,269 1,264.161
Muarvland Department of Environment
Celanese WWTP Upgrade 06/03 2023 00867 7.591.879 7,681,240
Inflow and Infiliration Study 12/03 2023 387 1,164,986 1,232,506
Celanese 2006 2.026 o 321,768 -
9,078,633 8,913,746
Farmers Heme Administration Loans
Georges Creek 1988 2027 5.0 331972 34707
Mexica Farms 1992 2032 5.5 361610 367.556
Cash Valiey Road 1906 2036 4.5 120762 131808
Oldtown Road 1966 2030 4.5 492,122 499.881
Sub - toral 1,017,406 1,034,042
Allegany County Advances:
Jennings Run 1992 2007 54-7.125 17,822 33,606
Gieorges Creck 1592 2007 §4-7.125 23078 46,356
Bedford Road 1993 2007 54-7 125 16.712 33322
Oldtown 2006 203s 4.5 19.823 -
Sub - 1012l 77,433 115,204
Total 11,232,743 11,327,243
Less: Current maturities of long - term debt (722,592) (700,003}
Total Sanitary Districts Long - term Debl $10.510,151 $10.627,240
Nursing Home Debu:
General obligation deht 2004 018 3.23 $  507.0u8 S 325000
Less: Current maturittes of long - term debt (25.162) (33.912)
Totat Nursing Home long -term deba § 475.92¢ 5  501.088
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Note 10. Long-Term Debt - continued

The following is a summary of debt transactions for the discretely presented component units for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.

Long-term Liabilities - Component Units
Long-term debl activity for the year ended June 30, 2006:
Allegany LaVale
College of Sanitary
Maryland Commission
Payable at July 1, 2005 S 127,006 3 1,007,769
Amount issued 246,01 238,000
Amount retired (124,753) (59,569)
Payable at Jung 30, 2006 § 248324 _§ 1,196.200
Annual debl service requirements to maturity:
Allegany College of Maryland (Capital Leases) LaVale Sanitary Commission
Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2007 k) 50,678 3 20,443 $ 71,12) b 37,034 3 35,5106 5 73,450
2008 51,765 16,064 67,829 38,698 34,752 73,450
2009 51,147 11,733 62.880 39,492 33.958 73,4350
2010 48,71 7.174 55,905 40,316 33,134 73,430
2011 42,288 2.656 44,944 41,173 32,278 73,451
2012-2016 3,15 30 3,743 219,932 147,319 367.251
2017-2021 - - - 247,018 120,233 167,251
2022-2026 - - - 208,103 §7,356 295,659
2027-2031 - - - 198,438 49 462 247,900
2032-2036 - - - 125,096 8,548 133,644
§ 248324 % 58,100 $ 306,424 § 1,196,200 ) 582,756 $ 1,778,956

Note 11. Pension and Retirement Systems

Allegany County Primary Government
Plan Descriptions

Allegany County contributes to the Maryland State Retirement and Pension Systems (“Systems™).
Both systems are cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans. The Systems were
established by Article 73B of the Annotated Code of Maryland to provide retirement, disability,
annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members and their beneficianes.
Responsibility for the organization and administration of the Systems is vested in the Board of
Trustees of the Maryland State Retirement and Pension Systems. The retirement and pension
systems issue a publicly available financial report, which includes financial statements and required
supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to the following:

Maryland State Retirement Agency
301 W. Preston Street
Baltimore, Maryland 21201
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Note 11. Pension and Retirement Systems - continued

Allegany County Primary Government-continued

Allegany County has also established two defined contribution plans; the County Administrator's
Retirement Plan and the Management Contractual Employees Retirement Plan, to provide retirement
benefits to certain contractual employees of the County. The ICMA Retirement Corporation
administers both plans. At June 30, 2006, there are 9 members enrolled in the plans.

Funding Policy

Employees covered under the retirement system are required to contribute five percent of their base
salary, and the County is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate 1s
10.10% of covered payroll. The employees belonging to the pension system must contribute two
percent of their base salary and five percent of the base salary that exceeds the social security wage
base. The County is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate also. The contribution
rate for the County is currently 7.22% of covered payroll. The contribution requirements of plan
members and Allegany County are established and may be amended by the plan’s board of trustees.
Allegany County’s contributions for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005, 2004, were $1,178,405
$1,000,502, and $680,072 respectively, equal to the required employer contributions for each year.

The two defined contribution plans require the County to contribute 9% to the Administrators
Retirement Plan and 7.22% to the Management Contractual Employees Retirement Plan of annual
covered payroll. The annual covered payroll was $463,737 and the required contribution was
$35,095 which was made. Plan provisions and contribution requirements are established and may be
amended by the County Commissioners.

The financial statements of the defined contribution plans are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Employer and plan member contributions are recognized in the pertod the contributions
are due. Plan mvestments are reported at fair market value.

Allegany County Component Units

Board of Education-Component Unit

The Board of Education participates in the Maryland State Retirement System part of the same
cost sharing multiple-emplover defined benefit pension and retirement systems the County
participates in. The employees are covered under either the Teachers’ Retirement System, the
Employees’ Retirement System, the Teachers’ Pension System or the Employees™ Pension
Systern Plans. A copy of the report can be obtained by writing to the Maryland State Retirement
Agency at the address listed above.

Members of the retirement systems entering on or after July 1, 1973 are required to contribute 5% or
7%, based on personal election, of earnable compensation; members before that date contribute the
lesser of 5% or the percentage they were contributing prior to July 1, 1973.
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Note 11. Pension and Retirement Systems - continued

Allegany County Component Units - continued
Board of Education-Component Unit - continued

Members of the contributory pensions are required to make contributions of 2% of earnable
compensation. The Board of Education is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate
for individuals in the employee retirement system and the employee contributory pension
system. The current rates are 12.22% and 7.22% respectively. The contribution requirements of
plan members and the Board are established and may be amended by the State Retirement and
Pension System Board of Trustees. The Board contributions for the years ended June 30, 2006,
2005 and 2004 were $758,376, $792,988, and $746,408, respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year.

Allegany County Library System-Component Unit

The employees of the Library are provided retirement benefits through the Maryland State
Retirement and Pension Systems; the same cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit
retirement system in which the County participates. All employees of the Library System except
custodial personnel are covered by the Maryland State Teacher’s Retirement Systems. The
Maryland State Department of Education is directly responsible for all financial and
administrative requirements of the employees' participation in the Teachers Retirement System.
The Library System itself is only financially and administratively responsible for custodial
employees' participation in the Maryland State Retirement Systems. As of year-end, all custodial
employees participated in the pension system. Detailed information on the Library’s retirement
plan provisions, funding status, required contributions and trends may be obtained in their
financial reports for the period ending June 30, 2006. The Library’s contributions for the years
ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $6,721, 36,786, and $4,314, respectively, equal to the
required employer contributions for custodial staff for each year. All payments have been made
by the State of Maryland for the non-custodial employees.

Allegany College-Component Unit

The College’s permanent employees are provided pension benefits through one of several
pension plans: Maryland State Teachers’ Retirement System, Maryland State Teachers’” Pension
System, TIAA/CREF Retirement Plan, Maryland State Employees’™ Retirement System, and the
Maryland State Employees’ Pension System. All of the plans the College participates in are the
same cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plans the County participates in, with the
exception of TIAA/CREF Retirement Plan which is a separate plan the County is not associated
with. The State of Maryland is responsible for funding the employee portion of pension costs for
substantially all employees covered by the Teachers’ Retirement System, Teachers’ Pension
System, and the TIAA/CREF Retirement Plan. The State of Maryland’s total contributions to
these plans for fiscal year 2006 were $885,107.
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Note 11. Pension and Retirement Systems - continued

Allegany College-Component Unit - continued

Detailed information on the College’s retirement plan provisions, funding status, required
contributions and trends may be obtained in their financial reports for the period ending June 30,
2005. Allegany College’s contributions for the years ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were
$72,142, $71,491, and $45,981, respectively, equal to the required employer contributions for
each year.

LaVale Sanitary Commission — Component Unit

The Sanitary Commission provides a defined benefit pension plan for all their full-ume
employees. The plan is a single employer non-contributory plan and is not a part of any of the
plans in which the County participates. Detailed information on LaVale Sanitary Commission’s
retirement plan provisions, funding status, required contributions and trends may be obtained in
their financial reports for the period ending June 30, 2006. LaVale Sanitary’s contributions for
the vyears ended June 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $55,189, $55,463, and $52,105,
respeciively, equal to the required employer contributions for each year.

Note 12, Risk Management

The County 1s exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which it carries commercial insurance. The
County retains no risk for claims up to the maximum amount of the policy except for deductible
amounts. During the fiscal year and for the three prior fiscal years, the County did not have any losses
exceeding its insurance coverage.

Note 13. Pending Claims and Litigation

The County 1s the defendant in several lawsuits in which plaintiffs are seeking to recover amounts from
the County as a result of alleged damages incurred by those plaintiffs. Although the outcome of these
lawsuits and any other potential proceeding, lawsuit or claim that is pending or threatened are not
presently determinable, it is the opinion of the County’s legal counsel and County management that
resolution of these matters will not have a material effect on the financial condition of the County.

Note 14. Contingent Liabihities

The County participates in a number of state- and federally-assisted grant programs, principal of which
are Homeland Security Grants, Community Development Block Grants, as well as, Economic
Development Administration, and Housing and Urban Development cconomic development and
houstng assistance grant programs. These programs are subject to program compliance audits by the
grantors or their representatives. The audits of these programs for and including the year ended June 30,
2006 may not have been concluded.
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Note 14. Contingent Liabilities - continued

The State of Maryland’s Department of the Environment and Allegany County has entered an agreement
setting a timetable for fixing the County's combined sewer and storm water system overflow problem.
The cost associated with correcting the problem cannot be reasonably estimated. However those costs
will likely be spread over an extended period of years and will be borne by the users of the sewer
systems.

Note 15. Post-Employment Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, the County provides health and life insurance, in accordance
with County resolutions, to certain retired employees with ten years of continuous service. Employees
hired prior to July 1, 1997 have 100% of their premiums paid for by the County, employees hired on or
after July 1, 1997 are responsible for paying 50% of their health insurance premiums. Expenditures for
post-retirement health and life insurance premiums are recognized on a pay-as-you-go basis. During
fiscal year 2006, expenditures of $749,310 were recorded for post-retirement benefits for 298 retirees in
the governmental and proprietary funds.

Note 16. Changes to Beginning Fund Balances/Net Assets

The beginning fund and net asset balances as of July 1, 2005 have been adjusted as follows:

Govemnmental Funds Enterprise Funds
Office of Children, Total County Other Total
Youth & Families Major Loan Enterprise Enterprise
Major Fund Funds Fund Funds Funds
Fund balance as orginaily
reported at 6/30/03 5 133,152 § 21,494,758 $ 1392,205 § - $ 01,199,723
Office of Children, Yaouth and
Families reorganization (1) (133,152) (133,152)
Reclassification of the County (1,392,205) 1,392,205
Loan Fund as a non-major fund (2)
Aliconet LI operations
assumed by Allegany County (3) 2,929,504 2,929,504
Restated beginning fund
at July 1, 2005 by - $ 21,361,606 S - $ 4321709 § 64,129,227

(1) Effective July 1, 2005 the Office of Children, Youth and Families Fund commenced
operations as an independent and legally separate nonprofit entity. The Allegany County
Office of Children. Youth and Families was created .as an Intemal revenue Service Code
Section 501(c)(3) organization. As a result, the beginning fund balance of the County’s
major funds was reduced by $133,152.
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Note 16. Changes to Beginning Fund Balances/Net Assets - Continued

{(2) The County Loan Fund prior to fiscal year 2006 was classified as a major fund to simplify
the reporting of the County’s enterprise funds; all enterpnse funds were reported as major
funds. Beginning with the 2006 fiscal year the County has two non-major enterprise funds
and reports a combining non-major enterprise funds schedules in addition to statements for
enterprise funds with a column for other enterprise funds.

(3) On July 1, 2005 Allegany County assumed the operations of Allconet II, which provides the
infrastructure to connect the private and public sector to broadband/wideband technologies.

As a result, the beginning net assets of the County’s enterprise funds were increased by
$2,929,504.

Note 17. Subsequent Events

On July 7, 2006, the County issued $3,030,000 of general obligations bonds to fund the following
projects:

Allegany College Library Building $ 101,000
Health Department Building 2,000,000
Hazardous Materials Building 240,000
Board of Education Warehouse Building 487,000
Westernport Library Building 145,000
Bond Closing costs 57,000

The interest rate on the bonds 1s 4.24% for a period of ten years and the final maturity is on August 1,
2016. Annual debt service payments range from $375,264-8380,400.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

Allegany County has established two defined contribution retirement plans, the County Administrators
Retirement Plan (one member) and the Management Contractual Employees Retirement Plan (seven members),
administered by the ICMA Retirement Corporation. Contributions to the defined contribution plans are

made entirely by the County for the Administrators Plan and the Management Contractual Employees Plan.

Administrators Plan

Contribution Number

For of Covered  Contribution Required Contribution Unfunded
Fiscal Year Members Payroll Percentage  Contributions Made Liability
2006 1 $114,393 9.00% 310,157 $10,157 -
2005 1 103,089 9.00% 9,278 9,278 -
2004 1 100,700 9.00% 9,063 9,063 -
2003 1 100,467 9.00% 9,042 9,042 -
2002 1 94,833 9.00% 8,535 8,535 -
2001 l 89,377 9.00% 8,044 8,044 -
2000 1 99,856 9.00% 8,987 8987 -
1999 - - 0.00% - - -

Management Contractual Employees Plan

Contribution Number

For of Covered  Contribution Required Contribution Unfunded
Fiscal Year =~ Members Payroll Percentage  Contributions Made Liability
2006 8 3463,737 7.22% $35,095 335,095 -
2005 7 275,281 7.29% 20,068 20,068 -
2004 6 257,246 5.01% 12,888 12,888 -
2003 7 260,252 4.37% 11,373 11,373 -
2002 7 289,448 4.17% 12,070 12,070 -
2001 6 181,731 5.23% 9,503 9,505 -
2000 2 63,333 6.12% 3,876 3.876 -
1999 - - 0.00% - - -
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Varance with

Final Budget -
Budgeied Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amaunt {Negative)
REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes:
Real and personal property $ 31,770,695 31,770,695 32297107 § 526412
Payments in lieu of taxes:
Coz! companics 210,000 210,000 261,092 51.092
Housing Authorities 35,000 35,000 35,458 458
Interest en Delinguent taxes 625,000 625000 685,146 60,146
Sub-total 32,640,695 32,640.695 33,278,803 638,108
Less:
Prompt payment discounts 121,000 121,000 119,770 1.230
Deferred revenues 105,000 105,000 269,492 {164,492}
Industrial exemptions 3,325.000 1.325.000 2.906.180 418.820
Coa! tax exemplions 50,000 50,000 - 50,000
Enterprise zone exemplions 175,000 175,000 178,078 (3.078)
Brownfield's Credit 5,000 5,000 657 4,343
Historie tax credit 30.000 30.000 18,422 11,578
Sub-total 3.811,000 3,811.000 3,492,599 318401
Total Net Property Taxes 28,829,695 28,829.095 20.786,204 956,509
[ncome Taxes 21,950,000 21,950,000 22,103.548 151,548
Other Local Taxes:
Hotel/mote! tax 476,000 522.000 572,351 5033
Admissions 172,000 172,000 148,945 (22.055)
Recordation 1,280,000 1.280.000 1,808.108 528,108
011 Fees 420,000 480.000 555,501 75,503
Trailer count 71,000 71,000 75,958 4,958
Transfer Tax 370,000 370,000 791,200 421,200
Total Local Taxes 2,849,000 2,895,000 3,953,065 1.058,065
Total Taxes 53,628,695 33,674,695 55,842,817 2,168,122
Licenses and Permits
Alcoholic beverage licenses 63,000 93,000 91,239 {1.761)
Amusceiment licenses 3.000 3,000 2,692 (308)
Traders licenses 97.000 97,000 94,863 (2.137)
Occupational licenses 1,200 1,200 1,300 100
Anima! licenses 16,000 16,000 12,849 (150
Building permits 40,000 40,000 37.854 {2.146)
Marr:age licenses 4,500 4,500 5705 1,205
Cable franchise fees 310,000 310,000 308,405 (1,595)
Sediment control permits 30,000 30,000 31,379 1,379
Total Licenses and Permits 594 700 594,700 586,286 (8.414)
Continued
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Varance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Ongnal Final Amourit {Negative)
REVENUES (Continued):
lntergovernmental:
Federal Funds:

Homeland security grant 78,217 585,717 575,424 (10,293}
Justice department grant - 51,000 55,746 4,746
Civil defense 20,0060 30,000 32,246 2,246
FEMA Grant - 7,850 23,849 15,999
EMT Grant 20.000 25,000 42,184 17,184
MTA Grant 123,000 123,000 87,433 (35,547)
MTA Transportation planning 58.258 68,393 79,5601 (18.832)
Health and Human Serviges Grant 114,750 331,563 346,705 15,142
Med Trans Grant 423,600 548,000 490,652 (57,348)
Food distmibution to the needy 17,0600 17,000 17,381 381
Sumnmer camp program - - 739 739
Emergency shelter grant 25,000 45,000 52,366 7,366
ARC Grants 30,000 30,000 34,240 4,240
Masters program 76,539 76,539 73,095 {3.444)
Miscellaneous federal grants 13,500 13,500 16,600 3,100
Payments in ligu of property taxes 2,500 2,500 4,424 1.924

Sub-total Federal funds 1,011,764 1,985,002 1,932,665 (52.397)

State Funds:

Public Health 22,000 22,000 24,946 2,946
Palice protection 235,000 235,000 240,594 5,594
State 911 grant - 2200 2,200 -
State MTA operating assistance 61,500 61,500 - {61,500}
Alltrans Grant 209.945 209,945 288,541 78,596
State wransportation planning 7,283 12,299 8,945 (2,354)
Marytand Department of Environment grant 6,120 6,120 11,210 5,090
Summer camp program 7,767 7,767 - {7.767)
Juvenile services grant 14,164 14,194 14,070 (124)
JSA Crisis Intervention 33,729 33,729 32,445 (1.284)
Dept. of Sacial Services 61,500 61,500 61.500 -
Department of Natural Resources 175,000 175,000 311,976 136,976
Conservation aid salary 24,492 24,492 24.944 452
Program Open Space grant 200,000 200,000 08,538 (101,462)
Fire suppression, DNR 1,000 1,000 - {1,000)
Disparity grant 6,100,040 6,100,040 6,100,040 -
State Jury Reimbursement 50,000 50,000 38,530 {11,470)
Tourism grant 40,000 40,000 36,974 (3,026)
Work Crew Supervisor 490,000 40,000 42,223 2,223
Miscellaneous 410,501 430,091 321,124 (108,967}

Sub-total Swate Funds 7,700,071 7,726,877 7,659,800 (67,077)

Coniinued
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REVENUES (Continued)

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Variance with
Fina! Budget -

Intergovernmental {continued):
Other intergovetnmental:
Other agencics

Sub-tatal Other Intergovernmental:
Total Intergovernmenial

Service Charges:

Genera) government charges:
State civil process
Child support ineentive
Pubtication sales
Plans & specifications
Regulatron & Maps
Tax sale fees
Election Filing fee
Security interest filing fee
License application fecs
Liquor License ransfer fee
Bay restoration collection fee
Hegith Ins Admin fee
Tourism promotion charges
Collection fees-special arcas
Liguor License Collection fee
Hotel/Motcei collection (ee
Partial payment fee
Engincering fees
Miscellaneous general government

Sub-10ta) general government charges

Public safety charges:
Police protection charges
Fingerprinting fee
Jail work release
Bearding state prisoners
Bearding Federal prisoners
Commun:ty service fee
Home detention fee
Inmate Medical Copay
Building Inspection fees

Sub-total public safety charpes

Sanitation and Waste Removal:
Landfill fees
Recycling fees
Recycied matenal sales
Sub-total Sanitation and Waste

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Onginal Final Armount (Negative)

263,512 367.012 432,960 65,948
263,512 367.012 432,960 65,948
8,975.347 10,078,951 10,025,425 {53.926)
30,000 30,000 52,055 22,055

- 808 808

- - 835 833

4.000 4.000 2779 (1.221)
2,060 2,000 $.210 6,216
15,000 15,000 15.245 245
200 200 530 330
100 100 05 {5}
8.500 8,500 8.160 (340)
3,500 3.500 4110 610

- - 19.766 19,766

600 500 642 42
70,000 70,000 59.536 (10,464}
38,000 38,000 46.459 §.459
3.500 3,500 3,390 390
12,000 12.000 14,18) 2,181
1,000 1.000 1,032 32
30,000 30,000 28355 (1.645)
558,114 558,114 137,236 (420.878)
776,514 776,514 403,930 (372,584)
14.000 14.000 16,742 2,742
1,500 1.50G 1,080 (410)
40,000 40,000 28,482 (11.517}
300.000 300,000 371,104 71.104
600,000 600,000 1.078.638 478.638
13,000 13,000 13.820 820
45,000 45,000 24,485 (20.515)
3.400 3,400 3119 (281)
32,000 12,000 34,620 2.620
1.048.900 1,043.900 1872101 523,201
150,000 150,000 142.375 (7.625)
100,000 100.000 110,338 10,338
15,000 15,000 19,155 4,155
265.000 265.000 271,868 6,868

Continued
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REVENUES (Continued):

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2606

Variance with

Service Charges (continued):
Health service charges:
Dog adoption fees
Sub-total Health service charges

Recreation Charges:
Host fee, Rocky Gap
Hotel fee, Rocky gap
Sub-total recreation service charges

Public service enterprises:
Upper Potomac River Comumission
AllTrans fares
Road closing fees
Maintenance fees
Sub-total publie service charges
Total Service Charges

Fines and Forfeitures:
Circuit court fines
Dog ordinance fines
QOther fines

Total Fines and Forfeitures

Miscellaneous:
Intgrest
Renis and concessions
Contribuzions & denations
Miscellaneous

Total Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)

18,000 18,000 20,333 2,333
18,000 18,000 20,333 2,333

- 100,221 100,221

- 100,221 100,221

393,957 393,957 393,957 -
15,000 15,000 36,182 21,182
450 450 450 -
5,778 5,778 - (5,778}
415,185 415,185 430,589 15,404
2,523,599 2,523,599 2,799,042 275,443
8,000 8,000 9,405 1,405
12,000 12,000 11,841 (159
3,600 3,600 2,150 (1.450)
23,600 23,600 23.396 {204)
183,147 183,147 622,888 439,74
279,568 287,068 307,365 20,297
- 7,578 7.088 (490}

58,050 58,050 85,784 27,734
520,765 535,843 1,023,123 487,282
66,266,706 67,431,388 70,300,091 2,868,703

{continued)
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ALLEGANY COUNTY. MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Variance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounis Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
EXPENDITURES:
General Government:
Legislative:
County Commissicners 163,671 163,671 154,833 8,838
County Commissioners Qffice 170,708 170,708 131,351 19337
Total legislative 334,379 334379 250,184 48,195
Judicial:
Family Suppon Services 185,645 185,645 183,516 2,129
Alternative dispute resolution 27,638 27,688 5,409 22,279
Circuit court masters program 120,839 120,889 122,989 {2.100)
Circuit court 293,679 293,079 300,210 (6.631)
Family Law Master 51,703 51,703 47908 3,795
Orphans court 43,263 43,203 40,804 2,459
State's attorney 945,661 945,661 937,033 8.628
Law Hibrary 38.000 38,000 38,000 -
Vicum-Witmess coordinator 33,217 33277 33.676 (399
{Orand and peut juries 63,258 63,258 52,430 10,828
Total Judieral 1,803,063 1,803,063 1,762,075 40,988
Executive:
Administratlor 230.605 257,880 217.750 40,130
Elections:
Registration and elections 373,655 373,655 232,164 141,491
Firancial Administration:
Finance Office 668,544 668,544 530,265 138,279
Tax Office 462 471 462,471 359703 102,768
Professional services 38.000 38,000 32.786 5,214
Total Financial Administration 1,169,015 1,169.015 922,754 246,261
Legal:
Legal counsel 186,346 186,346 144,250 42,096
Other legal 58,000 88,000 84,590 3410
Total legal 244346 274,346 228,840 45,506
Personnel Adminisiration:
Human Resources department 301,193 301192 162,390 138.803
Human resources board of appeals 4,960 4,960 1,640 3,320
Wellness/Ermplovee recognition 22,172 22072 12,992 9,180
Total personnel administration 328,325 328,325 177,022 151,303
Planning and Zoning:
Planning and zoning department 150.787 150,787 150,754 33
Land use planning 151,750 151,750 136,400 15,350
Total Planning znd Zoning 302,537 302,537 7,154 15,383
General Services:
County Building Mamienance 1.116,845 1,116,845 1,073,715 43,130
Data Processing 197,108 197,108 151,492 45,616
Total general services 1,313,653 1,313,953 1,225,207 88,746
Continued




EXPENDITURES (Continued):

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Variance with
Fina) Budget -

General Government {coniinued):
Other general government:

Liguor control board

Insurance

Employee benefils

Post retirement benefits

Total Other General Government

Total General Government

Public Safety:
Police:
Shenffs department
Aggressive driver grant
Highway safety
C31 Unt
Multi-agency team 90%
Adttendance resource pragram
Multi-agency ieam 100%
Parents and law enforcement
Marijuana eradication
CASASTART/Substance abuse
Total Police
Fire:
Suppression of forest fires
Volunteer fire companies
Total Fire
Correction:
County detention center maintenance
County detention center
JSA crisis intervention
Juvenile service grant
Altemative sentencing
Home detention grant
Total Correction
Other Protection:
Permnts & enforcement
Building Codes
Emergency Management Agency
Local emergency planning
Transportation planning
Animal control
Anima) sheler
911
Hazardous materjals operations
Emergency rmedical assistance
Domesitic preparedness grant
Community emergency response
Floed control
Tatal Other Protection
Total Public Safery

Budgeted Amounts Actal Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
110,910 110,910 109,492 1418
297,600 297,600 295,660 1,940
350.000 350,000 19.032 330,968
503,200 528,200 510,252 17,948
1,261,710 1,286,710 034,436 352,274
7,361,588 7,443,863 6,273,586 1,170,277
1,742,332 1,768,702 1,945,551 (146,829)
5.500 5,500 5,418 82
6,000 10,000 6,513 3,487
13,000 13,060 10,148 2,852
52,556 52,556 53,834 (1,278)
75,304 75,304 63,242 12,062
43,508 48,508 47,546 962
- 6,500 5918 582
2,000 2,000 - 2,000
- 30,000 19.844 10,156
1,945,200 2,042,070 2,157,994 (115,924)
6,500 6,500 - 6,500
902,811 902,811 861,237 21,574
909,311 909,311 381,237 28,074
119,811 119,811 115,939 3,872
3.954,691 5,930,691 5,664,429 286,262
33,729 33,729 32,445 1,284
14,194 14,194 14,070 124
154,578 154,578 148,057 6,521
132,747 132,747 111,589 21,158
6,409,750 6,405,750 6,086,529 319,221
284,211 284,211 285,093 (882)
116,284 116,284 98,195 18,089
151,82% 159,679 167,223 (7,544}
2,620 8.620 13,472 {4,852)
84,535 129,686 99,451 30,235
232,506 240,084 242,899 {2,813)
115,254 118,254 108,177 10,077
1,332,729 1,339,429 1,303,356 36,073
76,056 76,056 77,183 1.873
40,000 75,000 88,539 (13.539)
58,217 645,030 591,675 33,355
20,000 27,500 19,797 7,703
45,0600 155,940 114,047 41,893
2,568,241 3,378,773 3,209,107 169,666
11,832,502 12,735,904 12,334,867 401,037
Continued
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EXPENDITURES (Continued):

ALLEGANY COUNTY. MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2006

Variance with
Final Budget -

Pubhc Works:
Public Services:
Adrport
‘Waste collection:
Solid waste disposal
Solid waste recycling
UPRC
County engineer
Total Public Works

Heulth and Hospitals:
Health Dept bldg, maintenance
Allegany County Health Department
Western Maryland Health Planning
Pre-hospital Care Coordinator
Prescribed medication program
Total Health and Hospitals

Social Services:
Family violence coungil
Medtrans/Alitrans
Pauper's hurials
TANF grant
Human Rescurces Devel. Comm.
Emergency shelter grant
New Hope. Inc.
Child abuse coordinator
Family Crisis Center
Foud distribution 1o the needy
Total Social Services

Educatior:
Maryland School for the Biind
State debt reimbursement
Parkside Flag-in-the-Air

Total Education

Recreation and Culiure:
Program Open Space
Allegany County fair
Fuirgrounds maintenance
Highland trail operations
Allegany County Asts Council
Cumberland Summer Theatre
Agriculiure Expo
Allegany Co. homeceming

Total Recreation and {'uiture

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amouni {Negative)
240,000 240,000 240,000 -
416.258 416.258 346792 69,466
173,433 213,433 221.299 (7.806)
492,446 624,770 624,770 -
925.199 977.653 879.030 98,623
2,247.336 2,472,114 2311891 160,223
269.379 304.379 311.159 (6.780)
33,092 33.092 27.538 5.554
6,046 6.046 6,046 -
20.000 20,000 20.000 -
- 50000 50,000 -
328,517 413,517 414,743 (1.226)
- 27,000 26.791 209
948,727 1.073.727 1235311 (161,584)
1.950 1,930 - 1,950
114,750 244,750 246,560 (1.810)
683,400 683,400 683.400 -
25.000 45,000 52,366 (7.3066)
7,767 7.767 739 7.028
85.012 85,012 85,810 (798}
78.000 78,000 78000 -
17,000 17,000 17,38] (381)
1.961.606 2.263,606 2.426.358 §£162,752)
500 500 - 500
26.500 26,500 - 26,500
7.000 7.000 6.788 212
34,000 34.000 6.788 27212
215,000 215.600 74.562 140,438
139.220 146.720 148,623 (1.903)
176,415 216,715 226527 (9812
50,000 50,000 52711 2,10
31,000 31000 31,000 -
8.000 8,000 2000

13.500 13,500 13,500 -
2,250 2,250 2,250 -
635,385 683,185 557,173 126,012

(continued)




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Negative)
EXPENDITURES (Continued):
Conservatinn of Natural Resources:
Agricultural Extension Service 110,321 110,321 67,755 42,566
Soil conservation services 157,235 157,235 155,094 2,141
Total Conservation of Natural Rescurces 267,556 267,556 222,849 44,7107
Community Development & Housing
Office of Community Assistance 108,194 108,194 106,341 1,853
Capital projects office 189,543 137,089 133,196 3893
Allegany Co. Public Housing Authonity 8.000 8,000 8,000 -
Tota! Community Developmeni & Housing 365,737 253,283 247,537 5,746
Economic Development:
Office of Project Services 101,382 101,382 89,611 11,771
Department of Economic Development 541,450 541,450 427,280 114,170
Scemic railroad development 282,000 282.000 321,252 (39.252)
Tri-County Council 17,500 18,750 18,750 -
Tourism depariment 449,419 520,439 512,255 8,184
Toll House 5.600 5.600 3127 2,473
Thrasher Museum 567,000 67,000 67,000 -
Community promotion 10,000 11,160 11,002 8
Total Economic Develepment 1,474,371 1,547,721 1,450,367 97,354
Miscelluneous:
Contingency 56,975 21,895 - 21,895
Miscellaneous 25,600 25,600 12,910 12,690
Total Miscellanecus 82,575 47,495 12,910 34,585
Appropriations 10 Other Governmental Units:
Grants in Licu of Taxes 28,704 28,704 28,704 -
Health Deparment 1,047,227 1047227 1,005,624 41,603
Department of Sacial Services 9.800 9,800 9,800 -
Total Appropriations to Other Gov't Units: 1,085,731 1,085,731 1,044,128 41,603
Payments to Component Units
Allegany Co. Board of Education 26,630,000 26,630,000 26,630,000
Allegany College 5,975,000 5,975,000 5.975,000 -
Allggany County Library 835,000 835,000 835,000 -
Informatien Technology 294,847 294,847 294,847
Total payments o component units 33,734,847 33,734,847 33,734,847 -
Tota) Expenditures 61,351,751 62,982,822 61,038,044 1,944,778
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 4,914,955 4,448,566 9,262,047 4313481
Continued




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2006

Varnance with
Final Budget -

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amount (Nepative)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Linexpended balance - prine years 1,750,000 2,408,389 - (2,408,389)
Transfers I from other funds:
Transfers from speciu! revenue funds 45380 43380 46.005 625
Transfers from capital project funds - - - -
Transfers from enterprise funds 126.298 126,298 155,589 29,291
Total ‘Transfers In 171,678 171,678 201.594 29916
Operating Transfers to Other Funds:
Special revenue fiunds:
Highway fund {1,661,715) {1.661,719) {1.661.713) -
Transit Fund (197,933) (197,931 (197933) -
Community Development Block Grant - {2,000) (9,000) -
Housing & Section R fund (181.762) (181,763} (149,609 32,154
Narcotics Task Force {18.501) (18,501 {18,300) 201
Revolving Building Fund - - - -
Debt service Fund:
From General government (4,697.773) (5,077,773} (5.094.129) (16.356)
From Sheniff department (51,948} (31,948) (51.948) -
From CASASTART program - (8,000 (7.812) 18R
Capital projects funds:
Canital projects fund - (175.000) (325,350) (150,356)
Pay-As-You-GO Capital Proj. Fund - - (1,075,000) (1.075,000)
Enterprise funds:
Water fund - - 5,881 5.881
Santiary fund {45.000) (45.000) (64.575} (19.575)
Loan fund - - - -
Total uperating transfers 1o other funds (6.854,633) (7.426,633) (8.649,496) (1,222,863)
Sale of capital assets 18,000 398,000 430.880 32.88C
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses {4.914.955) {4.448,566) (8.017,022) {3.568,456)
Excess {deficiency) of revenues amd other
firancing scurces over expenditures and
ather financing uses - - 1,245,025 1,245,025
Fund baiance, beginning 12,702,276

Fund balance, cnding $ 13,947,301
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
HIGHWAY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

REVENUES:

Variance with

Taxes - State shared
Intergovernmenial:
State
Miscellaneous
Tota) Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Public works - Highway
Total Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES:

Unexpended balance - prior years
Transfer from other {unds
Transfers 1o other funds

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance, beginning
Fund balance, ending

[inal Budget -
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Onginal Final Amount {Negative)

4,717,500 4,717,500 4813872 96,372
- - 19,218 19,218
4,717,500 4,717,500 4,833,000 115,590
6,911,715 6911715 6,503,022 408.693
6,911,715 6,911,715 6,503,022 408.693
(2,194,215) (2,194,215) {1,669,932) 524,283
532,500 §32.500 - (332,500)
1,661,715 1,661,715 1,661,715 -
2,194,215 2,194.215 1,661,715 (532,500}
- - {8,217) (8,217)

1,433,492

1425275




BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2006

Variance with

Final Budget -
Budgeted Amounis Actual Positive
Orignal Final Amount (Negative)
REVENUES:
Intergovermnmental:
Federal 3.318,300 3.318.300 1,663.248 (1,655,052)
State 30,000 20,000 1,157,343 1.077,343
Other - - 72,223 72223
Interest - - 5,945 5,945
Miscellaneous 295,666 295,606 195415 (100,251)
Tota! Revenues 3.693,960 3,693,966 3,094,174 (599,792)
EXPENDITURES:
Public safety 4,752 67,752 1,362,320 (1,294,568)
Public works 118,300 118,300 71,282 47,018
Heaith & hospitals 4,830,000 4 872.000 3,824 825 1,047,075
Conservation of nutural resources 25,000 70.000 70,000
Economic develnpment 3,675,606 3,675,606 1,725,302 1.950,364
Payments (¢ cormponent units 7,142,700 7,142,700 601.323 6,541,377
Total Expenditures 15,796,418 15946418 7,585,052 3,161,366
Excess (deticiency) of revenues
over (under) expendiiures (12,102,452 (12,252,452) (4.490,878) 7,761,574
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES:
Unexpended balance 1.197.700 1.197.700 - (1.197.700}
Transfers in 427.752 577,752 768.648 190.896
Issuance of debt 6,677.000 6,677,000 - (6,677.000)
Sale of capital assets 3,800,000 3,800.000 3,800,000 -
Total other financing sources and uses 12,102,452 12,252,452 4.568.648 (7.683,804)
Net change in fund balances - - 77770 77,770
Fund balance, beginnming {777.802)
Fund balance, ending (700.,032)

Notes to Required Supplementary Information
June 30, 2006

Budgetary Basis

Annual buégets are adepted for all General, Special Revenue, and Capital Project Funds which include the major funds presented
in the Required Supplementary Information. Al governmenta) (und budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Encumbrances and appropriations generally lapse at year-end and are treated as
expenditures i the year the liability is incurred.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds

Spectal revenue funds are used 1o account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are Jegally
restricted for specific purposes.

Coal Haul Roads Fund - thus fund accounts for taxes levied on mined coal which are locally restricted for repairing
those roads used in transporting coal.

Transit Fund - the Transit Fund acecunts for the operation of a public transit system. The primary sources of
revenues are federal and state grants.

CDBG Fund - this fund accounts for revenues from the federal Department of Housing and Urban Development.
These revenues are restricted to accomplish the various objectives of CDBG programs.

Block Grant Program Income Fund - program income from Community Development Block Grants which are
restricted to specific programs are recorded in this fund.

Cormmunity Development and Housing - this fund accounts for federal grants restricted for low income housing
programs as well as various other state and federal housing programs administered by the County.

Gamung Fund - this fund reports paper gaming revenues and their support of County fire companies and
public education.

Drug Task Force Fund - this fund accounts for federal and state grants and local seizure revenues that are used
to prevent the distribution and manufacture of iflegal drugs.

Revolving Building Fund - the building fund is used to account for the financial activity arising from economic
development efforts to locate businesses in the County and any revenue derived from those efforts.

State Fire and Rescue Fund - this fund accounts for the receipt and distribution of State Section 508 funds
to the various County fire and rescue organizations.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of general
obligation bond principal and interest from governmental resources.

Capital Projects Funds

The PAYGO (Pay-As-You-Go) Capital Project Fund is used to accurmulate resources for future capital
projects and is funded by ransfers from the general fund and other sources.

The Public Improvement Bond Fund is used to account for the debt proceeds of various bond issues.
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2006
Special Revenue Funds
Coal Communiry Block Grant Community Drug
Hau] Development Program Development Task
Roads Transit Block Grant Income & Housing Force
ASSETS: Funa Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund
Cash - $ 275 s - 3 - S - $ 96,709
Cash - restricted - - - 10,482 2,626 -
Invesmments 387.707 - - - -
Receivables
Notes and loans - - - 366,960 - -
Other 20,022 650.818 §7.372 - 7.050 9.409
Due from other funds 107,246 - 35,160 212,638 43.003 43,743
[rventory - 49,190 - - - -
Prepaids - - - - 71,580 -
Total Assets 1,014.975 700,283 142,532 590,080 129,259 149,861
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable - 1,362 103,248 158 1,476 1.868
Accrued payral) - 9.131 - - 2832 705
Accrued payroll fringe - 4,382 - - 1522 195
Due to other funds - 647,158 - - - -
Amounts held in escrow - - - 2,626 105.753
Unearmed revenue - 62.760 - 107,633 -
Miscellaneous - 26,090 - - - -
Towal Liahilities - 698,129 166,008 158 116,089 108,521
FUND BALANCES
Reserved:
For noncurrent asets - - - 366,960 - -
For prepaid items - - - - 13,170 -
For inventories - - - - - -
For capital projects - - - - -
Unreserved/Designated:
For next fisca! year - 2.154 - - - -
For specific programs 1,014,975 - - 222,962 4),340
Undesiymated - - (23.476) - - -
Total Fund Balances 1,014,975 2,154 (23,476) 589.922 13,170 41,340
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 5 1,014,975 § 700,283 S 142,532 3 590,080 S 129,259 3 149 86!
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Special Revenue Funds

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2006

Debt Service

Capital Project Funds

State Fire, PAYGO Total
Revolving Rescue & Debt Capital Public Nonmajor

Gaming Building Public Safery Service Project Improvemnent Govemmenial

Fund Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Bord i-und Funds
M - $ - 5 - $ 96,984 $ - S - $ - h) 96,984
. - 13,108 - - . 13,108
- 251,126 1,138,833 380,000 1,857,347 45,660 3,421,840
- - - 366.960 - - - 366,960
22,324 226,666 11,202 1,034,863 47,006 2,313 55 1,084,237
122,302 1,804,585 164,386 2,558,063 1,090,194 1,038,885 601 4,687,743
- - - 49,190 - - - 49,190
- - - 71.580 - - - 71.580
144,626 2,031,251) 426,714 5.329.581 1,517,200 2.808,543 46,316 9.791,642
796 118,435 8,537 245,880 44,364 17 290,261
1.706 404 . 14,778 . - 14,778
491 328 - 5918 ; . - 6918
- - - 647,158 - - 2,080 649,233
- - 108,379 ; - - 105.379
154,500 ; 321,893 - - - 321,893
- 2.500 - 28.596 - - - 28,596
2,993 273.167 8,537 1.373.602 - 44.364 2.097 1.420.063
- - 366,960 - - - 166,960
- - - 13,170 - - - 13,170
- - - - 44219 44219
- - - 2,154 - 760,000 762,154
141,633 - 418,177 1,839,087 1,517,200 1,945,619 5,301,906
- 1.758.084 - 1,714,608 148,562 - 1,883.170
141,633 1,758,084 418.177 3.955.979 1.517.200 2.854.181 44.219 2371,579
$ 144.626 $ 2.031.251] $ 426,714 $ 5329581 § 1.517.200 $  2,898.545 $ 46,316 S 9.791.642




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2000

Special Revenue Funds

Coal
Haul
Roads
REVENUES: Fund

Transit
lund

Community Block Grant

Developrent Prograrm

Biock Grant [ncome
Fund Fund

Community
Development
& Housing

Fund

Dirug
Task
Force
Fund

Taxes - State Shared S -
Other Jocal taxes 117,492
Iniergovernmental:

Federal -

State -

Other -
Service charges -
Fines anil forteiures -
[rteErest 28,899
Miscellaneous

T71.454
244918

149,344

9.966

& - $ -

380.899 22570

32.250

. 13
- 5,400

$

909,838
89.693
6,000
38.500

578

18,300

56,222
1,435

Total Revenues 146,391

1,176,182

913.149 27,983

1,044,609

75,957

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
General government -
Putilic sufery -
Public works
Highway 19,122
Heaith & hospitais
Social Services -
Communiry Development
and Housing -
Econamic development
Miscelianeous
Debt Service:
Principal -
[nterest -
Capital Outlay:
General govemment -
Public Safety -
Public works
Education -
Library -
Economic development
Miscellaneous
Paymenis (o component units:
Allegany Coilege -
Board of Education

1.631.425

244,571
548,926

132.892
34.779 -

49,251 38.285

1,321,516

Total Expenditares 19,122

1,631,425

1.030.419 33.285

1,331,516

$0.150

Fxcvss {(deficiency) of revenues
over [under) expenditures 127.269

(455,243)

{117,270) {10,302)

{286.907)

(4,193)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Transfers in R
iransfers out -
Capital leases
Sale of capilul assets

197,933

127.259

9.000 -
(55.966) .

149,609

18,301

Total Other Financing
Sources and uses -

325.192

{46,966)

149,609

18.301

Net change in fund balances 127.269

Fund balance. beginning,
as restated, see note 887.706

(130.051)

(164,236) (10.302)

140,760 600,224

(137.298)

150,468

14,108

27.232

Fund halance, ending 3 1.014.975

5 (23.470] $_ 589,922

3

13,170

41,340
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Special Revenue Funds

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Debt Service

Capital Project Funds

State Fire. Total PAYGG Total
Revolving Rescue & Special Debt Capital Public Nonmajor
Gaming Building Public Safety Revenue Service Project Improvement Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Fund Fund Bonad Fand Funds

$ - $ - 3 - $ - 3 - $ - $ - 3 -
639,191 - - 756,083 - - - 756,083
- 603,335 - 3,188,096 - - 3,188,096

- 1.046,987 228,445 1,610,043 - - 1,610,043

- - - 56,550 - - 56,550

57,600 - 91,930 137,874 - - - 137,874

- - - 56,222 - - - 56,222

- 7,697 338,044 10,296 66,707 8.302 123,345

30 2,346,383 §9.942 2.452.299 - - - 2.452.299
696,821 3.996.705 418,014 8.495.811 10,296 66,707 3,302 3,581,116
130,289 - - 30,289 - - - 130,289
151,145 - 351,470 §27,336 - - - 827,336
- - - 2,180,351 - - - 2,180,351

- - 19,122 - - - 19,122
132,892 132,892

- - 54,779 - - . 54,779

- - - 1,419,052 - - 1,419,052

- 2,862,761 - 2.862,761 - 2,862,761

- - - 4,761 - 4,761

. - . 4,716,262 . 4,716,262

- - - 1.442,163 1,442,163

- - - - 72,590 1,019 73.609

- 132,909 - 132,509

- - - - - 702,896 762,896

- - 22,224 11,326 33,550

- 35,000 - 35,000 - - - 35,000

- - - - - 31412 - 31412
281,434 2.897.761 151.470 7,661,582 6.163.186 259,135 715.241 14.799.144
415387 1,098,944 66.544 834.229 (6,152.850) {192.428) (706.939) (6.218.028)
- - - 374,843 6,495,090 1,056,607 - 7.926,540
(424,899 (1.331,241) - (1,812,106) - - - (1,812,106)
- - - 127,259 - 22224 - 149,483
322.050 - 322.050 - - - 322.050

(424,899 (1.008.191) - (987,954) £.495.090 1,.078.831 6.585,967
(9,512) 89,753 66544 (153,725) 342,200 886,403 (706,939 367,939
151.145 1,668,331 351633 4,109.704 1,175.000 1567778 751.158 8.003,040
5 141,633 $ 1,758.084 $ 418,177 § 3,955,979 5 1.517.200 $  2,854.181 3 44219 5 8.371.579
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NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds

Enterprise funds are used when debt 1s backed solely by fees or charges, or there is a legal requirement to
recover costs through fees or charges or a policy decision has been made to recover costs of providing

services through user fees.

Allconet IT Fund - this fund is used to account for the assets and operations of the second phase of the
Allegany County high speed internet network which provides the infrastructure to connect the private and
public sector to broadband/wideband techoologies.

County Loan Fund - this fund accounts for the loan activity between the County, various agencies and
the community. It includes loans to the County's enterprise funds.

E-S



ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
June 30, 2006

Allegany
County
Loan
ASSETS Allconet il Fund Total
Current Assets:
Cash:
Cash b - $ - ) -
Receivables: N _
Accounts (net) 55,014 143,060 398,074
Other 1,851 - 1.851)
Due trom other funds - 674,969 674,969
Miscellangous assels - - -
Total current assets 56,865 1.018,029 1,074,894
Non-current Assets:
Advances to other funds - 233,616 233,610
Canstruction in Progress - -
Capita] assets subject
1o depreciation 2.929,504 - 2,029,504
Accumulated depreciation {418.500) - (418,500)
Tetal roncurrent agsets 2,511,004 231,616 2,744,620
Tota! Assets 2,567.869 1,251,645 3819514
LIABILITIES
Current [biliies:
Accounts payehble 272 - 272
Accrued payroll 769 - 769
Accrued payroll fringe 60 - 60
Due to other funds 67,901 - 67,901
Miscellaneous liahilities - - -
Total current habilities 69,002 - 59,002
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Cash advance due 10 General Fund - - -
Long term debt:
Compensated absences - - -
Toti! noncurrent Jiabiiities - - -
Total Lizhilities 69,002 - (69,002
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets.
net of related debt 2,511,004 - 2,511,004
Unrestricted (12,137) 1,251,645 1,229,508
Total Net Assets S 2,498,867 S 1,250,645 $ 13.750.512
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Allegany
County
Loan

OPERATING REVENUES: Allconet [ Fund Total

Service charges g 53,667 3 - g 53,667

Patient fees - - -

Miscellaneous 2,804 15,029 17,833
Total Operating Revenues 56,471 15,029 71,500
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Salaries 22,308 - 22,308

Employee benefits 1,733 - 1,733

Office expenses 5,431 - 5,431

Utilities 7,757 - 7,757

Repairs & mainienance 3,451 - 3,451

Contractual services 25,757 - 25,757

Treatment costs - - -

Professional services 2,171 - 2,171

Materials and supplies - - -

Insurance - - -

Miscellaneous - - -

Depreciation 418,500 - 418,500
Total operating expenses 487,108 - 487,108
QOperating Income (Loss} (430,637) 15,029 (415,608)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSESY:

interest income - -

Interest expense - - -

Loss on sale of capital assets -

Other income (expense) - - -
Total non-operating revenue (expenses) ~ - -
Income (Loss} before contributions

and rransfers (420,637) 15,026 {415,608)

Transfer in - - -

Transfer out - {155.589) (155589
Change in net assets (430,637) {140,560) (571,197
Total net assets - beginning 2,929,504 1,392,205 4,321,709

as restated, see note 16 - - -

Tota) nel asseis - ending S 1408867 S 1,25),645 $ 3,750,512




ALLEGANY COUNTY., MARYLAND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - NON-MAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Cash flows {rom operating activities: Allconet 1l

Allegany
County
1oan
Fund

Toral

Cash received from customers s (395
Cash payments for goods and services (44.294)
(23.212)
Other operating revenues -

Cash payments to emplovees for setvices

S

42366

41,971
(44,264)
(23.112)

Net cash provided by operating

activities (67.901)

42.366

(25,535)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Advances from other funds
Advances to other funds
Transiers from other funds
Transters to other funds -

174,469
{106.568)

333,478
(220,253)

(155,58%)

507,947
(326,823)

{155,589)

Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activitics 67.90!

(42.366)

25,535

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition and construction -
of capital assels -

Procceds from sale of assets -
Grant revenues _

Net cash used for capital and related
financing aclivities -

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of investments -
Sale of investments
[nlercst on inves‘[mcms

Net cash used in investing aclivities -

Net increase (decrease) in cash .
Cash at beginning of the year -

Cash 2t end of year S

Reconciliation of operating income to net ¢cash provided by operating activities:

Operating income (loss}) S (430.,637)

15,029

(415.608)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income 10
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 418,500
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Change in assets & liabilities:
{Increase) decrease in receivables {56.865)
{Increase) decrease in inventory -
{Increase) decrease in prepards
Increase (decrease) i acc'ts payable 1101

Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll -

418.500

(29.528)

1,101

Total adjustments 362,736

27.337

360,073

Net cash provided by

operating activities $ (67.901)

3

42360

{25.535)

Schedule of noncash investing and financing activities:
Cuontributions of assets from other governments S 2.929.504
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SCHEDULES OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Debt Service Fund,
Special Revenue Funds
&

Capital Project Funds
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
DEBT SERVICE FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Vanance With

Final Budget
Original Final Positive
Revenues: Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Interest - - 10,296 10,294
Expenditures:
Current:
Miscellaneous:
Paying agent fees % 25,000 $ 25,000 S 4,761 § 20,239
Debt Service:
Principal payments on :
General obligation debt 3,821,705 3,792,551 3,792,357 194
State loans 559211 960,882 923,905 36,977
Total principal payments 4,380,916 4,753,433 4,716,262 37,171
Interest payments on:
General obligation debt 1,256,729 1,251,561 1,135 488 116,473
State loans 311,500 331,585 306,675 24910
Total interest payments 1,568,229 1,583,546 1,442,163 141,383
Total Expenditures 5,974,145 6,361,979 6,163,180 198,793
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures {5,974,145) (6,361,979) (6,152,890 209,089
Other Financing Sources and (Uses):
Unexpended fund balance 125,000 (255,000) - 255,000
Transfers from other funds:
From the General Fund 4749721 5,137,721 5,153,888 16,167
From the Community Devel Block Grant Fund 355,341 55,341 55,341 -
From the Revolving Building Fund 1,044,083 1,423,917 1,285,861 (138.,056)
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 5,974,145 6,361,979 6,495,090 133111
Net change in fund balances 5 - $ - 342,200 $ 342,200
Fund balance, beginning 1,175,000
Fund balance, ending

$ 1,517,200




REVENUES:

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALLANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Highwav Fund

Coal Haul Roads Fund

OQriginal
Budger

Firal

Budget Actual

Variance With
Final Budget
Positive
(Negative)

Finai

Budget Actual

Variance With
Fina} Budget
Positive

Taxes - State Shared
Other local taxes
Intergovemnmental:
Federal
Siate
Other
Service charges
Fines and forfertures
[nterest
Misgellaneous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

General government

Puhlic safety

Public works

Heaith & hospitals

Highway

Social Services

Community Development
and Housing

Economic development

Miscellaneous

Payments to Camponent Units

T'otal Expenditures

Excess (d:ficiency) of revenues
over {under} expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES):

34,717,500

$4.717.500 543513872

19218

S 96,372

214,000

857.500

$ $

214.600 117.492

857.500 -

- 28.899

{Negative)
3 -
(96.508)

(857.500)

28.899

4,717,500

4,717.500 4,833,090

115,590

)

071,500

1,071,500 146,391

025109)

6,911,715

6,502,022

408,693

071,500

1.071.500

9,122

1.052.378

911,715

0.911.715 6,503,022

408.693

071,500

1,071,500 19.122

1,052,378

_(2.194215)

(2,194215) {1,669.932)

524,282

- 127.269

127,269

Unexpended balance - prior years

Transfer from other tinds

Transfers to other funds

Capital leases

Sale of capital azsets
Tota!l Other Financing

Sources and Uses

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance, beginning,
As adjusted
Fund balance. ending

532,560
1,661,715

532,500
1,661,713

1.661.715

(532.500)

2.194.215

2,154.215 1.661,715

(532.500)

< -

(8.217)

1,433,492
$ 1,425.275

$ {8217

g

127,269

887,706

51,014,975

$127,269




Traasit Fund

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

SPECTAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

Variance With
Final Budge1
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
3 - § - M - $ -
1,112,546 1,112,546 771.454 (341.092)
316,680 310,680 244918 (71.762)
138,000 138,000 149,844 11,844
5,000 5.000 9,966 4.966
1,572,226 1,572.226 1,176,182 (396.044)
1,982,278 1,982,278 1,631,425 350,853
1,982,278 1,982.278 1,631.425 350,853
(410,052) {410,052) (455.243) (45.191)
212,119 212,119 - (212,019)
197,933 197,933 197,913 -
- 127,259 127,259
410,052 410,052 325,192 (84.860)
$ 5 - (130,051) $ {130.051)
132.205
$ 2,154

(Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Community Development Block Grant Fund

Variance With
Final Budget

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
$ - $ - $ - $ -
244,900 921,900 880,399 {41,001)
30,000 50,000 32,250 {(17,750)
4,441 4,441 - (4.441)
299341 976,341 913,149 {63,192)
291,000 300,000 244,571 55,429
455,000 548,926 (93,926)

- 167,000 132,892 34,108

50,000 50,000 54,779 4,779

- 55,000 49,251 5.749
341.000 1,027,000 1.030.419 (3.419)
{41,659 {50,659 {117.270) (66.611
97.000 97,000 - (97.000)

- 9,000 9,000 -
(55.341) {55,341) (55.966) (625)
41,639 50,659 (46.966) (97.625)

g - $ - {164,236) ${164.238)

140.760
§ (23.476)




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES [N FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Block Grant Program Income Fund
Variance With

Community Development & Housing Fund
Varjiance With

Final Budget Final Budget
Original Final Positive Original Final Positive
REVENUES: Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Budget Budget Actual (Negative)
Taxes - State Shared $ - 5 - 5 - H - S - S - g - 3 -
Other local taxes - - - - - - - -
Intergovernmental:
Federal - 20,600 22,570 2.570 1,042,613 1,042,613 909,838 (132,775}
State - - - - 236,678 236,678 §9,693 (146.985)
Other - - - - 7.500 7.500 6,000 (L,500)
Service charges - - - - 32.800 12,800 38.500 5,700
Fines and forfeitures - - - - - - - -
[nterest - - 13 13 - - - -
Miscellaneous 5,400 5,400 5.400 - 1,000 1.000 578 (422)
Tota! Revenues 3.400 25,400 27,983 2.583 1,320,591 1,320,591 1,044,609 (275,982)
EXPENDITURES:
General government - - - - - - - -
Public safety - - - - - - - -
Public works - - - - - - - -
Health & hospitals - - - - - - - -
Highway - - - - - - - -
Social Services - - - - - - - -
Commuinity Development -
and Housing 55.400 75,400 38285 37,115 1,502,354 1,502,354 1.33)1.516 170.838
FEconoriic development - - - - - - - -
Miscellaneous - - - - - - - -
Payments to Component 1nits - - - - - - - -
Total Expenditures 55,400 75,400 38,285 37,113 1.502.354 1,502,354 1,331,516 170,838
Excess (dificiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures _ {50.000) (50.000) (10.302) 39,698 {1%1.763) _(181.763) (286.907) (105,144
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND (USES):
Unexpended balance - prior years 50,000 50,000 - (50,0000 - - - -
Transfer from other funds - - - - 181.763 181,763 149,600 (32.154)
Trunsfers to other funds - - - - - - - -
Proceeds from .Jebt issuance - - - - - - - -
Sale of capiral ussets - - - - - - - -
Tata! Other Financing
Soarees and Lses 50.000 50,000 - (50,000 181,763 181.763 149,609 (32,154)
Net change in fund balances S - S - (10.302) $ {10.302) $ - $ (137,298) ${137.298)
Fund balance. beginning
As adjusted 600,224 150,468
Fund balance, ending 5 589622 $ 13,170




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Drug Task Force Fuad Gaming Fund
Variance With Vartance With
Final Budget Final Budge1
Qriginal Final Positive Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Acrual [Megarive) Budget Budget Actual (Negative}
) - 3 - 3 - $ - 5 - 5 - 3 - $ -
- - - - 630,155 648,455 639,191 (9,204)
18,501 18.501 18,300 (201) - - - -
- - - - 66,000 66,000 57,600 (8,400
38,250 38,250 36,222 17,972 - - - -
2,000 2,060 1,435 {563} - - - -
- - - - - - 30 30
58,751 58.751 75,957 17,266 696,155 714,455 696.821 (17.634)
- - - - 112,155 132,135 130,289 1,866
77,252 77,252 80,150 (2,898} 141,000 153,500 151,145 2,355
77,252 77,252 80,150 (2,898) 273,155 285,655 281.434 4221
(18,501 {18.501) (4,193) 14.308 423.000 428.800 415387 {13.413)
18,501 18,501 18,301 200y - - - -
- - - - {423,000 (428,800) {424,899} 3901
18.501 18.501 18.301 (200) (423.000) (428.800) (424.899) 1.901
3 - S - 14,108 $ 14,108 M - 3 - (9.512}) $ 9.512)
27232 151.145
5 41,340 $ 141.633
{Continued)
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REVENUES:

ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

SCHEDULE QF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Revolving Building Fund

Fire, Rescue & Public Safety Fund

Original
Budget

Variance With
Final Budget
Positive
Actual (Negative)

Final

Original
Budget

Final
Budget

Actual

Variance With
Final Budgel
Positive
(Negative)

Taxes - State Shared
Other local taxes
Intergovernmental:
Federal
State
Other
Service charges
Fines and forfeitures
Interest
Miscellaneous
Tota: Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

General govertiment

Public safety

Pub’ic works

Health & hospitals

Highway

Sogial Services

Conymunity Development

ail Housing

Euennomic development

Miscellancous

Payments to Component Units
Total Expenditures

Excess (dificiency) of revenues
over (under) cxpenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND {USES):

3 -

1,674,335
1,693,543

1,509,310

$

Budget

1,474,335
1.693.543

603,335
1.046,987

(871.000)
(640,550)

2,289,144 2,346,383 57,239

s -
243,556
84,000

4,000
50,000

3 .
243,556
84,000

4,000
50,000

% -

228.445
91,930

7.697
89,942

g -

(15‘111-)

7,930

3.697
19,942

$,077.188

5.457.022 3.996,705 (1.460.317)

181,556

381,556

4i8.014

36.458

5859.911

5.859.911 2.862.761 2997150

- 35.000 {35.000)

351,470

5.859911

5,859.911 2,897,761 2.962.150

645,112

645,112

351.470

291,642

(782.723)

_(402.889) 1.096,944 1.501,833

_(263.556)

(263.556)

66,544

330,100

Unexpended balance - prior year

Transfer from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Proceeds from deb: (ssuance
Saie of capital assets

Total Other Financing
Sources and U ses

Net change in fund baiances
Fund balance; beginning

As ailjusted
Fund balance, ending

1.899.636

(1.136.963)

1.899.686 - (1.899.686)

{1,496.797) {1.331,241) 165,556

322,050

263.556

263.556

(263.556)

782,723

- 322,050

402.889 {1.609.191) {1.412,080)

263.556

263,556

{263.556)

kY -

89,753 5 89753

1,668,131
$1.758.084

66,544

351,633
$ 418177

P St -

$ 66,544
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Total Special Revenue Funds

Variance With
Final Budget

Original Final Positive
Budger Budget Actual (Negative)
§ 4,717,500 4,717,500 4,813,872 $ 5 96,372
844,155 862,455 756,683 (105,772)
4,731,854 5,428,894 3,188,096 (2,240,798}
2,490,457 2,490,457 1,629,261 (861.196)
76,001 76,001 56,550 (19,451)
320,800 320,800 137,874 17,074
38,250 38,250 56,222 17,972
6,000 6.000 38,044 32,044
1,975,151 2,354,985 2,452,299 97,314
15,200,208 16.295.342 13.3128.901 {2.960.441)
132,155 122,155 130,289 1,866
1,154,364 1,175,864 827,336 348,528
1,982,278 2,437,278 2,180,353 256,927
- 167,000 132,852 34,108
7,983,215 7,983,215 6,522,144 1,461,071
50,000 50,000 54,779 4,779)
1,557,754 1,632,754 1,419,052 213,702
5,859.911 5859911 2,862,761 2,997,150
- - 35.000 (35.000)
18.719.677 10.438,177 14,164,604 5273571
(3.519,469) (3.142.835) (835.703) 2,307,132
1,054,861 1.054,861 - {3,054,861}
2,059,912 2,068,912 2,036,558 (32,354)
(1,595,304) (1,980,938) (1,812,106) 168,832
- - 127,259 127,239
- - 322050 322.050
3,519,469 3,142,815 673,761 {2.469.074)
$ - - (161.942) 5 (l61.942)
5,543.1596
5,381.254




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL PROJECT FLNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Capital Improvement Projects Fund Pay-As-You-Go (PAYGO) Fund
Variznee With Variance With
Final Budget Final Budget
Origimnal Firal Positive Original Final Positive
REVENUES: Budget Budpget Actual (Negative) Budget Budget Acmal (Negative)
Intergovernmental

Federa! grants S 2.218.300 $ 3,318,300 $ 1.663.248 $ (1.655.052) $ 240.000 $ 240,000 S - $ (240,000)

State grants $0.000 80.000 1,490,665 1,410.665 - - - -

Qther - - 72,223 72,223 - - - -
Miscellaneous:

interest - - 5,945 5,945 - - 66,707 66,707

Miscellaneous 295,666 295,666 195,415 (100,251) 25,000 25.000 - {25,000}

Total Revenues 3.693.966 3,693,966 3,427,496 (206,470} 265,000 265,000 66.707 (198,29%)
EXPENDITURES:
Generai Government - - - - 100,000 100.000 72,590 27410
Public Safety 4,752 67,752 1,362,320 (1.294,568) 300,000 300,000 - 300,000
Public Works 118300 113,300 71,282 47.018 50,000 75,000 132,909 (57.909)
Health 4,830,000 4,872.000 3.824,825 1.647,175 - - - -
Social Services - - - - - - - -
Education - - - - - - -
Recreation, Culrure & Libraries - - - - - - -
Conservation of Nawrai Resourc 25,000 70,000 - 70,000 - - -
Economic Development 3,675,666 3,675,600 1,725,302 1,950,364 - - - -
Miscellaneous - - - - - - 22,224 {22,224)
Payments to component units 7,142,700 7,142,700 601,323 6,541.377 - - 31,412 (31.412)
Total Expenditures 15,796,418 15,946,418 7.585,052 8.261.366 450,000 475.000 259,135 215,865
Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (12,102.452) (12.252.452) (4.157,556) 8,094,896 (185,000) (210,000} {192.428) 17,572
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES AND USES:
Unexpended {und balance 1,197.700 1.197 700 - (1.197.700) 185.000 210,000 - (210,000)
Transfers In:

Frirn other funds 427,752 577,752 768.648 190.896 - - 1,056.607 1,056,607
Transters Qut:

Te other funds - - - - - - - -
[ssuance of debt 6,677,000 6.677,000 - (6,67771.000) - - - -
Capital leases - - - - - - 22,224 22224
Sale of capiial assets J.800.000 3,800,000 3,800,000 - - - - -

Total Qiher Financirg U'ses 12,102,452 12,252,452 4,568.648 (7.683.804) 185,000 210,000 1,078,831 8068.831
Net change in fund ha'ances $ - 3 - 411,092 § 411,092 § - $ - 886,403 $ 886,402
Fund balance, beginning (777.802) 1,967,778
Fund balance, ending $ (366.710) $ 2,854,181
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Public Improvermnent Bonds
Capital Projects Fund

Total All Capital Projects

Variance With
Final Budget

Vanance With
Final Budget

Original Final Posiuve Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual {Negative) Budget Budget Aclual {MNegative)
$ - $ - b - $ - $3.558.300 $ 3,558,300 $ 1,663,248 $(1,895.052)

- - - 80.000 80,000 1,490,665 1,410,665

- - - - - 72223 72,223

- 8,302 8,302 - - 80,954 80,954
- - - 320.666 320,666 195,415 (125.251)
- 8.302 8.302 3.958.966 3.958.966 3,502,505 (456,461)

45 000 45,000 1,019 43,981 145,000 145,000 73,609 71.391
- - - 304,752 367,752 1,362,320 (994,568)
- - - - 168,300 193,300 204,151 (10,891)
2.250.000 2,250,000 2,250,000 7,080,000 7.122,000 3.824,823 3,297,175
- 702,896 (702,396) - - 702,896 (702,896)

- - - - 25,000 70,000 - 70,000

250,000 250,000 - 250,000 3,925,666 3,925,666 1,725,302 2,200,364

- - 11,326 (11,326) - - 33,550 (33,550)

917,600 917.600 - 917.600 8.060.300 8.060.300 632,735 7.427.565
3,462,600 3,462,600 715,241 2,747,359 19.709.018 19.884,018 8.559.428 11.324,590
{3,462.600) (3.462,600) {706.939) 2,755,061 (15.750.052) {15.925.052) (5.056.923) 10,868,129
917,600 §17,600 - {917.600) 2,300,300 2,325,300 {2.323,300)

- - - 427,752 577,752 1,825,255 1,247,503
2,545,000 2,545,000 - (2,545,000) 9,222,000 9,222,000 - (9.222,000)
- - - - - - 22,224 22,224

- - - - 3.800.000 3.800,000 3.800.000 -
3,462.600 3,462,600 (3,452,600} 15.750.052 15,925,052 5.047.479 {10,277.573)
$ - 3 - (706,939) S (706,939 $ - S - 590,556 $ 590556

751,158 1,941,134
3 44,219 3 2,531,690
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND PROJECT BALANCES
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Project Revenues and other Sources
Proj Length Federal State Other Service Miscell.
Capital Improvement Projects Fund No. Budget Orants Grants Intergov'l Charges Revenues
Upper Potomac Ind. Park 209G 1,760,000 - - - - 23,183
Eckhart Scheol Roof 409K 51,000 - - - - -
NRCS Flood Project £09M 2,081.910 1,513,054 5120 127.851 - 38,625
Health Department Relocztion 409N £.000.000 - - - - 3,876,673
Porter Road 409pP - - 30.495 - -
Allconet Il 409 4.131.906 1,043,905 2,026.284 300.223 -
Rye Street Bridge 409R, 796,600 - 10,738 - -
Poomac River Water Study 409T 70.000 - - - - -
Cooperative Extension 4091 - - - - - 25,000
Mt. Ridge High Schoot 409W 11,000,000 - - - - -
FEMA FM AR 05 Flood Mitigation 409Y - 119,589 8,213 - - -
FEMA FMAP 06 Flood Mitigation A09Z - - - - - -
Landfill Closeout 4090 1,589,160 - 200,000 - - 284,000
State Flood Grant 410D 167.000 - 173.879 - - 7.969
Westernport Storm Pond 410P 95,100 - RE N P - - -
Riverside Industria! Park 410R 2,099.971 - - - - 399,323
Highland Trail 410X 10,606.000 3,224,644 3,209.330 6.772 - 215,706
5,902,192 5,698,771 434 846 - 4,935,569
Pay-As-You-Go Capital Project Fund
Computer Network 418l 150,000 - - - - -
Roads Paving Program 418R 2,350,000 - - - - -
Capital Qutlay 4187 276,048 - ] = - 22,224
Capital Project Reserves 4181 - - - - - 2,661,070
Bowman's Addition Flood Buyouts 420B 2,332,300 1,083,979 498,534 - = -
John Hambird School 420H 333.000 - - - -
LaVale Blvd Storm Drain 4200 1.500.000 - - - - -
County Office Bldg Addition 420R 500.000 - - - - -
Payroll/General Ledger Software 4208 500.000 - - - - -
Emergency Capital 420V - - - - - -
Telecommunications Program 4207 160,000 - - - - -
OP Roads Improvements 4203 500.000 - - - 16,392 -
1,083,979 498,534 - 16,392 2,683,294
Public Improvement Bonds Capital Praiect Fund
Allegany College, Physical Ed. 430A 1,511,510 - - - - -
Allegany College. [.ibrary Roof 430D 91,700
Bond Interest 4307 27.104 27,104
Hond Closing Costs 4311 - = - - - -
- = - . 27,104
Total Capital Project Funds 3§ 6,987,171 $  6.197.305 $ 434,846 3 16.392 $ 7.645967
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND PROJECT BALANCES
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2005

Revenues and other Sources Expenditures and other Uses Remaining
Debt Transfers Total Transfers Tota) Project Project
Proceeds n Sources Expenditures Out Uses Balance Budget
- 265,500 343,683 1,703,685 - 1,703,685 {1,355,002) 56,315
- 47307 47,107 51,000 - 51,000 (3,893) -
- 526,000 2,210,650 2,100,718 - 2,100,718 109,932 (18,808)
1,035,378 4,912,051 3,835,553 - 3,835,553 1,076,498 4,164,447
- 30,495 30,495 - 30,495 - (30.493)
- 897,907 4,270,319 4,210,319 60,000 4,270,319 - {138,413)
- 124,660 135,398 46,044 - 46,044 29,354 750,556
- - - 319,762 - 39,762 {39,762) 30,238
- - 25,000 - - - 25,000 -
- 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,062,116 - 1,062,116 (62,116} 9,937,884
- RV 191,802 160,178 = 160,178 31,624 {160,178)
- 52,000 82,000 - - - 82,000 -
652,518 127,240 1,268,648 99646 220,699 1,220,345 48,303 368,815
- 17,851 199,699 200,208 - 200,208 (509) (33,208)
- 1,385 95,097 95,097 - 95,097 - 3
- 2,015,640 2,414,963 1,93G,681 484,282 2,414,963 - (314,992)
- 56,649 6,713,101 7,081,240 - 7,081,240 (368,139) 3,524,760
652,318 6,320,317 23,945,013 23,546,742 764,981 24,311,723 (366.710) 18,136,924
- 155,725 155,725 108,342 5,725 114,067 47,658 35933
- 3,581,607 3,581,607 2,079,819 250,347 2,330,166 1,251 441 19,834
298,304 214,827 535355 446,768 8R,387 535355 - {259,307)
- 1,784,593 4,445,665 - 3,755,457 3,755,457 690,208 (3,755,451
- 250,150 [.£32.663 1,808,254 - 1,808,254 24,409 524,046
= 833,000 £33,000 833,000 - 833,000 - -
- 200,000 200,000 - - - 200,000 1,500,000
- 250,000 250,000 576 - 576 249424 499,424
- 485,000 483,000 371,656 - 371,656 113,334 128,344
- 200, D 200,000 - - - 200,000 -
- 160,000 160,000 151,718 - 151,718 8,282 8,282
= 621,731 638,123 562,708 - 562,708 75,415 (62,708)
298,304 8,736,635 13,317,138 6,362,841 4,100,116 10,462,957 2,854,181 (1.361,609)
1,463,490 51,510 1,315,000 1,470,270 - 1,470,270 44,730 41,240
91,700 91,760 81,700 - 91,760 - 3
27,104 25,519 - 25,519 1,585 1,585
- - - 2,096 - 2,096 (2,096) (2,096)
1,555,190 51,510 1,633,804 1,589,585 - 1,589,585 44,219 40,729

§ 2305812 3 15,108,462 § 38,895,953 $ 31,499,168 § 4,865,097 $ 36,364,265 $ 2,531,650 $ 16,816,044
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CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
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EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES
BY PROJECT
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BY PROJECT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Upper Eckhart NRCS Health
Potornac School Flood Department Porter
Ind Park Roof Project Relocation Road
REVENUES: (409G) (409K} (409M) (409N (409P)

Intergovernmental:
Federal:
FEMA grant 5 - $ - $ - S - 3
Highway grant - - - -
Soil Conservation grant - - 805,366 - -
FmHA grant - - - - -
ARC grant - - - - -
State:
State Aid Highway - - 5,120 - -
MD Dept. of Environment - - - - 30,495
Program Open Space
Miscellancous State Grants - - 86,491 72,895 -
Other Intergovernmental . - 41,360 - -
Miscellaneous:
[nterest - - - - -
Contribution & donations - - 10,715 - -
Miscellaneous - - - - -

Total Revenues - - 949,052 72,895 30,495

EXPENDITURES:

Public Safety 290,251 - 911,889 - -
Public Works - - - -
Health and hospitals - - - 3,824,825 -
Libraries - - - -
Economic Development - - - - -
Payments to component units:

Board of Education 40,389 - - -

Total Expenditures 290,251 40,389 911,889 3,824 825 30.495

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES and (USES):

Transfers in:
General Fund - - - 41,603 -
General Fund, mternal transfers - - -
Gaming Fund - 36,496 - - -
Sale of capital assets 5 - - 3,800,000 -

Total Other Financing
Sources and Uses - 36,496 - 3,841,603 -

Net change in fund balances (290,251 (3,863 37,163 89,673 -

Fund Balance, beginning (1,064,751 72,769 986,825 -

Fund Balance, Ending § (1.355,002) $ (3,8%3) 5 106,932 $ 1,076,498 ) -
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BY PROJECT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Rye Potomac River
Street Water CoOperative Mt. Ridge Total
Aliconet I Bridge Study Exiension High School This
(409Q) (409R) (4097T) (405U) (409W) Page
- 3 - $ - § - 5 - $ -
- - - - - 805,366
21,271 - - - - 21,271
9,844 - - - - 5,844
B ; ; . - 5,120
- - - - 30,495
26,285 - - - - 185,671
30,863 - - - - 72,223
- - - - - 10,715
88,263 - - - - 1,140,705
- - - - 1,202,140
1,025 39,762 - - 71,282
} - - - - 3,824,823
110,465 - - - - 110,465
238,151 - - - 322,783 601,323
348,616 1,025 39,762 - 322.783 5,810,035
94,987 - - 43,766 - 180,356
. . - (54,271) - (54.271)
- - - - 388,403 424,899
- - - - - 3,800,000
94,987 - - {10,505) 388,403 4,350,984
(165,366) (1,025) (39,762) (10,505) 65,620 {318,346)
165,366 90,379 - 35,505 (127,736) 158,357
- $ 89,354 $ {39,762) $ 25,000 §  (62,116) $ (159,989
(Continued)
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REYENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BY PROJECT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

FEMA FEMA
Total Flood Flood Landfil}
Previous Crant Grant Closeout
REVENUES: Page (409Y) {4097) (4090}
fntergovernmental:
Federal:
FEMA Grant g - $ 119,589 $ - $ -
Highway grant - - - -
Soil Conservation grant 805,366 - - -
FmHA grant 21,271 - - -
ARC gram 9.844 - - -
State:
State Aid Highway 5,120 - - -
MD Dept. of Envirenment 30,495 9.213 - -
Program Open Space -
Miscellaneous State Grants 185,671 - - -
Other [ntergovernmental 72,223 - - -
Miscellaneous:
Interest - - - {1,925)
Contribution & donations 10,715 - - -
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total Revenues 1,148,705 128,802 - (1,925)
EXPENDITURES:
Public Safety 1,202,140 160,178 - -
Public Works 71,282 - - -
Health and hospitals 3,824,825 - - -
Libraries - - - -
Economic Development 110,465 - - -
Payments to component unuts:
Board of Education 601,323 - -
Total Expenditures 5,810,035 160,178 -
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES and (USES):
Transfers in:
General Fund 180,356 63,000 82.000 -
General Fund, internal transfers (54.271) - - -
Gaming Fund 424,899 - - -
Sale of capital assets 3,800,000 - - -
Total Other Financing
Sources and Uses 4,350,984 63,000 82,000 -
Net change in fund balances (318,346) 31,624 82,000 {1,925)
Fund Balance, beginning 158,357 - - 50,228
Fund Balance, Ending S (159,989 § 31,624 3 82,000 $ 48,303
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BY PROJECT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

$3.2 Million Westernport Riverside
Flood Sterm Industrial Highland
Grant Sewer Park Trail Fund
(410D) {(410P) (410R) (410X) Total
$ - & - b - $ - 8 119,589
- - 311,918 311,918
- - - 805,366
- - - 21,271
395,260 405,104
- - - 750,997 756,117
- - - - 39,708
89,500 £9,500
24,669 - - 395,000 605,340
- - . - 72,223
] - 7,870 - 5,945
7,969 - - 176,73 195,415
32,638 - 7,870 2,119,406 3,427,496
2 - - 1,362,320
- - - 71,282
. . - 3,824,825
- - 84,589 1,530,248 1,725,302
- - - 601,323
2 - 84,589 1,530,248 7,583,052
- - - 18,393 343,749
17,851 28,444 (30,2800 38,256 -
- - - - 424,899
- - - - 3,800,000
17,851 28,444 (30,280) 56,649 4,568,648
50,487 28,444 (106,999) 645,807 411,092
(50,996) (28.,444) 106,999 (1,013,946) (777,802)
) (509) ¥ - 5 - $ (368,139 $ {366,710)
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ALLEGANY COUNTY., MARYLAND
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
PAY-AS-YOU-GO (PAYGO) CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES. EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BY PROJECT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2006

Roads Bowman's John LaVale
Computer Pavine Capital Addition Hurmb:rd Storm
Network Progrum Outlay Flood School Draing
REVENUES: (418]) (~18R) (4182) (420B) {420H) (4200)
Miscellaneous:
Interest kY - $ - $ - b - g - 3
Miscellancous - - - - - -
Total Revenues - - - - - -
EXPENDITURES:
General Government 7,041 - - - - -
Public Works - 71.345 - -
Miscellancous - - 22.224 - -
Payments to component units:
Board of Iiducation - - - - 31,412
Total Expenditures 7,041 71,345 22,224 - 31,412

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES and (USES):

Transfers-in from:

Genera! fund - 481.607 - - - 200,000
Transfers out - - - - -
[ssuance of det - - - - -
Capital leascs - - 22224 - - -

Total Other Financing

Sources and Uses - 481,607 22.224 - - 200,000
Net change in fund balances (7.041) 410.262 - - (31.412} 200.000
Fund Balance. beginmng 48.699 841,179 - 24,409 31,412 -
Fund Balance. Ending $ 41,658 $ 1.251.441 3 - $ 24409 S - $ 200,000




ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

PAY-AS-YOU-GO (PAYGO) CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BY PROJECT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Payroll/
County Gen Ledger Tele-
Office Software Emergency communications Road Capiral Designated
Building Upgrade Capital Project [mprovemenis Reserves Projects
{420R) {4205} (420V) {4207) (4203) {(4181) (4181} Total
§ $ S - $ - S - § 66,707 ) $ 66,707
- - 66,707 66,707
576 45,048 - 19,925 - 72,590
- - 61,564 132,909
- - - - - - 22,224
- - - - - . - 31,412
376 45,048 - 19,925 61,564 - - 259,135
230,000 - 83,000 40,000 - 1,056,607
- - - - - - - 22,224
250,600 - - - 83,000 40,000 - 1,078,831
249,424 (45.048) (19,8253 23,426 106,707 - 886,403
- 158,392 200,000 28,207 51,879 41,853 541,646 1,967,778
$ 249,424 § 113,344 § 200,000 $ 8,282 § 75413 $ 148,562 $ 341,646 $ 2,854,181
(Continued)




ALLEGANY COUNTY. MARYLAND
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT BOND FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BY PROJECT

FOR THE YEAR END

2004 Public

ED JUNE 30, 2006

Improvement Bonds

2006 Public
[mprovement
Bonds

Allegany
College. Md
Physical Fd

REVENUES: (430A)

Library Roof

Allegany
College Bond
Interest

{430D) (4307)

Bond
Closing
Cosis
(431 1)

Total
Public
Improvement
Beonds Fund

Intergovernmental:
State
State Dept of Public Safety
Misceilaneous:
[nterest -

- 8,302

3,102

Total Revenues -

- 8,302

8,302

EXPENDITURES:

General government -
Education
Recreation, cuiture and libraries -
Miscellaneous -
Payments to compenent units:

Bourd of Education -

91.700 -

11.326

1,019
702.896

11,326

Tortal Expenditures 611,196

91.700 11.326

1.019

715,241

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES and (USES):

Transfers in:

PAYGO fund -
Transfers to:

Capnal projects fund -

Issuance of debt - -

Tota! Other Financing
Sources and Uses -

Net change in fund balances

Fund Balance, beginuing
Fund Balance, Ending

(611.196)

655,920

(91.700)

91,700

{3.024) (1.319)

4,609 (L.077)

(706.939)

751,158

44730 §

3

1,585 § {(2.096) $

44,219
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULES

WATER DISTRICTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF
REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN
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SANITARY DISTRICTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE
OF NET ASSETS

SANITARY DISTRICTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF
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AND CHANGES IN
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
ALLEGANY COUNTY WATER DISTRICTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - (ENTERPRISE FUNDS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Barton Ind. Oldtown
OPERATING REVENUES: Grahamtown Consol Park Road McCoole
Service charges $ 14700 0§ 32723 % 2874 % 156,108 143,583
Miscellaneous - - - - -
Total Operating Revenues 134,70] 32,723 2.874 156,108 143,583
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries 14,042 4,151 16,809 19,023
Fringe benefits 6,537 1,932 - 7.826 8.850
Office expenses - - - - -
Utilities 85,130 20,270 3.862 60.355 54,300
Repairs and maintenance 989 2789 2.692 5,949 3,407
Professional fees - - - - -
Matenals and supplies 76 229 1,322 1,649 1,353
Insurance - - - - -
Indirect cost 4 169 1,242 - 3,785 5,949
Miscellaneous - - - - -
Depreciation 39,576 18,212 44,422 73,890 96,707
Total Onerating Expenses 151,219 48,825 52,298 170,263 189,595
Operating Income (Loss) (16,518) (16,102) {49,424) (14,155} {46,012)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
Debt Sevice fees - - 19,348 - -
[nterest income 1,599 - - 2,486 4,406
[nterest expense {25971) (4,625) (15,975) {(14,511) (45,889}
Total Non-opetating Revenue (Expenses) {24,372) (4,623) 3,373 {12,025) (41,483)
Income Before Contributions
and Transfers (40,850} (20,727) (46,051) (26,180} (87,495
Capitzl Contributions:
Federal grants - - -
Transfers in, operating:
General fund, operating - 12,922 - -
Change in Net Assets S (40,850 § (20,727) $ (33,129) § {26,180) (87,495)
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
ALLEGANY COUNTY WATER DISTRICTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - (ENTERPRISE FUNDS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Route 36 Borden/ Carlos/
Ellerslie Eckhar Hoffman Vale Summit Zhilman Shaft Total

287852 8 280,151 § 8433 S 47,841 $ 102,167 % 183,031 $ 1,379,464
498 - - - - - 498
288,350 280,151 8,433 47,841 102,167 183,031 1,379,962
37,146 25,871 899 5,257 9,200 11,206 143,604
17,293 12,044 419 2,447 4,283 5,217 66,854
153,274 155,041 4156 43,537 57,722 113,383 751,630
3,555 33,833 64 370 646 2,832 57,126
800 500 - - - - 1,300
2,054 1,736 50 291 507 1,102 11,069
158 158 - - - - 316
6,277 6,504 204 1,981 3,178 4,329 37,618
53,700 51,967 2,336 28.603 34,596 57,325 501,334
274 257 287.654 8,128 82,486 110,132 195,394 1,573,251
14,093 (7,503) 305 (34,645) (7,963) (12,363) {190,289
- - - - - - 19,348

9,112 8,186 104 656 2,671 2,259 31,479
- (20,326) (213) - (17,682) (36,013) (181,207
9,112 {12,140) (11 650 (15,011) (33,754) (130,380)
23,205 (19,643) 194 (33,989 (22,976) (46,117) (320,669)
- - . 188,261 151,057 339,318

- - - . - - 12,922
23205 % (19,643) $ 194 § (33,989) 3§ 165285  § 104,940 31,571
Total net assets - beginning, as restated 15,241,603

Total net assets - ending $ 15,273,174
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
ALLEGANY COUNTY SANITARY DISTRICTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - (ENTERPRISE FUNDS)

June 30, 2006
Jennings
General Bowling Braddock Bedford Run/Wills
ASSETS Fund Green Cresaptown Run Road Creek McCoole
Current Assets:
Cash:
Cash 536,439 $ - 3 - 5 - % - % -8 -
Cash - Restricted - - - 320,643 - - -
Investments 173,140 - - - 53,131 - -
Receivables:
Accounts (net) 2,600 166,986 70,453 260,764 93,062 72,821 15,692
Taxes - restricted - 17,923 15,228 1,098 6,548 4,586 5,400
Accounts (net) - restricted - - - - - 5,757 3,425
Other 164,300 - - - 1,481 - -
Due from other funds - 401,878 897,924 149,725 - - -
Inventory 150,304 - - - - - -
Total current assets 1,026,783 586,787 983,605 732,230 154,222 83,164 24,517
Noncurrent Assets:
Land - 6,750 5,000 500 1,000 1,500 -
Construction in progress 2,398,345 - - - - - -
Capital assets subject
to depreciation 2,547,158 5,396,430 2,715,300 3,208,460 4,904,853 6,105,179 2,282,006
Less: Accumulated depreciation (1,136,700) (2,865,162) (1,422,298) (2,372,608) (2,829,948) (3,481,831) (1,084,658)
Total noncurrent assets 3,808,303 2,538,018 1,298,002 836,352 2,075,905 2,624,848 1,197,348
Total Assets 4,835,586 3,124,805 2,281,607 1,568,582 2,230,127 2,708,012 1,221,865
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable 395,345 26,330 514 43,470 20,397 9,212 $ 15,006
Accrued wages payable 16,006 - - - - - -
Accrued payroll fringe benefits 7,228 - - - - - -
Accrued interest payable 4,931 1,627 1,862 - 2,398 905 230
Current portion of long term debt
Bonds & loans 68,116 3,254 2,974 - 28,431 - 15,881
Advances from other funds - - - - 16,711 17,822 -
Compensated absences 45910 - - - - - -
Due to other funds 2,571,170 - - - 271,182 1,140,959 422,480
Miscellaneous liabilities 52,752 - - 199,286 - - -
Total current liabilites 3,161,458 31,211 5,350 242,756 339,119 1,168,898 453,597
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Cash advance due General Fund - - - - - 500,000 -
Long term debt:
Bonds & loans 1,096,870 31,414 30,053 - 158,330 - 16,726
Advances from other funds - - - - - - -
Compensated absences 244,773 - - - - - -
Total noncurrent liabilites 1,341,643 31,414 30,053 - 158,330 500,000 16,726
Total Liabilities 4,503,101 62,625 35,403 242,756 497,449 1,668,898 470,323
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 2,643,817 2,503,350 1,264,975 836,352 1,872,433 2,607,026 1,164,741
Restricted for debt service - 17,923 15,228 1,098 6,548 10,343 8,825
Unrestricted (2,311,332) 540,907 966,001 488,376 (146,303) (1,578,255) (422,024)
Total Net Assets 332,485 $ 3,062,180 $ 2,246,204 §$ 1,325,826 $ 1,732,678 $ 1,039,114 § 751,542
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
ALLEGANY COUNTY SANITARY DISTRICTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - (ENTERPRISE FUNDS)

June 30, 2006
Celanese Cash Barton Total
Geaorges Franklin/ Treatment Mexico Valley Oldtown Industrial All

Qldtown Flintstone Creek Brophytown Plant Farms Road Road Park Districts
-8 -3 - § - 8 - % - b - % - 536,439

- - - - - 320.643

- - - - - 226,271

3,982 7,857 187,918 12,563 15,400 234,225 4,946 17,947 306 1,167,522
348 1177 24,441 289 - 2,933 1,775 3,513 - 85,259
2,670 1,291 69,496 - - - - 82,639

- 1,087 - - 495 - 167,363

- - 1,112,570 402,305 - 522,090 - - 3,486,492

- - - - - - - - - 150,304
7,000 10,325 1,395,512 415,157 15,400 759,743 6,721 21,460 306 6,222,932
500 3,600 5,968 - - 2,500 - 1,000 2178

- 869,824 1,654,009 - 4,922,178

852,987 1,152,461 24,007,910 561,728 160,857,863 4,211,255 813,332 2,816,919 2.064,133 83,497,974
(425,606) (545,080) (10,251,748) (260,289) (1,631,462) (1,129,252) (203,333) (620,349) {3,440}  (30,269,764)
427,88] 610,381 14,631,954 295,439 19,880,410 3,084,503 609,999 2,197,570 2,060,693 58,178,106
434,881 620,706 16,027,466 710,596 19,895.810 3,844,246 616,720 2,219,030 2,060,999 64,401,038
1,185 11,620 - 4,002 169,618 - (29,633) (375) 666,091

- - 924 - - - 16,930

- - - - 460 - - - - 7,688

177 2,512 17,835 - 32,549 4,801 892 3,383 74,102
3,084 9,252 42,065 402,468 73,877 2.141 8,118 - 664,661

- - 23,078 - - 320 - 57,931

- - - - - - - 45,910
38,309 121,577 . 238,051 2,133 7,065 237,850 5,050,776
- - - - 40,001 - - - - 292,039
41,570 134,526 94,508 - 718,455 253,296 3,166 (10,747} 237,475 6,876,728
- - - 500,000

14,310 42,931 314,666 - 7,673,006 500,117 127,621 484,004 - 10,490,648

- - - - - - 16,503 - 19,503

- - - - - ; - - 244,773
14,310 42,931 314,666 - 7,673,006 500,717 127,621 503,507 - 11,254,924
55.880 177,457 409,264 0 3,291,401 754,013 132,787 492,760 237 475 18,131.652
410,487 558,198 14,252,145 295,439 11,804,930 2,504,909 480,237 1,685,625 2,060,693 46,945,363
3,018 2,468 93,937 289 - 2,933 1,775 3,513 - 167,898
{34,504) {117,417) 1,272,120 414,868 {300,587) 582,191 1,921 37,132 {237,169) (843,875)
379,000 § 443,249 § 15618202 § 710,596 11,504,349 & 3,090,233 § 483933 § 1,726,270 § 1,823,524 § 46,269,336
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ALLEGANY COUNTY., MARYLAND

ALLEGANY COUNTY SANITARY DISTRICTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - (ENTERPRISE FUNDS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Jennings
General Bowling Braddock Bedford Run/Wills
OPERATING REVENUES: Fund Green Cresaptown Run Raoad Creek McCoole
Service charges $ 9036 § 650,606 § 263,532 812291 % 159748 S 286,877 § 54,157
Miscellaneous - - - - - - -
Tetal Operating Revenues 9.036 650,606 295,532 812,291 159,748 286,877 54,157
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Wages and salaries 25974 92,553 39,429 93,177 76,990 56,722 11,345
Employee benefis 1,473 43.088 18,356 43,375 35.842 26,407 5,281
Office expenses 422 7.523 4,014 7.021 5,510 4,269 812
Ulities 2,239 310934 9,951 32,422 18,376 10,161 8.076
Repairs and maintenance 2285 57.523 0232 30,787 22,042 11.928 25677
Contractlual services 92 5.031 2,143 5.067 4,188 3,085 617
Water/Sewage treatment costs - 2068.483 219136 588,069 206,079 158,457 61,433
Professiong! fees 33 4.866 776 1,834 1.516 1.117 223
Mateials and supplies 31,523 17615 5,508 21,128 11,089 8,056 4,931
Insurance 332 19.060 7.693 13,188 15032 14,417 2.215
Indirect cost 649 35,366 15,064 35617 26437 21.685 4,327
Misceilzneous 60 3610 2.441 3.395 2718 2,003 400
Depreciation 453 132.459 64.719 104,257 119,289 137,411 52.281
Total Operating Expenses 14,535 998.11¢ 398.462 984,337 548,108 455,720 177,628
Operaring [ncome { Loss) (5499 (347.513) {102.930) {172,046} {188,360} (168,8413) (123471)
NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSESY:
Real and personal property taxes - 159,307 156.367 11,588 97,946 32,843 15,664
Interest & Penalties. taxes - 3.984 3.040 282 1,869 1.096 357
Discounts. taxes {837) (813) (s7) (451) (162) {45)
Enterprise/industrial exemptions - - - 23 - - -
Collection fees (3.614) {3.494) (262} (2.100) (747) (348)
Froni footage assessments - 64 - - (76} 3331 8,974
Inlerest income 133 14.767 7977 12,94} 13,323 14,839 299
interest income, debt service - i7 - - 283 772 179
Interest expense (10,282) (2,895) (2,786) - (18,244) (2.224) (2,506)
Allocated debt service revenue 77.802 (7.958) (6.449) {15,250} {12,600) {5.283) {1.860)
Sale of capital assets - -
Miscellanecus non-operating revenue - - - 7.039 - - -
Total Nonoperating revenue (expenses) 67.653 162,835 153,848 17.304 73,944 55470 23,906
Income Before Contribations and Transfers 62,154 (184,678) 50918 (154,742) (114,416) (113,373 (99,565)
Capital Contributions:
Federa! - 30,927 30,927
Staie - - - -
Transfers in, operaling:

General Fund, operating - - - - - - -
Change in Net Assets 62,154 (153.751) 81.845 {154,742) {114.416) (113,373) (99,565)
Net assels - beginning 270,331 3,215,931 2,164,359 1,480,568 1,847,054 1,152,487 § 851,107
Net assets - ending $ 332485 % 306280 3 2246204 1,325826 3 1732678 § 1,029,114 % 751,542
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
ALLEGANY COUNTY SANITARY DISTRICTS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE - (ENTERPRISE FUNDS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Celanese Cash Barton Total
Georges Frankin/ Treatment Mexico Valley Oldtawn Industrial All
Oldtown Flintstone Creek Brophytown Plant Farms Road Read Park Districts

5 12,034 § 26,157 § 604,895 § 82726 S 966,675 S 1,126,794 § 17,733 § 75132 § 1,396 S 5,381,789
- - - - - - - - - 0
12,034 26,157 604,895 82,726 966,675 1,126,794 17,733 75.132 1,396 5,381,789
4,064 6,667 1994106 5,188 97.645 26,563 4,012 15,495 13,7698 746,040

2,014 3,302 98,567 2,415 44,720 12,366 1,868 7214 7,733 354,021
169 275 8,883 369 2.454 1,902 286 1,110 235 45254
8,286 10,472 92,567 27,034 184,188 688,553 212 6,170 15,754 1,425,395
3,271 26,791 27,335 8,824 67,960 12,577 409 9,639 3.407 321,687
128 209 6,484 280 - 1,446 218 843 - 29,831

510 208 763 7,036 2,553 121,181 11,234 8,383 - 1,653,585

46 76 2,338 40 7,148 523 79 305 - 21,281

531 1,533 34,221 747 78,660 9.381 538 1,702 6.241 211,424
460 2,559 35,731 1,006 - 5,189 781 4,838 - 127,501
201 1,467 45,401 1,969 - 10,161 1,529 5,929 - 209,512

83 136 6,642 181 - 938 140 547 - 23,300
17,557 23,925 513,727 12,592 394,643 07,495 21,399 81,824 3,440 1777473
40,020 77,700 1,072,075 68,042 879,971 988,273 42,705 149,999 50,608 6,946,304
{27,986) (51,543) (467,180) 14,684 86,704 138,519 (24,972} {74,867 (49.212) {1,564,315)
2,006 9,124 168,349 6,302 - 25,021 9,405 44,329 - 732,256
119 715 5.647 68 - 1,253 396 944 - 20,276
(10} {40) (501) (54) - (zn (38) 34 - (3,495)

- - - - - - - - - 23
{50) (264) (3.814) (141) - {615) 2149 (1,024) - {16,693)
2,760 3,567 69,634 ey - - - - - 103,233
663 878 21,237 705 46,039 2,960 597 1,343 - 142,393
112 17 1,772 68 - - - - - 3,320
(1,209 (3.295) {24,719} - (62,433) {31.862) (5.897) (22.363) - {150,715}
(386) (632) {18,233) (667) - (1,290 (658) (2.536) S 0

- - - - - - - 0

- - - - - - - - 7,039
4,005 10,170 218,972 6,260 (16,394) (4,654) 3,591 20,727 - 797,637
(23,981) (41,373) (248,208) 20,944 70,310 133.865 (21,381) (54,140) (49,212) (766,878)
- - 187,847 - - - - - 242,758 492,459

- - - - 1,896,063 - - - 829,795 2,728,860

- - - - - - - - 45,772 45,772
{23,981) (41,373} (60,361} 20,944 1,969,175 133,865 (21,381) (54.140) 1,069,113 2,500,213
402,982 484,622 15.678.563 689,052 9,534,974 2,956,368 505,314 1,780,410 754,411 43,765,173

$ 379,000 % 443,249 5 15618202 $ 710396 $§ 11,504,349 § 1,090,233 § 483933 3 1,726,270 § 1,823,524 S 44,269,386
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

AGENCY FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Balance Balance
ASSETS: Tuly 1, 2005 Additions Deductions June 30, 2006
Taxes levied for State:
Taxes receivable - State S 323,802 S 3,283.099 S 3,272,891 $§ 334,610
Bay restoration fee 84,267 499,249 432,891 150,625
Other recetvables ! 3,630 8,656 (25)
Taxes levied for Special Areas:
Lonaconing, Town of 6,340 92,491 88,153 10,678
Midland, Town of 3,052 27,785 26,916 3,921
Westernport, Town of 36,164 285,743 286617 35,290
Cumberland differential 18,317 1,825 13,922 6,220
Bel Air Special Tax Area 800 24,039 23,894 645
Bowling Green Fire Co. 3,023 25426 25,547 2.902
Bedford Road Fire Co. 1,965 27,733 27,416 2,314
Bowling Green Special Tax Area 1,181 9,653 9.855 979
Cresaptown Ambulance 7,902 101,745 101,925 7,722
Cresaptown Civic Imp. Assoc. 1.841 17,807 17,658 1,990
Cresaptown Fire Co. 8,685 134,453 134,496 8,642
Corriganville Light & Tmp. 1,429 12,158 12,018 1,569
Ellerslie Special Tax Area 804 6,496 6.026 1,274
LaVale Volunteer Fire Dept. 8,071 117,343 118,505 6,909
LaVvale Rescue Squad 4046 58,672 59,260 3,458
LaVale Sanitary District 31,273 421,526 423,892 28,907
McCoole Special Tax Area 1,038 3,354 3,310 1,082
Moscow Light ir 2,548 2,467 4358
Mit. Savage Special Tax Area 1,137 7,701 7,851 987
Potomac Park Special Tax Area 1,075 8,103 8,013 1,165
Rawlings Fire Co. 1,880 22,555 22,682 1,753
Sub-total special arcas 140,430 1,409,158 1,420,423 129,165
Due from other funds 261,287 5,429 641 5,532,635 158,293
Total Assets § 809,787 $ 10,630,377 $ 10,667,496 $ 772,668
LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable S 345,555 S 5,937,520 $ 5974182 S 308,893
AP Special Areas 140,430 1,409,158 1,420,423 129,165
Taxes payable - State 323,802 3,283,099 3,272,891 334,610
A/P Bay restoration fee 84,207 499 249 432,891 150,625
Total Liabilities $ 809,787 $ 10,630,377 $ 10,667,496 g 772,668




CAPITAL ASSETS
USED IN THE OPERATION
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE
June 30, 2006 and 2005

Primary Government

At June 30, 2006 Net
Accumulated Net Book Value
ASSETS Cost Depreciation Book Value  June 30, 2005
Land § 17,621,761 S - § 17621,761 § 15,773,610
Construction in progress 7.144,836 - 7,144 836 4,707,638
Buildings 41,256,030 12,331.539 28,924,491 31,491,993
Infrastructure 40,194,763 25,315,935 14 878,828 11,087,905
Furniture & fixtures 580,967 479,697 141,270 174,822
Machinery & equipment 4,845.471 3,171,256 1,674,215 1,573,999
Vehicles 7,623,402 5.573.788 2,04%.614 1,506,794
Heavy equipment 3,448 383 2,614,585 833,798 823,044
Other fixed assets 897,593 401,932 495,661 499,089
Total Assets 5 123613,206 S 49,888,732 § 73724474 3 £7,6388%4
FUND EQUITY
Investment in general fixed assets acquired
before July 1, 1993 - source unidentified S 11,705,099 S 12,197,141
Investment in construction in progress 7,144,836 4,707,637
Investment in general fixed assets by source:
General Fund:
General revenues 4,158,058 3,163,919
Federal grants 1,235,149 1,029,714
Staie grants 842914 1,208,612
Miscellaneous revenues 455416 433416
Debt proceeds 212,400 167,777
Special Revenue Funds:
General revenues 40,006,547 39,684,351
Federal grants 4,664,630 3,560,289
State grants 2,304,134 926,135
Miscellaneous revenues 215,592 821934
Debt proceeds 3,316,952 3,240,862
Capital Project Funds:
General revenues 9,103,556 9.141,926
Federal grants 8038319 5.418,191
State grants 19,261,877 18,723,000
Miscellaneous revenues 1,082,822 1,003,325
Debt proceeds 8489315 9,389,727
Other 1,371,590 1,371,590

Less:

Accumulated depreciation

Total Fund Equity

(49,888,732)

(48,554,252}

S 73724474 5 67.638.894
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ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF ASSETS BY FUNCTION

June 30, 2006
Furniture Other Construction Total Less
Function Land Buildings Infrastructure & Fixtures Equipment Vehicles Fixed Assels In Progress Cost Depreciation Total
General Government § 1730427 % 4,499,660 $ 19776 % 132,989 % 1,215,092 % 207,939 § 122,482 % 224,126 § 8,262,491 § (2,667,408) § 5,595,083
Public Safety 1,667.656 16,877,910 1,703,071 145,319 2,680,645 1,077,660 113,896 728 24,266,882 (4,472,734) 19,789,148
Public Works 1,331,238 1,187,679 35,775,786 298,253 713,548 5,399.891 3,599,725 203,836 48,509,956 (33,837,269} 14,672,687
Health - - - - - - 4,121 3,835,552 3,839,673 4,121} 3,835,552
Social Services 116 - 24 33] - 104,236 698,961 13,000 - 840,644 (223,781) 616,863
Recreation & Culture 583,119 2,620,688 214,288 246 6,528 39,248 414,53} - 3,878,648 (706,655) 3,171,993
Libraries 6,000 1,631,033 - - - - - - 1,637,033 (330,684) 1,306,349
Natural Resources - - - - 15,839 15,999 - - 31,838 (30,369) 1.469
Urban Development & Housing 56,640 651,377 - 4,160 31,164 9.302 - - 752,043 (335,579) 417,164
Economic Development 12,246,565 13,787,683 2,437,511 - 78,419 84,402 78,221 2,880,597 31,593,398 {7,275,132) 24.318.266
Total General Fixed Assets  § 17,621,761 § 41,256,030 § 40,194,763 § 580,967 % 4845471 % 7,623.402 $ 4,345976 % 7,144,836 8§ 123,613,206 3 (49,888732) § 73,724,474
ALLEGANY COUNTY, MARYLAND
CATPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES BY FUNCTION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
General Transfers o Accumulatled Less Add General

Fixed Assels Other Assel Toal Depreciation Current Year Depreciation Fixed Assets
Function June 30, 2005 Funds Reclass Additions Deductions Cost June 30, 2005 Depreciation on Disposals June 30, 2006

General Government $ 8,226,735 § - % (10.538) 3 100,855 % (54,561} 3 8,262,491 § (2,201,100) $ (507,547) $ 41,239 § 5,595,083

Public Safery 23,443,279 (2,150) 981,299 (155,546) 24,206,882 {3.B15,961) {795,877) 134,104 19,789,148

Public Works 47,711,330 2,150 1,173,542 (377,066) 48,500,956 (33,114,400) (1,099.935) 377,066 14,672,687

Heatth 1,104,094 10,728 3,824,824 (1,099,973) 3,839,673 (630.232) (60,702) 686,813 3,835,552

Social Services 305,577 - - 563,709 (28,642) 840,644 (214,838) (37,585} 28,642 610,863

Recreation & Culture 3,878,048 - - - 3,878,048 (605,273) (101,382) - 3,171,993

Libraries 1,637,033 - - 1,637,033 {269,383) {61,301 - 1.366,349

Natural Resources 31,838 - - - - 31,838 (28,014) (2,35%) - 1,469

Urban Development & Housing 744,722 - - 7,921 - 752,643 {309.3606) (25,713) - 417,064

Economic Development 29,109,890 (190) 3,937,503 (1,453,805) 31,593,398 (7,365.185) {412,187) 502,240 24,318,266

Total General Fixed Assets $ 116,193,146 % - - $ 10589653 §_ (3,169,593) 5_ 123.613,200 $ _(48,554,252) §_ (3.104584) § 1,770,004 § 73,724,474

E-47




This page left blank intcntionally.

E-48



Statistical Section

This part of the Allegany County's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information

says about the County's overall financial bealth,

Contents Pages
Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the County's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.
Net Assts by Component, Last Four Fiscal Years ... ... F-3
Changes in Net Assets, Last Four Fiscal Years ... F4
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, Last Ten years ... i e, F-6
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds, Last Ten Years ............coooooiiiiiiiinins F-7
Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the County's most significant Jocal
revenue source, the property tax
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property, Last Ten Fiscal Years ................oo. F-8
Schedule of Property Tax Rates - Direct and Overlapping, Last Ten Fiscal Years ................... F-9
Principal Prperty Tax Payers ... F-10
Property Tax Levies and Collections ... e F-1%
Debt Capacity
These schedules present nformation to help the reader assess the affordability of the County's
current levels of outstanding debt and the County's ability to issue debt in the future.
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type, Last Ten Fiscal Years ..o, F-13
Ratios of General Obligation Debt Outstanding, Last Ten Fiscal Years .............ooiiiiian, F-14
Legal Debt Margin Information, Last Ten Fiscal Years ... F-15
Pledged Revenue Coverage, Last Ten Fiscal Years ..., F-16
Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
environment within which the County's financial activities take place.
Demographic and Economic Statistics, Last Ten Calendar Years .............ocoooo s F-17
Principal Employers, Current Year and Nine Years AZO .....ooviieiiii i e, F-18
Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the
information in the County's financial report relates to the services the County provides and the
activities it performs.
Full-time Equival County Government Eniployees by Function/Program, Last Ten Fiscal Years F-19
Operating Indicators by Function/Program, Last Four Fiscal Years .............coovie e, F-20
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program, Last Four Fiscal Years .................ooeen F-21

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from
the comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The
County implemented GASB Statement 34 in FY 2003; schedules presenting
government-wide information include information beginning in that year.
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Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestriced

Total governmental activities net assets

Business-type aclvities
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestriced

Total business-type actvilies net assets

Primary Government
Invested in capital assets, net of retated debt
Restricted
Unrestriced

Total primary government net assets

Allegany County, Maryland
Net Assets By Component

Last Four Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006
$ 49,601,139 $ 53,978,694 $ 60,161,453 66,160,686
1,684,063 2,083,507 3,021,117 2,277,836
(11,733,113) (5,166,240) (4,128,194) 3,048,018
$ 39,552,089 $ 50,905,961 $ 59,054,376 71,486,540
$ 51,533,344 $ 56,841,888 $ 59,474,528 67,030,468
185,808 159,657 172,797 167,898
5,398,109 1,439,367 1,552,398 (1,694,100}
$ 57,117,261 $ 58,440,912 § 61,199,723 65,504 266
$ 101.134 483 $ 110,820,582 $ 119,635,981 133,191,154
1,869,871 2,253,164 3,193,814 2445734
(6,335,004) (3,726,873) (2,575,796) 1,353,918
$ 96,669,350 $ 109,346,873 $ 120,254,099 136,990,806
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Allegany County, Maryland

Changes In Net Assets, Last Four Fisca! Years

{accural basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
Expenses 2003 2004 2005 2006
Governmental aclivities:
General Government: $ 5,650,431 6,433,962 $ 6,569,557 6,666,383
Payment to data processing 255,757 264,767 279,661 294,847
Public Safety 10,729,932 10,878,035 13,320,579 14,571,046
Public Works 10,320,589 9,277,395 9,691,963 14,176,350
Health 1,311,200 1,345,102 1,422,154 1,610,957
Social Services 3,158,083 3,372,243 3,220,006 1.987 579
Education: 106,438 51,733 796,573 709,684
Payment to public school system 27,832,107 27,503,531 27,638,498 27,262,735
Payments to community college 5,543,512 5,575,000 5,575,000 6,010,000
Recreation, culture & libraries: 525,002 517,927 637,904 720,024
Paymant to pulic library systemi 769,000 781,000 794,000 835,000
Conservation of natural resources 336,469 232,345 264,776 230,640
Community development & housing 1,338,847 1,659,272 2,031,225 1,666,691
Economic Development 2,865,480 2,412,668 3,487,397 2,487,755
Miscellanecus 47479 49 292 293971 79,925
Interest on long term deht 1,872,084 1,741 664 1,582,097 1,377,559
Total govermmental activities expenses 3 72,762,410 72,096,636 5 77,605,361 77,986,575
Business-type aclivities:
Water 1,446 660 1,483,542 1,448,043 1,751,458
Sewer 5,845,641 5.796,718 5,398,687 7,137,019
Nursing Home 8.174,160 8,620,622 9,550,145 9,657,283
QOther Funds - - - 487,108
Total business-type aclivities expenses 15,466 461 15,900,882 17,396,875 19,032,868
Total primary government expenses 88,228,871 87.897.518 95,002,236 97,019,443
Program Revenues
Governmental aclivilies:
Charges For services:
Public safety 1,279,568 1,903,840 2,210,969 2,585,073
Public works 858,844 815,434 834,819 850,935
Econcmic development 1,259,978 1,152,183 1,956,832 2,472,961
Other activities 478,640 597,748 626,097 435,592
OCperating grants and contributiors 5,657,933 6,398,218 6,549,718 5,162,976
Capilal grants and contributions 5,783,782 5,704,736 10,626,139 4,861,929
Total governmental activities program revenues 15,318,745 16,671,959 22,804,574 17,869,466
Business-type activitias:
Charges For services:
Water 1,059,355 1,107,522 1,152,638 1,379,464
Sewer 4,522,491 4,614,481 5,142,139 5,488,342
Nursing Home 8,027,848 8,690,049 8,464,607 9,030,901
Qlher Funds 157,703 128,362 163,815 53,667
Operating grants and contributions - - -
Capital grants and confributions 2,054,418 3816273 d 3,320,783 3,560,637
Total business-type activities program revenues 15,821,815 18,356,687 18,243,982 419,513,011
Total primary government program revenues 31,140,560 35,028,846 41,048,556 37,382,477




Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005 2006
Net (Expense)/Revenue
Governmental activities {57,443,665) (55.424,677) (54,800,787) (60,117,109)
Business-type activities 355,354 2,455,805 847 107 480,143
Total primary government net expense {57,088,311) (52.968,872) {53,953,680) (55,636,966)
General Revenues And Other Changes In Net Assels
Governmental Activities:
Taxes
Property taxes % 25,545,098 26,865,528 $ 27,060,585 $ 29,094,141
Income taxes 18,451,155 21,536,150 21,472,667 23,407,305
Other local taxes 5,384,666 6,170,086 7,132,917 8,768,370
Licenses 411,923 426,638 410,720 308,405
Unrestricted grants 8,374,810 7,791,350 6,252,618 6,300,447
Investment earnings 1,641,108 827,216 1,046,600 1,436,172
Gain/{loss) on sale/retirement of capital assels 45,381 (396,544) (112,531} 2,876,383
Miscellaneous 555,408 421,048 505.188 393,305
Transfers 882,228 1,776,087 551,293 96,895
Special item (2,108,051) 1,360,980 e -
Total governmental activities 5 60,183,727 66,778,549 3 64,320,057 $ 72,682,423
Business-type activities:
Property taxes $ 474,742 542,636 % 684,529 $ 732,367
Investment aarnings 71,022 92,621 159,528 181,098
Miscellanecus 8,202 8,676 49,342 78,326
Transfers (882,228) (1.776.087) {551,293) {96.895)
Total business-type activites 3 (328,262) (1,132,154) 3 342,106 $ 854,896
Total primary governmenti % 59,855,465 65,646,395 3 64,662,163 $ 73,577,318
Change In Net Assets
Governmental aclivities $ 2,740,062 11,353,872 f % 9,518,270 $ 12,565,314
Business-lype activities 27,092 1,323,651 1,189,213 1,375,039
Total primary governmsnt k3 2,787,154 12,677,523 3 10,708,483 3 13,940,353

Note: Expenses include indirect expense allocation.

xplaination of Significant Variances:

OO0 oTw ln

Increase due to Allegany Counly's portion of new school construction.
Increase due to an increase in personnel saiaries and fringe

Increase in grants due to significant granis received for Allegany Highlands Trail and Barton Business Park
Increase in grants due 1o grants received for Celanese Wastewater Treatment Plant

Increase due to donation of land from the State of Maryland for the Allegany Highlands Trail

Increase due to revenue growth from sources such as increase in tax rale, income tax increase,

charges from boarding federal/state prisoners while expenses semained relatively the same.




General Fund

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Allegany County, Maryland

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

Reserved
Unreserved
Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds

Reserved
Unreserved, reported in:
Special revenue funds
Capilal project funds
Dett service funds
Tetal all olher governmental funds

Fiscal Year

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
$ 3,369,174 $ 3307028 % 3,019,557 $ 2185628 $ 1,928,325 $ 1,705,332 $ 2,300,641 $ 2,709,317 § 3,302,308 $ 3,586,015
5,684,831 6,933,988 8.619,547 9,835,272 8,083,225 8,193,358 8,274,597 9,880,236 9,395,968 10,361,286
$ 9.054.005 § 10,241,926 S 17,639,104 ¥ 12.020.900 § 10,011,550 3 0,888,690 $10,575.238 % 12,609,550 $ 12,702,275 ¥ 13,847,301
$ 5,470,359 $ 1,887.278 % 8439283 $ 4,304,911 § 2,144,563 $ 1,740,443 $ 416,185 $ 100,856 3 1,204 529 $424,349
1,444,826 1,815,662 2,505,082 3,568,955 1,786,349 2,558,231 3,260,273 3,793,401 5,102,167 5,001,124
2,240,180 2,789,465 5,850,003 9,689,200 5.724,934 2,745,547 1,370,878 2,225,198 1,220,786 2,487,471
- - - 300,000 1,400,000 1,400,000 1,275,000 © 1,150,000 1,175,000 1,517,200
§ 9,155,365 § 6,492 405 $ 16,794,368 17, LU66 % 11,065,646 3 8445221 T 6,322,316 § 7272455 § 8792482 % 0,430,144




Allegany County, Maryland

Changes In Fund Balances, Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(medified accrual basis of accounting)

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Revenues
Property taxes $ 23,532,238 $ 23,767,146 $ 24,974,964 $ 26,028,928 $ 26,205,688 $ 26,945,354 $ 26,823,761 $ 27,527 977 $ 28,460,485 $ 29,786,204
Income taxes 15,930,461 16,831,635 17,212,342 17,007,620 19,177,773 18,441,780 19,391,155 21,538,150 21472 667 22,103,548
Highway user taxes 3,010,000 3,459,706 3,936,506 4,025,755 4,108,73t 4,207,379 3,842,972 3,360,759 3,688,177 4,813,872
Other local taxes 1,344,940 1,451,158 1,793,090 1,610,351 1,539,919 1,842,004 1,683,107 3,205,042 3,912,061 4,700,748
Licensas and parmits 486,796 468,556 486 641 508,317 534,121 558,218 580,355 606,228 583,575 586,286
intergovernmental:

Federal 3,962,122 3,810,077 3,720,745 4,674,620 5,484,707 4,528,456 4,012,379 5,047,771 7,136,309 6,784,009

State 5,273,948 6,804,911 6,482,782 13,858,827 8,194,787 12,990,625 14,842,988 13,897,115 13,829,081 10,779,726

Other 62,349 35,787 73.417 95,310 55,526 110,275 135,025 269,579 495,599 561,733
Service charges 1,291,882 1,458,140 1,702,350 1,569,630 1,796,506 1772777 1,813,967 2,454,089 3,397,304 3,136,916
Fines and forfeitures 58,689 39,582 59,531 101,025 58,531 72,008 147,986 2,560 91,420 79,618
Interest 1,126,786 995,099 1,597,702 1,282,274 1,625,162 680,463 343,052 194,563 402,229 752,182
Miscellaneous 1,938,138 2,132,919 1,748,154 4,797,971 2,631,075 2,120,149 2,293,436 2,131,346 2,584,812 3,047,651
Total revenues $ 58,018,350 $ 61,298.717 $ 63,788,264 $ 75,560,628 $ 71,412,526 $ 74,273,498 $ 76,010,183 $ 80,333,179 $ 86,053,719 § 87,141,793
_Expenditures
General government $ 4,881,245 $ 4,683403 $ 5,037,060 $ 5,328,287 $ 5879131 $ 5,844,282 $ 5,561,787 5,830,837 6,081,966 6,403,875
Public safety 5.462,114 5,894,660 6,308,244 6,551,254 7,895973 8,526,503 9,882,124 10,531,391 11,845,960 13,162,203
Public works 7.564,360 8,319,389 7,704,681 7,524,526 8,873,426 8,582,583 9,914,877 8,184,441 9,318,237 11,014,386
Health and Hospitals 292,373 285,882 310,605 296,818 249,806 291,868 297 275 314,944 365,730 547,635
Social Services 1,253,436 1,385,751 1,774,249 1,778,154 2,719,978 2,821,402 3,217,712 3,340,700 3,153,780 2.481,137
Education 400 400 400 - - 6,872 106,438 7,125 6,487 5,788
Recreation, culture and libraries 252,053 464,854 381,286 310,749 284,468 529,568 400,679 416,091 525,238 557,173
Conservation of natural resources 178,638 171,048 179,116 188,422 232,807 212,488 236,697 223675 254,764 222,849
Communily development and housing 1,062,078 1,284,327 1,217 612 1,269,185 1,360,449 1.485,712 1,362,694 1,640,267 1,681,444 1,666,588
Economic development 1,183.351 1,381,763 2,022,876 2,671,828 3,447,518 1,972,049 1.870.090 2,778,199 5,244,044 4,313,128
Miscellaneous 108,706 11,333 11,383 21,332 11,693 4,678 18,775 18,721 13,991 17,671
Appropriation to other governments 762.317 782,607 647,446 847,128 905,343 961,388 990,488 1,005,981 1,017,170 1,044,128
Capital Quilay 10,630,782 5,089,879 8,685,724 10,444,573 8,625,593 8,168,579 4,505,874 6,737,970 10,838,212 8,504 428
Debt Service

Interest 2,061,808 2,315,773 2,455 549 2,648,162 2,530,986 2,178,629 2,027,073 1,839,382 1.624.695 1,442,163

Principal 2,612,281 2,830,350 2,890,117 3,606,285 3,777,228 3,936,483 4,080,571 4,221,604 4,005,632 4,716,262
Total expenditures $ 38,105,940 $ 34,891,509 $ 39,626,348 $ 43,487,747 $ 46.844 399 $ 45,523,084 $ 44,483,154 $ 47,091,328 $ 56,278,250 $ 56,190,415
Excess of revenues gver (under)
Expenditures $ 19,912,410 $ 26,407,208 § 24,161,816 $ 32,072,881 § 24,568,127 $ 28,750,414 $ 31,527,028 $ 33,241,851 $ 29,775,468 $ 30,95%,378
Other Financing Sources {(Uses)
Proceeds fram borrowing $ 6,782,500 3 207,625 § 15,251,008 3 400,000 $ $ 2322680 % 63,710 $ 588607 $ 2258256 % 149,483
Proceeds from refunding - - - - 9,683,148 -
Payments 1o escrow agent - - - - - (9,683,148) -
Transfers in 11,024 671 10,892.874 11,120,891 12,503,364 11,504,826 10,704,292 10,516,889 11,735,629 14,107,776 10,558,497
Transfers frorn companent units - - - - - - 65,050 390,603
Transfers out {10,312,097) {10,293,128) (10,644 868) (11,200,806) (12,298,277) (9,953,385) (9,634,659) (9.959,540) {13,556,482) {10,461,602)
Transfers to Component units {29,964,870) (28,689,620) {28,189,806) (31,624,945) (31,970,969) (32,557,486) (34,400,376) (32,550.767) {32,278,661) (33,734,847
Sale of capital asseis - - - - - - 416,000 18,674 298,110 4,552,930
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $(22,469,796) $(27.882,247)  $(12,462,775) $(30,622,387)  §$(32,764.420) $(31.483.899) $(32,873.386) $(30,167.397) 3(28,780.398)  §$(28,835,539)
Net Change in fund balances § (2557.386) $ (1.475039) % 11,699,141 3 1,456,494 $ (8,196,283) § (2,733,485) $ (1446357) $ 3.074,454 $ 995,071 $ 2015838
Debl service as a percentage of
noncapital expenditures 17.0% 17.3% 17.3% 18.9% 16.5% 16.4% 15.3% 15.0% 12.4% 12.9%
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Allegany County, Maryland
Assessed Value and Actual Value Cf Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Real Property Personal &
Real Property Total Direct Personal Property Corporate Persanal Property Totals Corporate Personal
Fiscal Market Assessed Tax Market Assessed Market Assessed Market Assessed Total Direct
Year Value Value Rate Value Value Valua Value Value Value Tax Rate
1897 1,786,714,125 714,685,650 0.9380 12,838,150 12,839,150 449,714,780 448,714,780 2,249 ,265,055 1.177.239.580 2.4700
1998 1.830,044,875 732,017,850 0.9830 11,762,460 11,762,460 426,419,050 426,419,050 2,268,226,385 1,170,198.480 2.4700
1989 1,908,270,840 763,308.336 0.9880 10,700,350 10,700,350 528,490,145 529,480,145 ?,448,461,335 1,303.498,831 2.4700
2000 1,986,586,538 794,638,615 09880 10,869,940 10.869.940 736,321,330 736,321,330 2,733,787.808 1,541,829.885 2.4700
2001 2027004175 810,837 870 0.9840 8,839.820 8,869,920 662,748,955 662,748,955 2,698.653,050 1,482.456,545 2.4500
2002 2072961398 2.072,981,398 0.9840 10,142,410 10,142,410 493,595,405 493,585,405 2,576,719,213 2.676,719.213 2.4600
2003 2,158,322,043 2,158,322.043 09533 10,417,090 10,417,090 360,582,630 360,582,630 2529321763 2.529,321,763 2.4595
2004 2,223,185,344 2.223,185,344 1.0000 11,255,730 11,255,720 334,611,519 334,611,519 2.569,052,593 2.569,052.593 2.5000
2005 2,346.218,412 2,346,218.412 1.0607 10,253,280 10,253,280 351,375,260 351,375,200 2,707.846,982 2,707,846,882 2.5018
2008 2.439,119,223 2,439,119,223 1.0007 9.047,760 $,047,760 344,568,380 344 568,390 2,792,735.373 2.792,735,373 25018

Soure: Aillegany County Finance Office & Allegany Tax Office

Note Tax rales expressed in $100 of agsessed value
Real property lax rate years 2001 and prior have been restated to a full cash value assessment
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Allpgany County, Maryland
Schedule Of Real Property Tax Rates - Direct And Cverlapping
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 20060 1599 1998 1907
Algzany County Dicect Tax Rarcs
Barien 09727 09724 0972 09520 09513 09520 09520 0.9450 0.9480 0480
Cumberland 0.9309 nox48 1 0000 (19838 09340 093040 0.9040 0.9040 QNN 0 9040
Frostburg 0.9366 09305 09312 QG128 09128 0.9120 0.9120 09120 09120 0.9120
Laraconing 0 4548 ues7 09535 0.9334 09330 0.9320 0.9320) 09320 0.9320 09320
Luke 0.9516 09484 09498 Q5299 09287 09280 0 0280 09280 09280 09240
Midland 0.9727 09724 09T 0950 0o513 04520 0.952u Q9480 09430 0.9480
Westernport 0.9348 GRs17 09535 045344 09330 08320 0.9320 09320 09320 0.9320
Unincorporated 1 6667 ! 07 1.0000 09818 6.9840 0 9840 7 9830 09880 0.9850 0 9880
Municipal Direct Tax Rates
Barton 02220 12220 0.2220 0.2260 0.2320 02320 02320 02320 02320 0.2320
Cumberlang 0.9479 09479 08720 0.8721 08720 1 0400 1 0480 | 0480 1.0480 1 0430
Frostburg 0,580 0.5500 0 5500 0 5000 05000 0 5000 05006 0.5000 05000 0 5000
Lonaconing 03400 1 3400 Q3400 0.2460 0.3400 03400 0.3400 0.3400 0 3408 0 3400
Luke S0 83504 0 3500 () 2400 0.2490 02400 0.2400 0 2400 03120 [ERed it
Midland 0800 02800 G.2800 0.2800 0.2800 0 2800 02800 02800 12800
Westernpon 0 600 [ O 6000 (0 6000 0 D {1 GO 0 B Q6000 £ B
Speral Tmxing Areas
Sanitery Dlstricts
Bedford Raad 0,1508 Goluog 0.1000 Q1000 0 1000 00880 0 ORED QLIRRS 0.0%80 {1 DREO
Bowling Green 0.2530 2530 0.1580 Q1480 Q 1480 0 1440 0 1560 0.1564 111 860 01560
Braddock Run 000406 [ 0 0040 0.0040 Q0040 00040 oajuo 0.0160 OGS0 00200
Cresaptown 0 3000 030K 0.1600 (.0480 0.0480 0.0360 0 03al 00360 [ARAXT 0.0360
fenrings Run - Wills Creek 00525 (0520 0.0520 0.0520 G0sIn [CRTE) RIS (1R b 00320 032
Cash Valley Subsdistig 02200 {2440 0.2440 0.2440 0 244t D210 02444 02445 L2440 0 2440
MeCoole 2.1400 01400 0 1400 ¢ 1400 it 146 [T 0 U 1400 1400 G 144G
Fhntstone! Gilpin 02000 {12000 2000 0 2000 0 2000 0 20 [T 0 i 02000
Franklin/ Brophyiown O 40920 00920 0.0920 0020 0.0920 0.0920 [ 00920
Qldiown O 05D 00960 [aRETS] 0 096H i {10 {055 ) LUEED O () 0 EED [{RAER0]
George's Creck 0 1600 O 1600 01000 G 16 01600 O 1600 0 1660 01600 01600 U 1600
Mexicn Fanms 0.1840 . 1540 01847 G iR 0 TR 0 1840 02000 02000 1 2 0 2000
Oldiown Road 0.2400 {2600 00 02640 02600 0.2600 0.3840 03840 11 3840 03840
Other Speclal Districts
Bedfo:d Rowd Volunteer Fire Co 1 (47} 010400 0 0400 0 (1400 0 D4t 0 3tn 0 0400 0.0400 0.0400 O 0don
Bl A Special Tax Arca G040 Q Q40 0 0400 0 0300 0 04t [ 0400 0.0400 09400 00400
Bowling Green amed Roberta Place Guizd oz 00120 0 0400 1030 0320 0320 0,0320 0370 Q0azn
Bowlmg Green Volusrser Fire Co 00400 [ARs= VA 0 0400 0 D500 O [R5 [T ) ) Q0400 SR
Carriganville Laght & inp Assoc LR 00600 Q0640 0.00:00 00600 0.0660 e 0.0 (L)
Cresaptown Apde s Taxing Arca [LRVRED] 00280 0.0280 fdi2ED 00280 0280 Q0200 O 0200 002
Cresaptown Civic Improvemenl Assoc 2.0400 0.0400 0.0400 L0320 00120 00320 Dakh 00320 00320
Cresaptown =pecial Fire Tax Area 0.0520 QU2 00520 7 U5t 00520 00520 o (i 00400 i D4
Ellershe Special Taxing Area 4 0410y HGERE 0 0400 0 040K 00400 0.0400 0.0400 G i) 0 0400 Crodng
LaVale Sanniry Conunission 01009 U 1000 01000 Q.10 6.1000 0.1000 0 1000 0 Vi O 1200 G.3200
LaVale Fine Iepariment 0 0404 LR T 0 0400 0,040 0 0an 0 (400 0400 00400 0 (0400 0 6403
LaVule Vislunteer Rescue Squad 002 00201 [FXVRNTI] 002400 Laon 00200 0 0200 0.0z 05200 0020y
MaCoole Special Taxing Area 04400 U 0afy O 04 0 TUIR) U na 0 0400 0.0400 0 0400 0113404 0400
Moscow Special Taxmg Area 01200 12000 01200 01200 1200 0.1200 0.1200 11 HHi O 12k 91200
Mt Savape Spesail Taxing Area 0 0400 Q0404 0.0400 0.0400 00400 0 0400 0 Q400 0040 00400 O.0470
Potoman Park Citizens Comnatiee 003z 00330 Q0320 COA20 f220 1k kel ] 06320 (0320 G.0320 0.0320
Rawlings Sgeeinl Fry Tax Arca 0.0600 LRV 0.0640 0060 RS Qg 0 0600 0.0AD 0.05600 0.0600

Notes  Thitty specin! firormm areas have been esiablished in the County. As provided by varous statutes, taves are levend and assessed withio e special i mg areas
o provide revenies for the amortization of bonded mdehtedress of samitary disericts and 1o pity tor tire protection, street fighting and uther civic semvices

All tax rates are per $100 of assessed value  Years 2001 and prior have beem restated 10 a [ull cash value assessment

Source Allcgany County Finance Dopanimeny, Maryland State Assessment Office
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Allegany County, Maryland
Principal Property Tax Payers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2006 1997
Percentage Percentage
Taxable Of County Taxable Taxable Of County Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
AES WR Limited Partnership $ 122,313,948 1 4.38%

New Page {(Mead/Westvaco) 73,144,233 2 2.62% $ 245,485,490 1 20.85%
Sacred Heart Hospital 55,998,900 3 2.01% -

Potomac Edison Co 49 813,260 4 1.78% 47,932,860 ° 3 4.07%
Verizon-Maryland 39,157,940 5 1.40% 49,382,250 2 4.19%
LaVale Associates 28,746,420 6 1.03% 14,079,510 4 1.20%
Columbia Gas of Maryland 23,266,290 7 0.83% 11,992 960 5 1.02%
CSX Transportation 18,559,381 8 0.66% 9,640,220 B 0.81%
Western MD Health Systems 6,133,966 9 0.22%

American Woodmark Corp 3,457,760 10 0.12%

Kelly Springfield Tire Co 4,767,340 7 0.40%
MD Economic Development Corp. 5,184,080 8 0.44%
Biederlack Of America Corp 7,293,210 9 0.62%
Superfos Packaging, Inc. 5,906,400 10 0.50%
Total $ 420,592,098 15.06% $ 401,564,320 34.10%

Source: Allegany County Tax and Utility Office

Note: Total county taxable assessed value includes real estate and personal property




Allegany County, Maryland
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Real Property

Fiscal Collected within the

Year Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Levy Changes Coliections Grand Total Information

Ended for the Percentage in Subsequent in Subsequent Percentage

June 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Years Levy Collections of Levy
1997 16,829,374 15,577,450 92.56% (105,211) 1,121,788 16,724,163 16,699,238 99.85%
1998 17,295,160 15,927,233 92.09% (2,928) 1,340,183 17,292,232 17,267,416 99.86%
1999 18,044,743 16,559,997 91.77% (47,271) 1,412,522 17,997,472 17,972,519 99.86%
2000 18,779,731 17,392,441 92.61% (79,738) 1,282,200 18,699,993 18,674,641 99.86%
2001 19,287,454 17,801,226 92.29% {40,787) 1,417,811 19,246,667 19,219,037 99.86%
2002 19,739,787 18,208,781 92.24% {49,106) 1,445,677 19,690,681 19,654 458 99.82%
2003 20,190,074 18,729,500 92.77% (9,432) 1,416,956 20,180,642 20,146,456 99.83%
2004 21,238,040 19,838,116 93.40% (24,563) 1,345,275 21,214,477 21,183,391 99.85%
2005 22,263,407 20,665,094 92.82% (36,203) 896,572 22,227,204 21,561,666 97.01%
2006 23,311,852 21,694,064 93.06% 23,311,852 21,694,064 93.06%
Personal Property

Fiscal Collected within the

Year Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Levy Changes Collections Grand Total Information

Ended for the Percentage in Subsequent in Subsequent Percentage

June 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Years Levy Collections of Levy

1997 306,030 241,579 78.94% (38,252) 24,672 267,778 266,251 99.43%
1998 280,996 205,900 73.28% (47,180} 24,536 233,816 230,436 98.55%
1999 269,137 198,792 73.86% {43,311) 23,810 225,826 222602 98.57%
2000 259,145 204,901 79.07% (49,500) (769) 209,645 204,132 97.37%
2001 191,726 170,281 88.81% 9,674 22,983 201,400 193,264 95.96%
2002 240,872 195,019 80.96% (9,297) 21,505 231,575 216,524 93.50%
2003 249,305 196,207 78.70% (13,324) 14,604 235,981 210,811 89.33%
2004 274,789 216,817 78.90% (13,201) 14,532 261,588 231,349 88.44%
2005 249,585 217,682 87.34% (317) 14,889 249,268 232,871 93.42%
2008 221,878 201,105 90.64% 221,878 201,105 90.64%

Source: Allegany County Tax and Utility Office & Allegany County Finance Office




Allegany County, Maryland
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Carporate Personal Property

Fiscal Collected within the

Year Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Levy Changes Collections Grand Total Information

Ended for the Percentage in Subsequent in Subsequent Percentage

June 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Years Levy Collections of Levy
1997 10,350,893 9,921,882 95.86% (36,349) 376,621 10,314,544 10,298,503 99.84%
1993 10,061,447 9,625,733 95.67% (88,470) 326,041 9,972,977 9,951,774 99.79%
1999 12,431,800 12,085,500 97.21% (22,303) 281,354 12,409,597 12,366,854 99.66%
2000 17,560,034 17,393,342 99.05% (112,548) 26,679 17,447 488 17,420,021 99.84%
2001 15,858,558 15,708,793 99.06% (71,237) 42,410 15,787,321 15,751,203 99.77%
2002 11,671,917 11,416,395 97.81% {20,609} 192,304 11,651,308 11,608,699 99.63%
2003 9,282,992 9,163,854 98.72% 20,418 81,355 9,303,408 9,245,209 99.37%
2004 8,897,728 8,790,614 98.80% (269,759) (190,802) 8,627,969 8,599,812 99.87%
2005 8,501,900 8,407,644 98.89% (455) 33,767 8,501,445 8,441,411 99.29%
20086 8,408,385 8,276,381 98.43% 8,408,395 8,276,381 98.43%
Total Taxes Levied

Fiscal Collected within the

Year Taxes Levied Fiscal Year of the Levy Levy Changes Collections Grand Total Information

Ended for the Percentage in Subsequent in Subsequent Percentage

June 30, Fiscal Year Amount of Levy Years Years Levy Collections of Levy

1997 27,486,297 25,740,911 93.65% (179.812) 1,523,081 27,306,485 27,263,992 99.84%
1998 27,637,603 25,758,866 93.20% (138,578) 1,690,760 27,499,025 27,449,626 99.82%
1999 30,745,780 28,844,289 93.82% (112,885) 1,717,686 30,632,895 30,561,975 99.77%
2000 36,598,910 34,990,684 95.61% (241,784} 1,308,110 36,357,126 36,298,794 99.84%
2001 35,337,738 33,680,300 95.31% {102,350} 1,483,204 35,235,388 35,163,504 99.80%
2002 31,652,576 29,820,195 94.21% (79,012) 1,659,486 31,573,564 31,479,681 99.70%
2003 29,722,371 28,089,561 94 .51% (2,340) 1,512,915 29,720,031 29,602,476 99.60%
2004 30,411,557 28,845,547 94.85% (307,523) 1,169,005 30,104,034 30,014 552 99.70%
2005 31,014,892 29,250,720 94.44% (36,975) 945,228 30,977,917 30,235,948 97.60%
2008 31,942,125 30,171,550 94.46% - - 31,942,125 30,171,550 94.46%

Source: Allegany County Tax and Utility Office & Allegany County Finance Office




Allegany County, Maryland
Ratios Of Outstanding Debt By Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Governmental Activities Business -Type Activities
General Water Water Sanitary Sanitary Sanitary Nursing Total Percentage Debt

Fiscal Obtligation Term Capital State Term Federal Term State Federal Home Primary of Personal Per

Year Bonds Notes Leases Loans Notes Loans Notes Loans Loans Loans Government Income Capita
1997 33,859,205 1,322,913 336,977 9,263,996 409,311 378,002 2,051,996 2,710,004 1,141,708 55,795 51,529,905 3.66% 684
1998 31,520,000 1,266,628 272282 9,101,455 360,634 712,342 1,785,482 2,542,007 1,130,415 0 48,691,246 3.37% 645
1999 44,370,000 1,207,551 233,671 8,710,034 307,986 705,333 1,504,933 2,365,755 2,213,367 0 61,818,630 4.16% 818
2000 41,215,000 1,145,756 145,619 8,808,593 251,041 1,685,463 1,207,983 2.181,088 2,190,587 0 58,831,131 3.78% 786
2001 37,945,000 1,080,232 51,783 8,460,725 189,449 1,665,100 2,120,833 2,014,938 2,166,706 0 55,694,766 3.43% 748
2002 35,115,000 1,013,482 82,761 8,046,052 122,832 3,303,469 1,792,880 1,840,612 1,079,389 0 52,396,467 3.15% 707
2003 31,580,000 941,011 41,978 7,667 455 50,779 3,263,926 1,455,938 1,842,894 1,064,987 0 47,909,068 2.82% 684G
2004 27,945,000 864,699 0 7,787,748 4,811 3,328,911 172,977 8,432,882 1,048,890 49,584 918 2.80% 870
2005 26,596,000 784 473 112,435 7,357,164 3,130 4,103,242 115,284 10,177,907 1,034,042 525,000 50,808,687 2.80% 690
2006 22,944,000 699,910 206,123 6,433,258 156,183 4,218,791 77,435 10,137,902 1,017,408 501,088 46,392,096 2.50% 631

Note: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial staiements
Population and Per Capita Income information provided on Demographic and Economic Statistics Chart

Source: Allegany County Finance Office and Bureau Of Economic Analysis
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Allegany County, Maryland
Ratios of General Obligation Debt Outstanding
Last Ten Fiscal Years

General Obligation Debt Outstanding

Percentage of

General Taxahle Actual Taxable Debt
Fiscal Obligation Term Capital State Value of Value of Per
Year Bonds Nctes Leases Leoans Total Property Praoperty Population Capita
1997 33,859,205 1,322,913 336,977 9,263,996 44,783,091 1,177.,239,580 3.80% 75,310 594.85
1998 31,520,000 1,266,629 272,282 9,101,455 42,160,366 1,170,199,460 3.60% 75,547 558.07
1999 44,370,000 1,207,551 233,671 8,710,034 54,521,256 1,303,498,831 4.18% 75,288 72417
2000 41,215,000 1,143,756 145,619 8,808,593 51,314,968 1,541,829,885 3.33% 74,819 585.85
2001 37,945,000 1,080,232 51.783 8,460,725 47,537,740 1,482,426,545 3.21% 74,449 638.53
2002 35,115,000 1,013,492 82,761 8,046,052 44 257,305 2,576,714,213 1.72% 74,059 597.60
2003 31,580,000 941,011 41,978 7.667,455 40,230,444 2,528,321.763 1.59% 73,867 544,63
2004 27,945,000 864,699 - 7,787,748 36,597,447 2,569,052,593 1.42% 73,899 494.57
2005 26,596,000 784,473 112,435 7,357,164 34,850,072 2,707,848 982 1.25% 73,639 473.26
2006 22,944,000 692,910 206,123 6.433,258 30,283,291 2792,735373 1.08% 73,500 412.02

Note: Details regarding the County's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statemenis
Long-term compensated absences payable balances are not included in this schedule

Source: Allegany County Finance Office and Bureau Gf Economic Analysis




Allegany County, Maryland
Legal Debt Margin Infermation
Last Ten Fiscal Years

1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

Population 75,310 75,547 75,288 74,819 74,449 74,059 73,867 73,999 73,638 73,500
Inmate population excluded - - - 3,279 3,279 3,279 3.279 3,279 3,27¢ 3,279
Net population for debt limit 75,310 75,547 75,288 71,540 71,170 70,780 70,588 70,720 70,360 70,221
Debt Per Capita 585 585 585 585 585 585 585 585 585 585
Debt Limit 44,056,350 44,194,895 44,043,480 41,850,900 41,634,450 41,408,300 41,293,980 41,371,200 41,160,600 41,078,285
Total Net Debt applicable fo limit 44,783,091 42,160,366 54,521,256 51,314,968 47,537,740 44 257,305 40,230,444 36,597.447 34,850,072 30,283,291
Legal Debit Margin (726,741) 2,034,629 (10,477.,776) (9.464,088) (5,903,290) (2.851,005) 1,063,536 4,773,753 6,310,528 10,795,994
Total net debf applicable to the

limit as a percentage of debt limit 101.6% 95.4% 123.8% 122.6% 114.2% 106.9% 97.4% 88.5% 84.7% 73.7%

Source: Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Census Bureau & Allegany County Finance Office

County debt policy dated May 1996
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Allegany County, Maryland
Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

SANITARY DISTRICTS

Net Revenue

Fiscal Gross Operating Available for
Year Revenues (1) Expenses (2) Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
2006 6,390,329 5,189,019 1,201,310 436,091 190,715 626,806 1.92
2005 6,138,374 4,705,332 1,433,042 342,541 206,399 548,940 2.61
2004 5,380,331 4,121,055 1,259,276 379,008 (3) 219,141 598,149 2.11
2003 5,196,676 4,135,237 1,061,439 534,257 253,771 788,028 1.35
2002 5,322,012 3,870,291 1,451,721 515,979 288,075 804,054 1.81
2001 5,225,033 3,805,192 1,419,841 477,182 301,188 778,370 1.82
2000 4,717,029 3,407,505 1,309,524 504,396 333,245 837,841 1.56
1999 4,489,346 3,383,497 1,105,849 473,846 344,220 818,066 1.35
1998 4,102,355 3,375,064 727,291 445,802 342,069 787,871 0.92
1997 3,827,804 3,085,107 732,697 424,029 367,263 791,292 0.93
WATER DISTRICTS
Net Revenue
Fiscal Gross Operating Available for
Year Revenues (1) Expenses (2) Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
20086 1,430,789 1,068,917 361,872 55,436 181,207 236,643 1.53
2005 1,180,132 833,099 347,033 48,352 158,073 206,425 1.68
2004 1,124,973 909,646 215,327 87 484 144,383 231,867 0.93
2003 1,073,757 878,777 194,980 111,596 150,978 282,574 0.74
2002 1,043,256 826,387 216,869 101,883 139,236 241,119 0.90
2001 754,227 682,149 72,078 81,955 87,478 169,433 0.43
2000 606,260 565,537 40,723 70,515 76,905 147,420 0.28
1999 533,325 478,747 54,578 59,657 65,273 124,930 0.44
1998 465,612 298,190 167,422 53,837 64,571 118,408 1.41
1997 435,286 272,717 162,569 56,339 58,807 115,146 1.41

1 - Total revenues includes interest, but does not include capital grants.
2 - Total operating expenses less deprecialion.

3 - Does not include principal payments of $1,111,052 paid with debt proceeds from current refunding.
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Allegany County, Maryland
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

Per
Personal Capita Public
Income Personal School Unemployment
Year Population In D00s Income Enroliment Rate

1997 75,310 1,409,005 18,709 11,190 9.80%
1998 75,547 1,443,913 19,113 11,110 8.80%
1999 75,288 1,479,760 19,655 10,987 7.10%
2000 74,819 1,556,953 20,810 10,678 5.90%
2001 74,449 1,623,601 21,808 10,425 6.70%
2002 74,059 1,661,981 22,441 10,180 6.50%
2003 73,867 1,701,416 23,034 10,128 6.30%
2004 73,999 1,785,371 24,127 9,926 £.40%
2005 73,639 1,821,078 (b} 24,729 9,840 6.50%
2006 73,500 (a) 1,857,500 (b) 25272 9,715 5.59%

Source - Population, personal income and per capita - Bureau of Econom Analysis
Public School Enroliment - Allegany County Board Of Education
Unemployment Rate - Maryland Department Of Labor, Licensing and Regulation

(a) Estimated
{b) Estimated based on average growth of 2%




Allegany County, Maryland
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2006 1997
Percentage Percentage

Of Total County Of Total County
Employer Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Western Maryland Health Systems 2,400 1 7.48% 2,300 1 7.00%
Allegany County Board Of Education 1,418 2 4.42% 1,291 3 3.93%
New Page Corporation (Westvacc) 1,100 3 3.43% 1,640 2 4.99%
ATK Tactical System 1,032 4 3.22%
CSX Transportation 925 5 2.88% 1,000 4 3.04%
Frostburg State University 904 6 2.82% 850 5 2.59%
Allegany County Government 593 7 1.85% 434 8 1.32%
Hunter Douglas 570 8 1.78% 373 9
Western Carrectional Institute 550 9 1.71% 0.00%
Allegany College 507 10 1.58%
Bayliner 500 6 1.52%
S. Schwab Company 475 7 1.45%
Kelly Springfield Tire Company 350 10 1.07%
Total 9,999 31.17% 9,213 26.91%

Source: Allegany County Ecomic Development Cffice and Maryland Depariment of Business & Economic Development
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Allegany County, Maryland
Full-time Equivalent County Government Employees by Function/Program
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

Function/Program 2003 2004 2005 2006

General Government

Commissioners & Staff 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Judicial 28.5 26.5 27.3 27.3
Finance 9.3 9.3 8.3 9.6
Tax Office 7.5 7.5 7.5 7.5
Maintenance 16.1 155 16.5 16.1
Other 33.3 358 287 321
Public Safety
Sheriff 27.0 240 27.9 31.6
Detention Center 78.5 798 84.8 85.3
991 17.2 19.3 21.0 25.0
Other 5.1 i1 13.9 13.1
Public Works
Roads division 76.3 76.3 74.5 74.5
Engineering 18.3 18.2 16.7 15.4
Solid Waste 55 54 5.4 5.4
Transit 271 271 27.1 296
Health and Hospilals 33 3.3 3.3 33
Social Services 6.0 7.0 7.0 1.0
Recreation, cullure, libraries, tourism 1.0 5.0 2.0 2.0
Conservation of natural resources 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Community Development and Housing 53 4.3 56 56
Economic Development 8.2 9.4 9.1 0.1
Sanitary 235 235 23.0 24.0
Nursing Home 150.0 150.0 161.5 165.5
Total 556.0 557.3 581.1 593.0

Source: Allegany County Finance Office-Budget




Function/Program

General Government
Average number of tax bills issued
Number of buitding permits issued
Public Safety
Total Number of arrests
Total Number of traffic tickets issued
Average number of inmates
Number of Volunteer Fire Stations
Public Works
Miles of roads maintained
Street resurfacing (miles)
Recycling, total tons
Social Services
Transit route miles
Transit passengers
Community Development and Housing
Number of families' rent subsidized
Low-tncome Housing loans issued
Economic Development
Sanitary

Aaverage number of sanitary/water customers

Nursing Home

Total Number of Beds Available, Annually

Number of Beds Occupied Annually
Occupancy Rate, Annual
Gaming
Games Solid
Operators Licensed
Inspections Conducted

Allegany County, Maryland
Operating Indicators By Function/Program
Last Four Fiscal Years

2003 2004 2005 2006

38,0600 38,020 38,060 38,130
421 479 489 424
1,430 1,505 1,341 1,246
1,157 199 613 1,527
176 180 180 172
23 23 23 23
544 544 544 544
56 47 35 23

20,577 20,058 22,468 Not Available
538,567 470,456 445957 500,772
88,650 99,441 94,813 119,027
253 274 253 262
42 32 43 36
8,500 8,500 8,500 8,500
55,845 55,998 55,845 55,845
49,660 51,427 48,701 47,422
89% 92% 87% 85%
N/A 39935~ 50,870 49,901
N/A 79" 94 100
N/A 1,200 * 1.180 1,035

* Only in operation for 7 months of the fiscal year

Source: Various County Departments
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Allegany County, Maryland
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Four Fiscal Years

Function/Program

General Government
Number of major buildings maintained
Public Safety
Number of police stations
Number of patrol vehicles
Public Works
Miles of roads maintained
Average number of highway vehicles
Number of Garages-Roads Dept
Number of operating transit buses
Economic Development
Number of industrial parks
Number ¢f Buildings leased
Sanitary
Sanitary/Water {miles)
Number of Wastewater Treatment plants
Number of Water Storage Tanks
Nursing Home
Number of buildings maintained

Source: Various County Departments

2003 2004 2005 2006

10 10 10 10
1 i 1 1

9 S 9 9
544 544 544 544
140 1490 140 140
4 4 4 4

9 9 9 10

8 8 8 8
14 14 14 14
175 175 175 175
6 6 6 6

6 6 6 6

F-21




This page left blank intentionally.

F-22



	B0012221.000.jpg
	B0012221.001.jpg
	B0012221.002.jpg
	B0012221.003.jpg
	B0012221.004.jpg
	B0012221.005.jpg
	B0012221.006.jpg
	B0012221.007.jpg
	B0012221.008.jpg
	B0012221.009.jpg
	B0012221.00a.jpg
	B0012221.00b.jpg
	B0012221.00c.jpg
	B0012221.00d.jpg
	B0012221.00e.jpg
	B0012221.00f.jpg
	B0012221.00g.jpg
	B0012221.00h.jpg
	B0012221.00i.jpg
	B0012221.00j.jpg
	B0012221.00k.jpg
	B0012221.00l.jpg
	B0012221.00m.jpg
	B0012221.00n.jpg
	B0012221.00o.jpg
	B0012221.00p.jpg
	B0012221.00q.jpg
	B0012221.00r.jpg
	B0012221.00s.jpg
	B0012221.00t.jpg
	B0012221.00u.jpg
	B0012221.00v.jpg
	B0012221.00w.jpg
	B0012221.00x.jpg
	B0012221.00y.jpg
	B0012221.00z.jpg
	B0012221.010.jpg
	B0012221.011.jpg
	B0012221.012.jpg
	B0012221.013.jpg
	B0012221.014.jpg
	B0012221.015.jpg
	B0012221.016.jpg
	B0012221.017.jpg
	B0012221.018.jpg
	B0012221.019.jpg
	B0012221.01a.jpg
	B0012221.01b.jpg
	B0012221.01c.jpg
	B0012221.01d.jpg
	B0012221.01e.jpg
	B0012221.01f.jpg
	B0012221.01g.jpg
	B0012221.01h.jpg
	B0012221.01i.jpg
	B0012221.01j.jpg
	B0012221.01k.jpg
	B0012221.01l.jpg
	B0012221.01m.jpg
	B0012221.01n.jpg
	B0012221.01o.jpg
	B0012221.01p.jpg
	B0012221.01q.jpg
	B0012221.01r.jpg
	B0012221.01s.jpg
	B0012221.01t.jpg
	B0012221.01u.jpg
	B0012221.01v.jpg
	B0012221.01w.jpg
	B0012221.01x.jpg
	B0012221.01y.jpg
	B0012221.01z.jpg
	B0012221.020.jpg
	B0012221.021.jpg
	B0012221.022.jpg
	B0012221.023.jpg
	B0012221.024.jpg
	B0012221.025.jpg
	B0012221.026.jpg
	B0012221.027.jpg
	B0012221.028.jpg
	B0012221.029.jpg
	B0012221.02a.jpg
	B0012221.02b.jpg
	B0012221.02c.jpg
	B0012221.02d.jpg
	B0012221.02e.jpg
	B0012221.02f.jpg
	B0012221.02g.jpg
	B0012221.02h.jpg
	B0012221.02i.jpg
	B0012221.02j.jpg
	B0012221.02k.jpg
	B0012221.02l.jpg
	B0012221.02m.jpg
	B0012221.02n.jpg
	B0012221.02o.jpg
	B0012221.02p.jpg
	B0012221.02q.jpg
	B0012221.02r.jpg
	B0012221.02s.jpg
	B0012221.02t.jpg
	B0012221.02u.jpg
	B0012221.02v.jpg
	B0012221.02w.jpg
	B0012221.02x.jpg
	B0012221.02y.jpg
	B0012221.02z.jpg
	B0012221.030.jpg
	B0012221.031.jpg
	B0012221.032.jpg
	B0012221.033.jpg
	B0012221.034.jpg
	B0012221.035.jpg
	B0012221.036.jpg
	B0012221.037.jpg
	B0012221.038.jpg
	B0012221.039.jpg
	B0012221.03a.jpg
	B0012221.03b.jpg
	B0012221.03c.jpg
	B0012221.03d.jpg
	B0012221.03e.jpg
	B0012221.03f.jpg
	B0012221.03g.jpg
	B0012221.03h.jpg
	B0012221.03i.jpg
	B0012221.03j.jpg
	B0012221.03k.jpg
	B0012221.03l.jpg
	B0012221.03m.jpg
	B0012221.03n.jpg
	B0012221.03o.jpg
	B0012221.03p.jpg
	B0012221.03q.jpg
	B0012221.03r.jpg
	B0012221.03s.jpg
	B0012221.03t.jpg
	B0012221.03u.jpg
	B0012221.03v.jpg
	B0012221.03w.jpg
	B0012221.03x.jpg
	B0012221.03y.jpg
	B0012221.03z.jpg
	B0012221.040.jpg
	B0012221.041.jpg
	B0012221.042.jpg
	B0012221.043.jpg
	B0012221.044.jpg
	B0012221.045.jpg
	B0012221.046.jpg
	B0012221.047.jpg
	B0012221.048.jpg
	B0012221.049.jpg
	B0012221.04a.jpg
	B0012221.04b.jpg
	B0012221.04c.jpg
	B0012221.04d.jpg
	B0012221.04e.jpg
	B0012221.04f.jpg
	B0012221.04g.jpg
	B0012221.04h.jpg
	B0012221.04i.jpg
	B0012221.04j.jpg
	B0012221.04k.jpg
	B0012221.04l.jpg
	B0012221.04m.jpg
	B0012221.04n.jpg
	B0012221.04o.jpg
	B0012221.04p.jpg
	B0012221.04q.jpg
	B0012221.04r.jpg
	B0012221.04s.jpg
	B0012221.04t.jpg
	B0012221.04u.jpg
	B0012221.04v.jpg



